
1 

City Council Agenda 
Thursday, November 12, 2020 

6:00 PM 
35 Cabarrus Avenue, W, Concord NC  28025 

Cell phones are to be turned off or placed on vibrate during the meeting. Please exit the Council 
Chambers before using your cell phone. 

The agenda is prepared and distributed on Friday preceding the meeting to Council and news 
media. A work session is then held on the Tuesday preceding the regular meeting at 4:00 pm. 

In order to maintain the safety of City residents, City Council, and staff, the November 10, 2020 
City Council Work Session and the November 12, 2020 City Council meeting will be conducted 
electronically via Zoom and can be accessed with the following link: 

Join Zoom Meeting:  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82744897457?pwd=UGh3OXI4UHFlZzhpTkpUWVF2a2tqQT09 

Phone Dialing alternative: 
646-876-9923 or 312-626-6799

Meeting ID: 827 4489 7457 Password: 579922 

Public Hearings will be conducted during the November 10, 2020 Work Session. If you would like 
to comment on a public hearing item or to comment during the Persons Requesting to be Heard 
portion of the November 12, 2020 City Council meeting click the following link:  

https://forms.gle/M37tMtHE3AFFjbBp8. 

* * * * *

I. Call to Order
II. Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silent Prayer
III. Approval of Minutes

October 6 and October 8, 2020.
IV. Presentations

1. Present a Proclamation recognizing Wednesday, November 11th, as Veteran's Day.

2. Presentation of the 2020 Jo Atwater Continuous Core Values Award.  The Jo Atwater 
Continuous Core Values Award is the highest award presented to a City of Concord 
Coworker. Jo Atwater's life was synonymous with heartfelt service to others in our 
community and the highest dedication to our organizational core values. Jo worked for the 
City from 1994 until her passing in 2004. During this time, she became a respected friend 
and inspirational teammate to all coworkers. This award continues Jo's vibrant spirit and 
valued legacy by annually recognizing one coworker that best embodies our 
organizational core values and commitment to serving others in the community.  

V. Unfinished Business
VI. New Business

A. Informational Items
B. Departmental Reports
C. Recognition of persons requesting to be heard
D. Public Hearings

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82744897457?pwd=UGh3OXI4UHFlZzhpTkpUWVF2a2tqQT09
https://forms.gle/M37tMtHE3AFFjbBp8


2 

1. Conduct a public hearing and consider adopting a resolution authorizing the
negotiation of an installment financing contract and a deed of trust for the
construction of a fire station at 3300 Roberta Road.   Staff is recommending that 
the Concord City Council grant approval for the Finance Director and the City Manager 
to negotiate an installment financing contract, not to exceed $6,000,000, for the site 
preparation, construction and furnishings of a fire station located at 3300 Roberta 
Road.  Staff will accept bids for the financing and bring those terms back to City 
Council.  Staff will ask the City Council to award the contract once all bids are received. 
Currently the closing will be held in or near February of 2021.The fire station was 
approved as part of the Capital Improvement Ordinance for fiscal year ending 2021.  

Recommendation: Motion to adopt a resolution authorizing the negotiation of an 
installment financing contract and a deed of trust for the construction of a fire station 
at 3300 Roberta Road. 

2. Conduct a public hearing to consider adopting an ordinance amending Section
7.7.4.E of the Concord Development Ordinance (CDO) to prohibit front-load
townhomes on higher classification streets, and Section 7.8.18.A to correct a 
typographical error.  Currently, the CDO provides little guidance on the development 
of townhomes (attached single family residential) and most of the dwelling units that 
are in process for development in the City are not traditional single-family detached 
units, but front-load townhomes (units with individual driveways that open onto the 
main street).   Furthermore, front-load townhomes pose challenges with driveway 
spacing, parking, landscaping/tree canopy and utility/service provision. Planning staff 
coordinated with members of the Development Review Committee (DRC) to develop 
a draft set of standards for townhome development that would address the interests 
of the individual departments.   After posting the draft standards on the website for 
comment, staff received numerous comments about the proposal with offers from 
several townhome developers to host tours of their products.   Staff is planning to 
schedule site visits to these neighborhoods with members of DRC in order to refine 
the townhome standards. One of the components on the draft standards that received 
no comment was a proposed prohibition of front-load townhome units on collector (or 
higher) streets.   Staff is proposing to move ahead with this amendment until such time 
as the final regulations can be developed, as it would address safety concerns on 
heavily travelled streets and major entrance roads in new subdivisions.   Rear load 
townhomes and single family detached homes would still be permitted on collector (or 
higher) streets. Also proposed is a revision to the multifamily design standards in 
Section 7.8.18.A.  This section was adopted with the maximum length of multifamily 
buildings being 160 feet instead of the intended 180 feet, and this revision would 
correct that typographical error.   

Recommendation: Motion to adopt an ordinance amending Sections 7.7.4.E 
relative to front-load townhomes and Section 7.8.18.A relative to multifamily design 
standards. 

3. Conduct a public hearing to consider adopting an ordinance amending the
Historic Handbook Chapter 5, Section 6, Porches.   The Historic Preservation
Commission has proposed to modify the Historic Handbook to allow the use of 
composite materials on porch/deck floors of Pivotal and Contributing structures on a 
case by case basis if certain criteria are met.  See attached staff report for detailed 
information on the request and to view the specific changes.   

Recommendation: Motion to adopt an ordinance amending the Historic 
Handbook Chapter 5, Section 6, Porches. 

4. Conduct a public hearing and consider adopting an ordinance for annexation of
four (4) parcels located on the northeast side of the Rocky River Road and Lower
Rocky River Road intersection.  The authorized petitioner for the annexation is Bob 
Bennett, Stanley Martin Homes.  The subject property consists of +/- 56.83 acres on 
the northeast corner of Rocky River Road and Lower Rocky River Road.  The property 



3 

is also adjacent to the southwest corner of The Mills at Rocky River project, and west 
of CC Griffin Middle School.  The applicant has proposed to annex the subject property 
for the development of an age restricted single-family residential detached subdivision.  

Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and consider a motion to adopt the 
annexation ordinance and set the effective date for October 8, 2020.

5. Conduct a public hearing and consider adopting an ordinance annexing +/- 0.214
acres located at 10515 Poplar Tent Rd, and owned by Larry and Myra Stinson.
A voluntary annexation petition for +/- 0.214 acres located at 10515 Poplar Tent Rd 
has been received for the purpose of establishing a public street.   

Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and consider a motion adopting the 
annexation ordinance and set the effective date for November 12, 2020.

6. Conduct a public hearing and consider adopting an ordinance annexing +/- 28.6
acres located at 1252 and 1260 Cox Mill Rd, and an unaddressed parcel, owned
by the City of Concord.   A voluntary annexation petition of +/- 28.6 acres located on 
Cox Mill Rd, owned by the City of Concord, has been received for the purpose of 
developing a municipal park. PINs: 4680-23-8327, 4680-43-2410, & 4680-33-2486   

Recommendation: Consider a motion to adopt the annexation ordinance and set 
the effective date for November 12, 2020. 

7. Conduct a public hearing pursuant to NC General Statutes Sec. 158-7.1 and
consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract for a
ten year / Gradually Declining Percentage tax based Downtown MSD Economic 
Development Incentive Grant based on paid MSD, City, and County taxes to 
Concord Master Venture, LLC (Lansing Melbourne Group) for the development 
of three mixed use structures located at 30 Market St. SW., 26 Union St. S., and 
25 Barbrick Ave. SW.   North Carolina General Statutes authorize the City Council to 
offer incentives for certain purposes, including stimulating private sector expansion of 
new facilities that increase the population, taxable property, or business prospects of 
the city. The proposed mixed use development represents an estimated $50,000,000 
investment. The proposed incentive is offered under the terms of the approved Master 
Developer’s Agreement between the City of Concord and Concord Master Venture, 
LLC. The gradually declining percentage is 85% for years 1-5, 75% for year 6, 65% 
for year 7, 55% for year 8, and 50% for years 9-10. Attached is the grant analysis for 
review.   

Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and consider a motion to authorize 
the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract for a ten year/ Gradually 
Declining Percentage tax based Downtown MSD Economic Development 
Incentive Grant based on paid MSD, City, and County taxes to Concord Master 
Venture, LLC for the development of three mixed use structures located at 30 
Market St. SW., 26 Union St. S., and 25 Barbrick Ave. SW. 

8. Conduct a public hearing and consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate
and execute an agreement with Cabarrus County for the City to receive an
annual payment from Cabarrus County for the purpose of granting a ten-
year/Gradually Declining Percentage tax-based downtown MSD economic 
development grant to Concord Master Venture, LLC to locate development 
projects at 30 Market St. SW., 26 Union St. S., and 25 Barbrick Ave. SW. in 
Concord pursuant to NC General Statutes Sec. 158-7.1   North Carolina General 
Statutes authorize the City Council to offer incentives for certain purposes, including 
stimulating private sector expansion of new facilities that increase the population, 
taxable property, or business prospects of the city. Cabarrus County would agree to 
make annual payments to the City of Concord for the duration of the incentive 
agreement with LMG based on the relative grant percentage and taxes paid. The City 
will use the funds to make the relative grant payments to LMG on an annual basis, 
acting as a pass through for Cabarrus County, until the termination of the economic 
development incentive agreement. The proposed interlocal agreement is offered 



4 

under the terms of the approved Master Developer's Agreement between the City of 
Concord and Concord Master Venture, LLC.   

Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and consider a motion to authorize 
the City Manager to negotiate and execute an agreement with Cabarrus County 
for the City to receive an annual payment from Cabarrus County for the purpose 
of granting a ten-year/Gradually Declining Percentage tax-based downtown MSD 
economic development grant to Concord Master Venture, LLC to locate 
development projects at 30 Market St. SW., 26 Union St. S., and 25 Barbrick Ave. 
SW. in Concord pursuant to NC General Statutes Sec. 158-7.1. 

9. Conduct a public hearing and consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate
and execute a parking garage lease agreement with Cabarrus County and
Concord Master Venture, LLC to provide Concord Master Venture, LLC evening 
and optional paid daytime parking spaces in the Cabarrus County Parking deck. 
In September 2020, Council approved a master development agreement with Concord 
Master Venture, LLC aka Lansing Melbourne Group (LMG) for the development of 
three mixed use structures at 30 Market St. SW, 26 Union St. S., and 25 Barbrick Ave. 
SW. The master development agreement calls for the proposed three party parking 
lease agreement. The Cabarrus County Commission is set to consider approving the 
parking garage lease agreement at its next regular meeting on November 16, 2020. 
The City would provide 132 spaces and the County would provide 168 spaces in the 
County's downtown parking deck during the evenings (5 PM – 8 AM) and all day on 
Saturdays and Sundays at no cost. The City would offer 80 optional paid passes and 
the County would offer 120 optional paid passes for daytime parking, should the 
County ever decide to impose parking restrictions on the downtown County parking 
deck. See the attached.   

Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and consider a motion to authorize 
the City Manager to negotiate and execute a parking garage lease agreement with 
Cabarrus County and Concord Master Venture, LLC to provide Concord Master 
Venture, LLC evening and optional paid daytime parking spaces in the Cabarrus 
County Parking deck. 

E. Presentations of Petitions and Requests
1. Consider approving appropriation of Community Development Block Grant

(CDBG) Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act)
funding in the amount of $255,000 to purchase and rehabilitate 570 Vance Drive, 
NE from Habitat for Humanity Cabarrus; repair The Salvation Army food pantry 
facility in the amount of $25,000; and fund select public service agencies 
responding to immediate community needs related to COVID-19 in the amount 
of $349,865.  On September 11, 2020, official notification was issued for the City of 
Concord in regards to a special allocation of The Coronavirus Aid, Relief and 
Economic Security Act (CARES Act) (Public Law 116-136).  The CARES Act allocated 
supplemental Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding for grants to 
prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavirus. Additionally, the CARES Act 
provides flexibilities that make it easier to use the funds by granting waivers, removes 
the spending cap regulated for public service agencies and alternative requirements. 
Within the notification, Concord was allocated an additional $604,865 to respond to 
the growing effects of this historic public health crisis.  Based on guidance provided by 
HUD, staff received approval for the acquisition and rehabilitation of a facility to safely 
house persons temporarily who are either waiting for test results or need to quarantine. 
Staff also received approval to complete a repair in the food storage area of The 
Salvation Army building.  Due to the increase in persons seeking assistance because 
of COVID-19, HUD approved the request to repair the issue.  City staff will oversee 
the work to ensure compliance with HUD regulations.  In addition, staff worked with 
the four agencies listed in the attached report who are meeting immediate needs for 



5 

Concord residents, to assess their individual COVID-19 related needs totaling 
$324,865.  See the attached staff report for more information. 

Recommendation: Motion to approve appropriation of Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES 
Act) funding in the amount of $255,000 to purchase and rehabilitate 570 Vance 
Drive NE from Habitat for Humanity Cabarrus, repair The Salvation Army food 
pantry facility for $25,000 and fund select public service agencies responding to 
immediate community needs related to COVID-19 in the amount of $324,865. 

2. Consider a motion to approve the purchase of 487 & 489 Cook Street NW, from
Blue Ram Properties, LLC for $125,000 using City Affordable Housing funds.  As
staff was conducting a windshield survey, this property was identified as vacant.  After 
contacting the owner, who stated they were planning to sell the property, staff viewed 
the unoccupied home to assess condition.  The current owners had completed some 
repairs, but additional minor renovation will be needed.  Once all work is complete, 
ownership would be transferred to Concord Family Enrichment Association for 
continued maintenance and management.  Tax value of the home is $82,790.  An 
offer, contingent on Council approval, has been accepted by the owner for $125,000. 
The purchase would use the City's affordable housing allocation. 

Recommendation: Motion to approve the purchase of 487 & 489 Cook Street 
NW, from Blue Ram Properties, LLC for $125,000 using City Affordable Housing 
funds. 

3. Consider adopting a resolution to sale 2,949 square feet of 247 Crowell Drive NW
to Roenix, LLC for $500.00 for continued use as a driveway.  In early 2020, staff
was contacted by Roenix, LLC, located at 191 Crowell Drive NW, about purchasing a 
2,949 square feet area between the campus of ClearWater Arts Center & Studio and 
parking area of Roenix.  The subject area is currently being used as extended parking 
for the business and is maintained by Roenix (26 Industries).  Due to the location, the 
area has better access to the neighboring property than ClearWater.  The daily 
operations within the ClearWater campus will not be impacted.  Staff recommends 
selling this portion to Roenix, LLC for continued use as parking.    

Recommendation: Motion to adopt a resolution to sale 2,949 square feet of 247 
Crowell Drive NW to Roenix, LLC for $500.00 for continued use as a driveway and 
direct the City Clerk to publish a notice of proposed sale of the property. 

4. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract with
Talbert Bright and Ellington (TBE) to provide professional engineering, design
and bidding service for the hangar's taxilanes rehabilitation project.  The intent 
of this project is to mill 2 inches of existing P-401 bituminous concrete and place back 
2 inches of P-401 bituminous concrete over the taxilane pavement between all of the 
hangars. There are some areas between the hangars that are exhibiting alligator 
cracking which may require pavement reconstruction. These elements are dependent 
on the subsurface geotechnical investigation.  The Federal Aviation Administration 
(FAA), Memphis Airport District Office, has agreed to fund the project in FY21.  Total 
project cost is estimated at $2,717,875, which includes professional services and 
construction. Funding will be provided by FAA, NCDOT AVIATION and retained 
earnings. 

Recommendation: Motion to authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute 
a contract with Talbert Bright and Ellington (TBE) for the design and bidding 
services for hangar's taxilanes rehabilitation not to exceed $194,883. 

5. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract with
the Houston Galveston Area Cooperative Purchasing Program for the purchase
of 2 Pierce manufactured engine/pumper trucks.  By using the government to 
government purchasing cooperative for the purchase of the fire apparatus, the City is 
able to purchase the apparatus for a total cost of $1,307,368.00 (while providing a 
chassis with the latest safety features available). Using the pre-pay method along with 



6 

the duplicate truck purchase will result in a cost savings of $34,178.00.  The apparatus 
will be a replacement for Engine #7 and Engine #12 and is approved in the FY19-20 
budget in the amount of $1,400,000. The trucks currently have a 10-11 month build 
time. 

Recommendation: Motion to authorize the City Manager to negotiate and sign a 
contract for the purchase of the Pierce apparatus using the Houston Galveston 
Area purchasing cooperative. 

6. Consider authorizing the City Manager to sign a contract with Gillig LLC utilizing
the Piedmont Authority for Regional Transportation (PART) consortium contract
for the purchase of one (1) new 35' heavy duty hybrid electric diesel bus for the 
Rider system.  Concord is a member of the PART consortium bus procurement 
contract that was established earlier this year for heavy duty 35' and 40' diesel and 
hybrid diesel electric buses. Rider Transit is seeking to purchase one (1) heavy-duty 
35' hybrid bus using this contract. This new bus will expand our spare ratio of buses 
that was reduced with the establishment of the CCX route in 2018, allowing Rider 
Transit better operational and maintenance flexibility.  In June, Rider Transit was 
awarded a Surface Transportation Block Grant from the Cabarrus Rowan MPO 
specifically for the purpose securing this spare bus. Those funds ($580,000) will cover 
80% of the cost of this vehicle. The remaining 20% ($145,670) will be split 50/50 
between Concord and Kannapolis ($72,835 each). 

Recommendation: Motion to authorize the City Manager to sign a contract with 
Gillig LLC utilizing with a not to exceed maximum cost of $725,670. 

7. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract with
Fuller & CO. Construction, LLC, for the installation of the Spring St., SW Water
Line replacement.  The Spring St., SW Water Line replacement project consists of 
the installation of approximately 1832 linear feet of 8-in water distribution main along 
Spring St., SW between Miller Ave., SW and Fryling Ave., SW. The existing line was 
installed in 1948 and has reached the end of its useful life and needs to be replaced. 
The project was bid under the formal bidding process.  Bids were taken on October 
22, 2020 and 3 bids were received. The lowest responsible bidder was Fuller & CO. 
Construction, LLC, in the amount of $883,929.10, which is within budget. 

Recommendation: Motion to authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute 
a contract with Fuller & CO. Construction, LLC, in the amount of $883,929.10 for 
the installation of the Spring St., SW Water Line replacement. 

8. Consider adopting a resolution to convey a temporary construction easement to
TSH Development Company, LLC.  TSH Development Company is developing
apartments and townhomes on Weddington Road.  The City owns the site adjacent to 
their parcel on which the existing sewer main is located.  TSH Development Company, 
LLC needs a temporary construction easement in order to connect to the sewer to 
serve their site. 

Recommendation: Motion to adopt a resolution to convey a temporary 
construction easement to TSH Development Company, LLC. 

9. Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the Abandonment of Easement
across property at 107 Northchase Drive (PIN 4670-99-0483).  There is a
permanent easement recorded as Deed Book 13649 Page 229 to the City of Concord 
for utilities.  This easement was acquired by the developer for Wallace Meadows 
subdivision in order to serve their development with sewer.  The developer has 
requested that this easement be abandoned due to a sewer redesign.  A 
corresponding temporary construction easement is also requested to be abandoned. 

Recommendation: Motion to adopt a resolution authorizing the Abandonment of 
Easement. 

10. Consider approving a modification to the Interlocal Agreement with Cabarrus
County administering the Central Area Plan.  The City entered into an Interlocal
Agreement with Cabarrus County administering the Central Area Plan.  Under the



7 

Agreement, the City agreed not to extend utilities into certain areas east of the then 
exiting City limits except under certain limited circumstances.  Julia Walker has 
requested an exception to the Agreement in order to obtain water service for a 
proposed single-family home at 2925 Twinfield Drive (PIN 5640 52 1661). 

Recommendation: Motion to approved a modification of the Interlocal Agreement 
regarding the Central Area Plan to allow the provision of water to 2925 Twinfield 
Drive. 

11. Consider a Preliminary Application from Joel Corriher.  In accordance with City
Code Chapter 62, Joel Corriher has submitted a preliminary application to receive
sewer service outside the City limits.  The property is located at 172 Scalybark Trail.
The parcel is approximately 2.28 acres, zoned LDR and is currently vacant.  Public
sewer is not currently available to this parcel; however, it may be available in the future
due to a sewer extension to be installed by the developer of Annsborough Park. There
is not City water available to the parcel.  The applicant would like to know whether this
parcel will have access to the sewer once it is installed.  The recommendation would
be to include the same time limit as imposed on an adjoining property.

Recommendation: Motion to accept the preliminary application and have the 
owner proceed to the final application phase excluding annexation with the 
condition the property owner must connect to the sewer line in a period of one-
year from the date the City takes ownership of the sewer line. 

VII. Consent Agenda
A. Consider authorizing one (1) day (eight-hour period) of paid administrative leave

for a raffle or prize for co-workers participating in the City United Way campaign.
The United Way committee is requesting one day (eight-hour period) of paid
administrative leave to use as part of the fund-raising effort.  Funds raised go toward
helping local volunteers make local decisions to help local agencies address critical
needs right here in our community.

Recommendation:  Motion to authorize one (1) day (eight-hour period) of paid 
administrative leave for a raffle or prize for co-workers participating in the City 
United Way campaign. 

B. Consider authorizing the Housing Department to apply for the Emergency
Safety Funding Grant. If awarded, the grant funds will be used for Public Housing
units that are in need of emergency structural repair and/or environmental issues.

Recommendation:  Motion to authorize the Housing Department to apply for the 
Emergency Safety Funding Grant. 

C. Consider authorizing the City Manager to accept an award in the amount of
$28,597.50 under the FY 2020 Patrick Leahy Bulletproof Vest Partnership (BVP)
solicitation from the U.S. Department of Justice to purchase 93 bulletproof vests
over the next two years. The Concord Police Department received official notification
on October 19, 2020 for the Fiscal Year 2020 Patrick Leahy Bulletproof Vest
Partnership Grant from the United States Department of Justice. This grant reimburses
agencies up to 50% of the costs of new, uniquely fitted, bulletproof vests. The
department projects needing to purchase 93 vests over the next two years at a total
cost of $57,195, of which, the City would receive reimbursement of $28,597.50 under
grant guidelines.

Recommendation:  Motion to authorize the City Manager to accept an award in 
the amount of $28,597.50 under the FY 2020 Patrick Leahy Bulletproof Vest 
Partnership (BVP) solicitation from the U.S. Department of Justice to purchase 93 
bulletproof vests over the next two years. 

D. Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract with the North
Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) and execute all agreements
and contracts with the NCDOT, Public Transportation Division (PTD). Each year,
the City of Concord acts as lead agency for the Cabarrus-Rowan Urban Area



8 

Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) in an agreement with the North Carolina 
Department of Transportation (NCDOT) to receive Section 5303 Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) funds for Metropolitan Planning for Transit. The purpose of the 
Section 5303 funds are to assist in the development of improved public transportation 
facilities, equipment, techniques, and methods with the cooperation of public 
transportation companies both public and private; and to provide assistance to state 
and local governments and their instrumentals in financing such systems, to be 
operated by public and private transportation companies as determined by local 
needs; and various federal urban transportation planning regulations require that each 
urbanized area have a comprehensive, cooperative, and continuing transportation 
planning process. For FY21, the NCDOT has allocated $95,751 which covers the 80% 
federal share and the 10% state share. The remaining 10% share of $9,576 is the local 
share which is split between the City of Concord and the City of Kannapolis. The 
budget was appropriated during the adoption of the FY21 budget ordinance. 

Recommendation:  Motion to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract 
with the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) and execute all 
agreements and contracts with the NCDOT, Public Transportation Division (PTD). 

E. Consider accepting an Offer of Dedication of an access easement and approval
of the maintenance agreement. In accordance with the CDO Article 4, the following
access easements and maintenance agreements are now ready for approval: HSREI,
LLC (PIN 4599-10-9019) 7609 Hendrick Auto Plaza NW and Niblock Homes, LLC (PIN
5610-03-2595) 4001 Weddington Road.     Access easements and SCM maintenance
agreements are being offered by the owners.

Recommendation:  Motion to approve the maintenance agreements and accept 
the offers of dedication on the following properties: HSREI, LLC and Niblock 
Homes, LLC. 

F. Consider accepting an Offer of Infrastructure at Poplar Point Townhomes Phase
1 Map 1, Crosfit Vitality, Meadows Corporation, Cabarrus Charter Academy, Park
View Estates Ph 3 Map 2, Bedford Farms Ph 4, and Ascendum Machinery. In
accordance with the CDO Article 5 improvements have been constructed in
accordance with the City’s regulations and specifications.  The following is being
offered for acceptance:   94' of 12" water main, 2,904' of 8" water main, 311' of 6" water
main, 25' of 4" water main, 849' of 2" water main, 4 hydrants, 4,952' of 8" sewer line,
and 24 manholes.

Recommendation:  Motion to accept the offer of infrastructure in the following 
subdivisions and sites: Poplar Point Townhomes Phase 1 Map 1, Crosfit Vitality, 
Meadows Corporation, Cabarrus Charter Academy, Park View Estates Ph 3 Map 
2, Bedford Farms Ph 4, and Ascendum Machinery. 

G. Consider adopting an amendment to the Transportation project fund to
recognize developer contributions for the Poplar Tent/Harris project. The
Oaklawn Developer's agreement included a developer contribution in lieu of street
improvements related to the Poplar Tent/Harris project.  Staff is requesting that a
project be approved to recognize the contribution of $275,000.

Recommendation:  Motion to adopt an amendment to the Transportation project 
fund to recognize developer contributions for the Poplar Tent/Harris project. 

H. Consider approving a budget amendment as a result of additional Capital Funds
Awarded by HUD for the Housing Department. The Concord Housing Department
received an additional allocation of $1,977 from HUD for the Housing Capital Fund
Program.  A budget amendment is needed to allow these funds to be spent.

Recommendation: Motion to adopt the budget amendment for the Housing 
Capital Fund 

I. Consider adopting a general fund budget ordinance amendment to recognize a
workmen's compensation reimbursement. The City has received a workmen's
compensation reimbursement in the amount of $12,500.  Staff is requesting that these



9 

funds be placed back in the police department operating budget since the original 
claim was paid from that department. 

Recommendation: Motion to adopt a general fund budget ordinance amendment 
to recognize a workmen's compensation reimbursement. 

J. Consider adopting a budget amendment to correct the additional CARES
funding for the Housing Choice Voucher program to reflect actual receipts. In
September 2020, City Council approved a budget amendment when accepting the
additional CARES funding award that was $6,000 more than actual receipts.  This
amendment will correct the budget to reflect actual receipts from HUD in the amount
of $82,742.

Recommendation:  Motion to adopt a budget amendment to correct the additional 
CARES funding for the Housing Choice Voucher program to reflect actual receipts. 

K. Consider approving a change to the classification/compensation system to
include the following classification: Grant Specialist. The addition of this new
classification will increase the ability to attract and retain employees and provide
enhanced expertise for the City of Concord.

Recommendation:  Motion to approve the addition of Grant Specialist (Grade 
208) with a salary range of $40,838.40 (minimum) - $54,110.86 (midpoint) -
$67,383.37 (maximum).

L. Receive quarterly report on water and wastewater extension permits issued by
the Engineering Department in the third quarter of 2020. In accordance with City
Code Chapter 62, attached is a report outlining the water and wastewater extension
permits that were issued between July 1, 2020 and September 30, 2020.

Recommendation:  Motion to receive the third quarter water and wastewater 
extension report for 2020. 

M. Consider accepting the required annual information on the Identity Theft
Program. Staff is required to review the City's Identity Theft Detection and Prevention
Program each year to ensure that the City is in compliance and also to ensure that the
policy remains current. Staff is also required to disclose to City Council any identity
theft issues. Staff has reviewed the current policy and has found no issues that need
to be addressed.  The identity theft instances over the last year are attached for your
review.

Recommendation:  Motion to accept the annual report on the City's Identity Theft 
Program. 

N. Consider acceptance of the Tax Office reports for the month of September 2020.
The Tax Collector is responsible for periodic reporting of revenue collections for the
Tax Collection Office.

Recommendation:  Motion to accept the Tax Office collection reports for the 
month of September 2020. 

O. Consider approval of Tax Releases/Refunds from the Tax Collection Office for
the month of September 2020. G.S. 105-381 allows for the refund and/or release of
tax liability due to various reasons by the governing body.  A listing of various
refund/release requests is presented for your approval, primarily due to overpayments,
situs errors and/or valuation changes.

Recommendation:  Motion to approve the Tax releases/refunds for the month of 
September 2020. 

P. Receive monthly report on status of investments as of September 30, 2020. A
resolution adopted by the governing body on 12/9/1991 directs the Finance Director
to report on the status of investments each month.

Recommendation:  Motion to accept the monthly report on investments. 

VIII. Matters not on the agenda
• TAC
• MTC



10 

• Centralina Regional Council
• Concord/Kannapolis Transit Commission
• WSACC
• Public Art Advisory Committee
• Concord Family Enrichment Association
• PTT Committee
• Barber Scotia Community Task Force Committee

IX. General comments by Council of non-business nature
X. Closed Session (if needed)
XI. Adjournment

*IN ACCORDANCE WITH ADA REGULATIONS, PLEASE NOTE THAT ANYONE WHO NEEDS
AN ACCOMMODATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING SHOULD NOTIFY THE CITY
CLERK AT (704) 920-5205 AT LEAST FORTY-EIGHT HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING.



 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CONCORD, NORTH CAROLINA 
AUTHORIZING THE NEGOTIATION OF AN INSTALLMENT FINANCING CONTRACT AND 
PROVIDING FOR CERTAIN OTHER RELATED MATTERS THERETO  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Concord, North Carolina (the “City”) is a municipal corporation duly 

created and validly existing under the Constitution, statutes and laws of the State (the “State”);  
 

WHEREAS, the City has the power, pursuant to the General Statutes of North Carolina to (1) 
enter into installment contracts in order to purchase, or finance or refinance the purchase of, real or 
personal property and to finance or refinance the construction or repair of fixtures or improvements on 
real property and (2) create a security interest in some or all of the property financed or refinanced to 
secure repayment of the purchase price; 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City (the “City Council”) hereby determines that it is in the 

best interest of the City to (1) enter into an installment financing contract (the “Contract”) with a 
financial institution to be determined (the “Bank”) in order to pay the costs of clearing/grading the site of 
a new fire station and construction of the facility and associated furnishings (the “Project”) and (2) in 
order to provide security for the City’s obligations under the Contract, grant to the Bank a security interest 
under a deed of trust, security agreement and fixture filing (the “Deed of Trust”) on the site of the Project; 
 

WHEREAS, the City staff has retained (1) Parker Poe Adams & Bernstein LLP, as special counsel 
(“Special Counsel”) and (2) First Tryon Advisors, as financial advisor, in connection with the proposed 
installment financing;  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council hereby determines that the Project is essential to the City’s proper, 

efficient and economic operation and to the general health and welfare of its inhabitants; that the Project 
will provide an essential use and will permit the City to carry out public functions that it is authorized by 
law to perform; and that entering into the Contract and Deed of Trust is necessary and expedient for the 
City by virtue of the findings presented herein; 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby determines that such cost of the Project exceeds the amount 
that can be prudently raised from currently available appropriations, unappropriated fund balances and 
non-voted bonds that could be issued by the City in the current fiscal year pursuant to Article V, Section 4 
of the Constitution of the State; 

 
WHEREAS, although the cost of financing the Project pursuant to the Contract and the Deed of 

Trust is expected to exceed the cost of financing the Project pursuant to a bond financing for the same 
undertaking, the City hereby determines that the cost of financing the Project pursuant to the Contract and 
Deed of Trust and the obligations of the City thereunder are preferable to a general obligation bond 
financing or revenue bond financing for several reasons, including but not limited to the following: (1) the 
cost of a special election necessary to approve a general obligation bond financing, as required by the 
laws of the State, would result in the expenditure of significant funds; (2) the time required for a general 
obligation bond election would cause an unnecessary delay which would thereby decrease the financial 
benefits of the Project; and (3) insufficient revenues are produced by the Project so as to permit a revenue 
bond financing; 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council hereby determines that the estimated cost of financing the Project 

pursuant to the Contract and the Deed of Trust allows the City to finance the Project at a favorable 
interest rate currently available in the financial marketplace and on terms advantageous to the City and 

16



reasonably compares with an estimate of similar costs under a bond financing for the same undertaking as 
a result of the findings delineated in the above preambles; 

 
WHEREAS, the increase in taxes, if any, necessary to service the installment payments falling due 

under the Contract will not be excessive; 
 
WHEREAS, Special Counsel will render an opinion to the effect that entering into the Contract 

and the transactions contemplated thereby are authorized by law; 
 
WHEREAS, no deficiency judgment may be rendered against the City in any action for its breach 

of the Contract, and the taxing power of the City is not and may not be pledged in any way directly or 
indirectly or contingently to secure any money due under the Contract; 

 
WHEREAS, the City is not in default under any of its debt service obligations; 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s budget process and Annual Budget Ordinance are in compliance with the 

Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act, and external auditors have determined that the City has 
conformed with generally accepted accounting principles as applied to governmental units in preparing its 
Annual Budget Ordinance; 

 
WHEREAS, past audit reports of the City indicate that its debt management and contract 

obligation payment policies have been carried out in strict compliance with the law, and the City has not 
been censured by the Local Government Commission of North Carolina (the “LGC”), external auditors 
or any other regulatory agencies in connection with such debt management and contract obligation 
payment policies; 

 
WHEREAS, a public hearing on the Contract, the Deed of Trust and the Project, after publication 

of a notice with respect to such public hearing, was held on October 8, 2020 and approval of the LGC 
with respect to entering the Contract must be received; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CONCORD, NORTH CAROLINA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Authorization to Negotiate the Contract and the Deed of Trust That the City 

Manager and the Finance Director, with advice from the City Attorney, Special Counsel and the City’s 
financial advisor, are hereby authorized and directed to negotiate on behalf of the City (1) the financing of 
the Project for a principal amount of approximately $6,000,000 under the Contract to be entered into with 
the Bank in accordance with the provisions of Section 160A-20 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, 
as amended, and (2) the provision of a security interest under the Deed of Trust in the City’s fee simple 
interest in the site of the Project, together with all improvements and fixtures located thereon, as may be 
required by the Bank providing the funds to the City under the Contract to secure the City’s obligations 
thereunder.  
 

Section 2. Application to LGC.  The Finance Director or her designee is hereby directed to 
file with the LGC an application for its approval of the Contract and all relevant transactions 
contemplated thereby on a form prescribed by the LGC and to state in such application such facts and to 
attach thereto such exhibits regarding the City and its financial condition as may be required by the LGC. 

 
Section 3. Approval of the Financing Team.  Parker Poe Adams & Bernstein LLP has been 

retained by the City to serve as special counsel and First Tryon Advisors been retained to serve as 
financial advisor.  The City Manager and the Finance Director, with advice from the City Attorney, are 

17



hereby authorized to retain the assistance of other professionals as they deem necessary and desirable to 
carry out the intention of this Resolution. 

 
Section 4. Ratification.  All actions of the City and its officials, whether previously or 

hereafter taken in effectuating the proposed financing as described herein, are hereby ratified, authorized 
and approved. 

Section 5. Repealer.  All motions, orders, resolutions and parts thereof in conflict herewith 
are hereby repealed. 

 
Section 6. Effective Date.  This Resolution is effective on the date of its adoption. 
 

Read, approved and adopted this 8th day of October, 2020. 
 
 CITY COUNCIL 
       CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA 
ATTEST: 
 
       ________________________________ 
       William C. Dusch, Mayor 
__________________________   
Kim J. Deason, City Clerk  
 

 

18



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA  ) 
    ) SS: 
CITY OF CONCORD   ) 
 

I, Kim Deason, City Clerk of the City of Concord, North Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that 
the foregoing is a true and exact copy of a resolution titled “RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF CONCORD, NORTH CAROLINA AUTHORIZING THE NEGOTIATION 
OF AN INSTALLMENT FINANCING CONTRACT AND PROVIDING FOR CERTAIN OTHER RELATED 
MATTERS THERETO” adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina in regular 
session duly convened on the 8th day of October, 2020, as recorded in the minutes of the City Council of 
the City of Concord, North Carolina. 

 
WITNESS, my hand and the seal of the City of Concord, North Carolina, this the ___ day of 

____________, 2020. 
 
 
(SEAL) 

  
Kim Deason, City Clerk 
City of Concord, North Carolina 

 
 
  
 
 

 

19



7.7.4.E 
 
E. Special Standards for a Townhouse 

Side yards are not required for interior townhouses, but street and rear 
yards shall be provided, and building separation requirements shall be 
maintained for all townhouse structures. 
  
1. 1. The maximum number of units allowed in a single 

building is eight (8). 
2.  Front loaded townhomes are prohibited on streets which are 

classified (or proposed to be classified) as collector or higher.   
Front loaded townhomes are defined as units which provide a 
vehicular access point to a street, on the same side as the front 
façade.    

 

7.8.18 MULTI-FAMILY BUILDING STANDARDS 

A. Building Length. In attached multi-family projects, buildings longer 
shall not exceed 1860 feet in length. Building facades should be 
broken up to give the appearance of a collection of smaller buildings. 
Long, unbroken building facades and simple box forms are prohibited.  

 

20



1 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE 
OF THE CITY OF CONCORD, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Concord, North Carolina pursuant to the authority 
conferred by the North Carolina General Statute §160A-364 enacted an Official Zoning 
Ordinance for the City of Concord, North Carolina and the Area of Extraterritorial 
Jurisdiction on July 28, 1977; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Concord, North Carolina pursuant to the authority 
conferred by North Carolina General Statute §§160A-364 through §§160A-366 and 160A-
381 through 160A-392 may from time to time as necessary amend, supplement, change, 
modify or repeal certain of its zoning regulations and restrictions and zone boundaries; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Concord, North Carolina pursuant to the authority 
conferred by North Carolina General Statute 160A-381 through 160A-394 does hereby 
recognize a need to amend the text of certain articles of the City of Concord 
Development Ordinance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, 
North Carolina: 
 
SECTION 1: That the following section of Concord Development Ordinance (CDO) Article 
7 “Base Zoning Districts,” Section 7.7 “Single Family Site Design Standards”, Subsection 
7.7.4.E, “Site Elements – Special Standards for a Townhouse” be amended to the 
following: 
 
E. Special Standards for a Townhouse 

Side yards are not required for interior townhouses, but street and rear yards shall 
be provided, and building separation requirements shall be maintained for all 
townhouse structures. 
  
1. The maximum number of units allowed in a single building is eight (8). 
2. Front loaded townhomes are prohibited on streets which are classified (or 
proposed to be classified) as collector or higher.   Front loaded townhomes are 
defined as units which provide a vehicular access point to a street, on the same 
side as the front façade.    

 
SECTION 2: That the following section of Concord Development Ordinance (CDO) Article 
7 “Base Zoning Districts,” Section 7.8 “Standards For Multifamily Developments”, 
Subsection 7.8.18.A, “Building Length” be amended to the following: 
 
A. Building Length. In attached multi-family projects, buildings shall not exceed 180 

feet in length. Building facades should be broken up to give the appearance of a 
collection of smaller buildings. Long, unbroken building facades and simple box 
forms are prohibited.  

21



2 
 

 
 

 

SECTION 3: That all remaining Articles and Sections of this Ordinance be renumbered to 
include the newly created Articles and Sections.   

 

SECTION 4: That this Ordinance be effective immediately upon adoption. 

 

Adopted in this November 12th , 2020. 

 

        CITY COUNCIL 

        CITY OF CONCORD 

        NORTH CAROLINA 

 

 

ATTEST:      _________________________          

William C. Dusch, Mayor 

______________________________ 

Kim Deason, City Clerk 

         

 

__________________________ 

VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney                            

22



1 
 

                                                                                                                      
  
DATE:   October 8th, 2020 
 
CASE: TA-04-20 - Staff Report for Text Amendments the Historic 

Handbook 
 “Chapter 5 – Section 6 “Porches” 
 
PREPARED BY: Starla Rogers – Planning and Development Manager 
  
BACKGROUND 
The structures within Concord’s three Historic Districts are classifed as either “pivotal,” 
“contributing,” “fill,” or “intrustive.” The majority of the structures are classifed as 
contributing.  Pivotal and contributing designations identify the most historically impactful 
structures within the districts.  These structures are the greatest assets to the fabric of the 
districts’ historic significance.  The Historic Handbook describes changes that are 
appropriate or inappropriate based on those four designations. 
 

Over the past several years, the Historic Preservation Commisson has received several 
requests to utilize “composite materials” for projects within the Historic District.  These 
composite products vary in composition and are designed to replicate historic materials, 
such as wood, but have a greater longevity.  Currently, the Historic Handbook discourages, 
or in some circumstances disallows, the utilization of composite materials on structures 
designated as “pivotal” or “contributing.”  Their use, however, may be allowed on fill and 
intrusive structures. 
 

A recent request resulted in the Commission’s desire to consider composite materials on 
porch and deck floors, for historic structures within all property designations, on a case by 
case basis.  At the direction of the Commission, Staff conducted research of other 
municipalites and spoke with the State Historic Preservation Office concerning the 
allowance of composite material on porch and deck floors. The overall conclusion was that 
composite material should be discouraged.  However, if the Commission decided to allow 
composite material, it should be approved sparingly and only when at least one of four 
circumstances is present: 1) unavailability of historic materials, 2) unavailability of a 
skilled craftsman to reproduce the historic material, 3) inherent flaws in original materials 
or design, and 4) code-required changes. A text amendment allowing for the use of 
composite materials in the above referenced circumsances, has been drafted and attached 
for the Commission’s review. 
 

The Historic Preseration Commission voted unanimously at their September 9th meeting 
to forward this text amendment to the Planning and Zoning Commission, requesting that 
the Planning and Zoning Commission forward the Historic Handbook amendment to City 
Council with a recommendation of approval.   
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission voted unanimously at their September 15th meeting 
to forward the amendment to City Council with a reccomendation of approval. 
 

23



 1  

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE AND HISTORIC HANDBOOK 
OF THE CITY OF CONCORD, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Concord, North Carolina pursuant to the authority 
conferred by the North Carolina General Statute §160A-364 enacted an Official 
Zoning Ordinance for the City of Concord, North Carolina and the Area of 
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction on July 28, 1977; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Concord, North Carolina pursuant to the authority 
conferred by North Carolina General Statute §§160A-364 through §§160A-366 
and 160A-381 through 160A-392 may from time to time as necessary amend, 
supplement, change, modify or repeal certain of its zoning regulations and 
restrictions and zone boundaries; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Concord, North Carolina pursuant to the authority 
conferred by North Carolina General Statute 160A-381 through 160A-394 does 
hereby recognize a need to amend the text of certain articles of the City of 
Concord zoning Ordinance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Concord, North Carolina: 
 
SECTION  1:  That the Historic Handbook Historic Handbook “Chapter 5 – 
Section 6: “Porches,” incorporated into the Concord Development Ordinance by 
reference (CDO Article 9.8), be repealed and adopted in the form of the 
attached document. 
 
SECTION 2: That all remaining Articles and Sections of this Ordinance be re-
numbered to include the newly created Articles and Sections. 
 
SECTION 3: That this Ordinance be effective immediately upon adoption. 
 
Adopted in this 8th day of October 2020. 
 
        CITY COUNCIL 
        CITY OF CONCORD 
        NORTH CAROLINA 
 
ATTEST:      _________________________          

                                                        William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 

______________________________ 
Kim Deason, City Clerk 
         

__________________________ 
       VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

24



Chapter 5 – Section 6:  PORCHES 
 

37 
 

Chapter 5 – Section 6: 
PORCHES 
 

 
Porches which are original or are compatible 
with the design of the structure should be 
retained.  Replacement of original wooden 
porch columns with metal substitutes should 
be avoided. 
 
The enclosure of original porches, particularly 
front porches, should be avoided.  Enclosing 
original side and rear porches with solid walls 
should also be avoided.  However, their 
conversion to “sun parlors” may be 
appropriate in some instances.  Windows in 
these enclosures should be smaller, multi-
paned, and compatible with existing windows.  
Larger expanses of glass are not appropriate. 
 
Original steps should be retained and handrails 
should match the railing on the porch. The 
replacement of wooden steps with precast 
concrete should be avoided. 
 
Stairs and fire escapes are often required by 
North Carolina State Building Code when 
single family residences are converted to 
multifamily or nonresidential uses.  To the 
greatest extent possible, stairs and fire escapes 

should be located where they are not visible from the street. 
 

Decks are generally not appropriate for homes within the districts.  However, when decks are 
constructed, they should he located in the rear yard only, and should not project into the interior 
side yard.  Decks should be avoided on corner lots, since their view can not be completely 
obscured from both streets.  Rails on decks should match those on the porches.  Lattice and 
shrubbery around the foundations enhance the appearance of decks, and should be utilized when 
possible. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

25



Chapter 5 – Section 6:  PORCHES 
 

38 
 

 
 

DESIGN GUIDELINES AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

1. Alterations to original porches that have no historic basis are not appropriate. Repair original 
materials if possible. If replacement is necessary, replace with matching material. 
 

2. Composite/substitute materials may be approved for Pivotal and Contributing structures by 
the Historic Preservation Commission for porch and deck flooring on a case-by-case basis, 
provided that one of the following four circumstances are present: unavailability of historic 
materials, unavailability of a skilled craftsman to reproduce the historic material, inherent 
flaws in original materials or design, and code-required changes. 

 
3. Substitute materials shall be compatible with historic materials in appearance, physical 

properties, and general installation. 
 

4. Enclosure of side or rear porches and balconies is discouraged. If enclosure of a side or rear 
porch is required for a new use, design the enclosure so that the historic character and 
features of the porch are preserved. 
  

5. Decks may only be located in the rear of the property. 
 

6. Design decks to be compatible in material, color, and detail with the historic building. 
 

7. Construct decks so that they can be removed in the future without damaging the historic 
structure. 
 

8. Construct decks so that there is the least possible loss of historic fabric. Also, ensure that 
character-defining features of the historic building are not obscured, damaged, or destroyed.  
 

9. Inset decks from the corner of the primary structure where necessary in order to prevent 
visibility from the street. 
 

10. Handicap accessible ramps should be temporary structures and able to be removed once no 
longer needed.  Ramps deemed appropriate by a Certificate of Appropriateness should not 
detract from the aesthetic and architectural character of the principle dwelling unit nor should 
the removal of a ramp jeopardize any portion of the unit’s structural integrity.  To the 
greatest extent feasible, handicap ramps should be located where they are not visible from the 
street.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

26



 1  

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE AND HISTORIC HANDBOOK 
OF THE CITY OF CONCORD, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Concord, North Carolina pursuant to the authority 
conferred by the North Carolina General Statute §160A-364 enacted an Official 
Zoning Ordinance for the City of Concord, North Carolina and the Area of 
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction on July 28, 1977; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Concord, North Carolina pursuant to the authority 
conferred by North Carolina General Statute §§160A-364 through §§160A-366 
and 160A-381 through 160A-392 may from time to time as necessary amend, 
supplement, change, modify or repeal certain of its zoning regulations and 
restrictions and zone boundaries; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Concord, North Carolina pursuant to the authority 
conferred by North Carolina General Statute 160A-381 through 160A-394 does 
hereby recognize a need to amend the text of certain articles of the City of 
Concord zoning Ordinance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Concord, North Carolina: 
 
SECTION  1:  That the Historic Handbook Historic Handbook “Chapter 5 – 
Section 6: “Porches,” incorporated into the Concord Development Ordinance by 
reference (CDO Article 9.8), be repealed and adopted in the form of the 
attached document. 
 
SECTION 2: That all remaining Articles and Sections of this Ordinance be re-
numbered to include the newly created Articles and Sections. 
 
SECTION 3: That this Ordinance be effective immediately upon adoption. 
 
Adopted in this 12th day of November 2020. 
 
        CITY COUNCIL 
        CITY OF CONCORD 
        NORTH CAROLINA 
 
ATTEST:      _________________________          

                                                        William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 

______________________________ 
Kim Deason, City Clerk 
         

__________________________ 
       VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

27



1 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE AND HISTORIC HANDBOOK 
OF THE CITY OF CONCORD, NORTH CAROLINA 

WHEREAS, the City of Concord, North Carolina pursuant to the authority 
conferred by the North Carolina General Statute §160A-364 enacted an Official 
Zoning Ordinance for the City of Concord, North Carolina and the Area of 
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction on July 28, 1977; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Concord, North Carolina pursuant to the authority 
conferred by North Carolina General Statute §§160A-364 through §§160A-366 
and 160A-381 through 160A-392 may from time to time as necessary amend, 
supplement, change, modify or repeal certain of its zoning regulations and 
restrictions and zone boundaries; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Concord, North Carolina pursuant to the authority 
conferred by North Carolina General Statute 160A-381 through 160A-394 does 
hereby recognize a need to amend the text of certain articles of the City of 
Concord zoning Ordinance. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Concord, North Carolina: 

SECTION  1:  That the Historic Handbook Historic Handbook “Chapter 5 – 
Section 6: “Porches,” incorporated into the Concord Development Ordinance by 
reference (CDO Article 9.8), be repealed and adopted in the form of the 
attached document. 

SECTION 2: That all remaining Articles and Sections of this Ordinance be re-
numbered to include the newly created Articles and Sections. 

SECTION 3: That this Ordinance be effective immediately upon adoption. 

Adopted in this 12th day of November 2020. 

CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF CONCORD 
NORTH CAROLINA 

ATTEST: _________________________      
    William C. Dusch, Mayor 

______________________________ 
Kim Deason, City Clerk 

__________________________ 
VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

28



Chapter 5 – Section 6:  PORCHES 

37 

Chapter 5 – Section 6: 
PORCHES 

Porches which are original or are compatible 
with the design of the structure should be 
retained.  Replacement of original wooden 
porch columns with metal substitutes should 
be avoided. 

The enclosure of original porches, particularly 
front porches, should be avoided.  Enclosing 
original side and rear porches with solid walls 
should also be avoided.  However, their 
conversion to “sun parlors” may be 
appropriate in some instances.  Windows in 
these enclosures should be smaller, multi-
paned, and compatible with existing windows. 
Larger expanses of glass are not appropriate. 

Original steps should be retained and handrails 
should match the railing on the porch. The 
replacement of wooden steps with precast 
concrete should be avoided. 

Stairs and fire escapes are often required by 
North Carolina State Building Code when 
single family residences are converted to 
multifamily or nonresidential uses.  To the 
greatest extent possible, stairs and fire escapes 

should be located where they are not visible from the street. 

Decks are generally not appropriate for homes within the districts.  However, when decks are 
constructed, they should he located in the rear yard only, and should not project into the interior 
side yard.  Decks should be avoided on corner lots, since their view can not be completely 
obscured from both streets.  Rails on decks should match those on the porches.  Lattice and 
shrubbery around the foundations enhance the appearance of decks, and should be utilized when 
possible. 

29



Chapter 5 – Section 6:  PORCHES 

38 

DESIGN GUIDELINES AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. Alterations to original porches that have no historic basis are not appropriate. Repair original
materials if possible. If replacement is necessary, replace with matching material.

2. Composite/substitute materials may be approved for Pivotal and Contributing structures by
the Historic Preservation Commission for porch and deck flooring on a case-by-case basis,
provided that one of the following four circumstances are present: unavailability of historic
materials, unavailability of a skilled craftsman to reproduce the historic material, inherent
flaws in original materials or design, and code-required changes.

3. Substitute materials shall be compatible with historic materials in appearance, physical
properties, and general installation.

4. Enclosure of side or rear porches and balconies is discouraged. If enclosure of a side or rear
porch is required for a new use, design the enclosure so that the historic character and
features of the porch are preserved.

5. Decks may only be located in the rear of the property.

6. Design decks to be compatible in material, color, and detail with the historic building.

7. Construct decks so that they can be removed in the future without damaging the historic
structure.

8. Construct decks so that there is the least possible loss of historic fabric. Also, ensure that
character-defining features of the historic building are not obscured, damaged, or destroyed.

9. Inset decks from the corner of the primary structure where necessary in order to prevent
visibility from the street.

10. Handicap accessible ramps should be temporary structures and able to be removed once no
longer needed.  Ramps deemed appropriate by a Certificate of Appropriateness should not
detract from the aesthetic and architectural character of the principle dwelling unit nor should
the removal of a ramp jeopardize any portion of the unit’s structural integrity.  To the
greatest extent feasible, handicap ramps should be located where they are not visible from the
street.

30



Meeting Date 
October 8, 2020 
 
Background 
 
The subject property consists of +/- 56.83 acres on the northeast corner of Rocky River 
Road and Lower Rocky River Road.  The property is also adjacent to the southwest 
corner of the Mills at Rocky River project, and west of CC Griffin Middle School.  The 
subject petition is a resubmittal for a previously considered site.  The 2019 petition was 
submitted prior to the adoption of the Conservation Subdivision standards and the 
request was tabled until the ordinance could be adopted.  After the Conservation 
Subdivision Ordinance was adopted, the petitioner provided details on the intended use 
of the property, which included 113 homes on the +/- 56.83 acres.  Council held a public 
hearing on March 12th, 2020 and voted to decline annexation.  Subsequently, the 
applicant submitted a petition for annexation for the same property, demonstrating 106 
homes.  Council declined the annexation on July 9th, 2020.  The current petitioner, who 
worked in coordination with the petitioner from the previous annexation requests, is 
proposing annexation for the purpose of developing the property with 106 homes on 
the site as previously designed.  The petitioner is willing, if annexed, to add a condition 
to the rezoning request, stating that the neighborhood would be age restricted by deed. 
 
As with all annexations, staff contacts both internal City departments and external 
agencies for input.  Previously, the Concord Fire Department stated that due to the 
location of the site in comparison to the primary corporate limits and the distance to 
nearest fire station, it would be necessary to contract out fire services for the site if 
annexation were approved.  Fire has recalculated the distance and believes they can 
serve the site without outside contracts.  However, the Police Department maintains 
that annexation would “stretch out the boundaries of Baker District and dilute resources 
further away from the more populated areas of that district,” and that if annexed, 
consideration should be given to future resource needs.  City Staff also recognizes the 
sizeable distance between the furthest point of the subject property to the City’s 
primary contiguous corporate limits.  Annexation of the subject property would extend 
the furthest point of the City’s satellite corporate limits (The Mills at Rocky River) further 
south, expanding the required municipal service area. Cabarrus County Schools has 
stated that if the development is age restricted, it will have little impact on enrollment 
numbers. 
 
Should annexation be adopted, the petitioner plans to request a rezoning to the CS 
(Conservation Subdivision) zoning classification.  Although site plans are not required for 
annexation hearings, the petitioner has provided a preliminary site schematic which is 
attached to Council’s packet materials, indicating a maximum of 106 lots at 1.87 du/a.  A 
preliminary review indicates that the plan can meet the minimum standards set forth 
for the CS zoning district.  If annexation is adopted, the plan will be required to go 
through technical site plan review prior to rezoning.  The City is required to place a 
zoning classification on all annexed property within 60 days of municipal incorporation.  
Should this or any property be annexed and the plan be insufficient for review by the 
Planning & Zoning Commission by that the required 60 days, City Staff will prepare an 

31



administrative zoning request.  In this instance, staff would recommend the RE 
(Residential Estate) zoning district. 
 
The property is currently zoned CR (Countryside Residential) in Cabarrus County which 
permits a density of up to one (1) dwelling unit per acre.  The subject property is also 
located within the Central Area Plan’s Very Low-Density development guide allowing 
density up to 1 unit per two acres or 2 units per acre with additional development 
standards.  Furthermore, the subject property is also within the 2030 Land Use Plan’s 
Suburban Neighborhood Land Use Category and Conservation District Character Area, 
also requiring enhanced development standards.   

 
CS (Conservation Subdivision Standard Highlights) 

1. Inventory and mapping of existing resources (including but not limited to): 
• soil type locations 
• hydrologic characteristics 
• trees with a caliper of more than thirty-two (32) inches 
• known critical habitat areas 
• views of the site 
• primary conservation areas 
• secondary conservation areas 
• existing forests of at least one contiguous acre, containing five trees or 

more per acre measuring 32”DBH 
• at least 80 percent of residential lots shall abut common open space 
• heritage tree preservation 
• scenic view protection 

 

32



TR
IFE

CT
A C

T

POMPANO

RD

SE
WA

LL
AV

E S
W

ROCKY
RIVER RD

RAYLEE

AVE SW

BAILIFFCT SW

CA
TT

AI
L

CT
 SW

DOVER
MILL

DR
SW

NEWSOME
CT SW

MI
LL

TO
WN

CT
 SW

VAN BUREN
AVE SW

MILLSTONE
CIR SW

MILL
CR

EE
K

LN
SW

WI
NT

ER
GA

RD
EN

 DRMOSS CREEK DR

SEQUOIAHILLS DR

SA
ND

OW
N 

CT

DRAKE MILL
LN SW

HO
LD

EN
AV

E S
W

LOWER ROCKY

RIVER RD

ELBENS
LN SW

GRIST MILLDR SW

SC
AR

BR
OU

GH
CI

R
SW

PEMBROOK RD

PHARR MILL RD

AD
DI

SO
N 

DR

PA
UL

LIN
KE

R P
L

GRIFFINS
GATE DR SW

PINE GROVE CHURCH RDSource: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS,
USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

²

Subject Property 
Map

ANX-11-20 

Bob Bennett

NE Corner of the 
Rocky River Rd & 
Lower Rocky River 
Road Intersection

PINs:
5527-41-6442,
5527-40-6497,
5527-40-1148,
5526-39-8913

Source: City of Concord
Planning Department

These maps and products are designed for general
reference only and data contained herein is subject 
to change. The City Of Concord, it's employees or 
agents make no warranty of merchantability or fitness 
for any purpose, expressed or implied, and assume no 
legal responsibility for the information contained therein. 
Data used is from multiple sources with various scales 
and accuracy. Additional research such as field surveys 
may be necessary to determine actual conditions.

Disclaimer
Legend

Subject Property
Concord City Limits

33



Section 8 Submittal Deadlines 

Petitions for annexation are accepted by Planning & Neighborhood Development at any time. Find annexation schedule here: 

h!!Qs://www.concordnc.gov/De12artments/Planning/Planning-Services/Annexations The annexation will become effective 
immediately upon adoption of the annexation ordinance at the scheduled public hearing unless notified otherwise by the 
City Clerk. 

(The City reserves the right to make exceptions to this tentative processing schedule for any reason, including when outstanding staff 

comments need to be addressed.) 

Section C Summary Information / Metes and Bounds Descriptions 

Development Project Name Lower Rocky River Road Properties 

Street Address 7785 Rocky River Road 

Cabarrus County Property Identification Number(s) list below 

P.I.N. 5527-41-6442-0000 P.I.N. 5527-40-6497 -0000 P.I.N. 5527-40-1148-0000

P.I.N. 5526-39-8913-0000 P.I.N. P.I.N.

Acreage of Annexation Site 56.88      56.83 

Annexation site is requesting connection to City of Concord Water X and/or Sewer X 

Person to contact if there are questions about the petition 

Name Bob Bennett - Stanley Martin Homes 

Address 13310 South Ridge Drive, Charlotte, NC 28273 

Phone 980-293-2684 I Fax# Email BennettRM@StanleyMartin.com 

Written metes and bounds description of property to be annexed 
Attach additional sheets if necessary. Petitioners must submit an electronic Microsoft Word version. Petitioners must email an 

electronic copy to roqerss@concordnc gov 

Previously Submitted 

_____

34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



STATE Of NORTH C,till.OLINA SECOND AMENDMENT TO 
AMENDED AND RESTATED 

COUNTY OFMECKL 1 URG TRUST AGREEMENT 

THIS SECOND AMENTMENT TO AMENDED A D REST ATED TR ST 
GREEME is executed this 24th day of May, 2012, by AN~ w. Tn~O of Mecklenburg 

County, orth Carolina, who is referred to in this S.;;!cond Amendment in the first person. 

I enter d into an Amended and R estated Trust Agre ment dated the 21 st day of July, 
2004, with ANNE W. TINO, Trustee. I executed a First Amendment to Amended and Restated 
Trust Agreement on the 14th day of December, 2004. 

nder Article X of the trust instrument, which Article was amended pursuant to the First 
Amendment to Amended and Restated Trust Agreement on December 14, 2004, I reserved the 
right at any time to amend th trust in whole or in part by notice delivered to the Trustee. I now 
desire to furth r exercise my right of amendment and amend the trust instrument as follows: 

FIRST: I amend Article IV, Section A. Paragraph 1, which appears on pages 4 and 5 of 
the Amended and Restated Trust Agreement so that as amended, Article IV, Section A. 
Paragraph 1 shall read in its ntirety as follows: 

1. 	 McDowell Propeny. Upon the death of Settlor, if the trust property includes Settlor's 
residence at 123 McDowell Street, Matthews, Mecklenburg County, _ orth Carolina, 
and designated as parcel number 227-024-30 (hereinafter the "McDowell Property"), 
the Trustee shall hold the McDowell Property in trust. STEPHE T °shall be 
allowed to continue to live and reside at the McDowell Property for so long as the 
Trust , in his sole discretion, deems that living situation to be appropriate and 
beneficial to STEPHEN T I 0 . 

In the event STEPHE r °does not live or re ide at the McDowell Property but 
the trust continues to own the McDowell Prop rty, the Trustee may, in his sole 
discretion, lease the cOowell Property to a third party for a monthly rental rate to be 
determined by the Trustee in his sole discretion. All net income generated from the 
lease of the McDowell Property, after the payment of maintenance, upkeep, taxes and 
other costs, shall be distributed at least quarterly to or for the ben tit of my sons 
STEPHEN TINO, MARK TINO and FRANK TINO, in equal shares . In the event 
any of my sons die while the McDowell Property is generating income. the periodic 
payments that would have been distributed to that son shall instead be divided equally 
among my survIVIng sons. 

When, in the sole discretion of the Trustee, the Trustee elects to sell the McDowell 
Propert , fifty percent (50%) of the net proceeds of said sale shall be distributed to 
the Trust for Settlor's Son, STEPH. N TINO, as stablished in Article IV, Section A, 
Paragraph 3 hereinbelow, and all amendments thereto, to be held, managed 

1 


42



administered and distributed in accordance with the terms of Article IV, Section B 
hereinbelow, and all amendments thereto. 

The r maining fifty percent (50%) shall be distributed outright, free and clear of trust, 
in equal shares to Settlor's sons MARK TINO and FRANK TINO, if they ar alive at 
the time of the sale of the McDowell Property. If MARK T ° is not alive at the 
time of the sale of the McDowell Property, his share shall instead be distributed to his 
issue. per stirpes. If FRANK TINO is not alive at the time of the sale of the 
McDowell Property, his share shall instead be distributed to his children. RYA T 

TINO and LAUREN TINO, per capita. If neither of such sons nor issue of either of 
such sons survives Settlor, the Trustee shall dispose of the remaining trust estate fo r 
the benefit of Settlor's issue and the other contingent beneficiaries in accordanc with 
the provisions of paragraph D below. 

I have intentionally chosen to omit my granddaughter A.rvIBER TINO from any 
distributions hereunder not for lack of love or affection but in an effort to pr serve her 
eligibility for benefits to which she is otherwise entitled. 

SECO D: I amend Article IV, Section A, Paragraph 2, which appears on pages 5 and 6 
of the Amended and Restated Trust Agreement, and which was amended pursuant to the First 
Amendment to Amended and Restated Trust Agreement on December 14, 2004, so that as 
amended, Art i ' Ie IV, Section A, Paragraph 2 shall read in its entirety as follows: 

2. 	 Rockv River Road Property. Upon the death of Settlor, if the trust property includes 
that certain approximately 20.5 acre tract along Rocky River Road, Han-isburg, 
Caban-LIS County orth Carolina and designated as parcel number 55274 16442 
(hereinafter the "Rocky River Road Property"), the Trustee shall hold the Rocky 
River Road Propeliy in trust for the benefit of S ttlor's sons, STEPl-IEI T O. 
MARK T 0 and FRA K TINO. 

The Trustee ma , in his sole discretion, lease all or any portion of the Rocky River 
Road Prop rty to a third party (or to third parties) for a monthly rental rate to be 
determined by the Trustee, in his sole discretion. All net income generated from the 
lease of the Rocky River Road Property, after the payment of maintenance, upkeep, 
taxes and other costs, shall be distributed at least qualierly to or for the ben fit of my 
s ns STEPHEN TINO, M. RK TINO and FRA K TINO, in equal shares. In the 
e ent any of my sons die while the Rocky River Road Property is generating income, 
the periodic payments that would have been distributed to that son shall instead be 
divided equally among my surviving sons. 

When in the sole discretion of the Trustee, the Trustee elects to sell the Rocky River 
Road Property, the net proceeds of said sale shall be distributed outright free and 
clear of trust, in equal shares to Settlor's sons MARK TINO and FRANK TINO, if 
they are alive at the time of the sale of the Rocky River Road Property . If MARK 
TINO is not alive at the time of the sale of the Rocky River Road PropeI1y, his share 

2 


43



shall ins tead be distributed to his issue, per stirpes. If FRANK INO is not alive at 
th time of the sale of the Rocky River Road Property, his share shall instead be 
distributed to his children, RYA TINO and LAUREN TINO, per stirpes. If neither 
of such sons nor issue of either of such sons survives Settlor, the Trustee shall di pose 
of the remaining trust estate for the ben~fit of Settlor ' s issue and the other contingent 
beneficiaries in accordance with the provisions of paragraph D below. 

I have intentionally chosen to omit my granddaughter AMBER TINO from any 
distributions hereunder not for lack of love or affection but in an effort to preserve her 
eligibility for benefit to which she is otherwise entitled. 

THIRD: I amend Article IV; Section A, Paragraph 4, which appears on page 7 of the 
Amended and Restated Trust greement, so that as amended, Article IV, Section A, Paragraph 4 
shall read in its entirety as follows: 

4. 	 Allocation of Balance of Trust Property . After the distribution made pursuant to 
paragraph 3 above, the Trustee shall then distribute the remaining trust estate to 
Settlor 's sons, MARK TINO and FRANK TINO, if both of them survive Settlor, in 
qual shares. If IvlARK TINO does not survive Settlor, his share shall instead be 

distributed to his issue, per stirpes. If FRANK T 0 does not survive Settlor, his 
share shall instead be distributed to his children, RYAN TINO and LAUREN TINO, 
per stirpes. If neither of such sons nor issue of either of such sons survives Settlor, 
the rustee shall dispose of the remaining trust estate for the benefit of Settlor 's issue 
and the other contingent beneficiaries in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 
D below. 

I have intentionally chosen to omit my granddaughter AMBER TINO from any 
distributions hereunder not fo r lack of love or affection but in an effort to preserve her 
eligibility for benefits to which she is otherwis entitled. 

FO RTH: I amend , ,ticle IV, Section B, Paragraph 2, which appears on page 8 of the 
Amended and Restated Trust Agreement, and which was amended pursuant to the First 
Amendment to Amended and Restated Trust greement on December 14, 2004, so that as 
amended, Article IV, Section B, Paragraph 2 shall read in its entirety as follows : 

3. 	 Distribution Upon Death of STEPHEK TI -0. Upon the death of Settlor' s son 
ST PHE TINO, the Trustee shall distribute the then-remaining principal balance 
and undistributed income of his trust to S Wor's sons, MARK T °and FRANK 
TINO, if both of them survive Settlor, in equal shares. If MARK TINO does not 
survive Settlor, his share shall instead be distributed to his issue, per stirpes. If 
FRA K TINO does not survive Settlor, his share shall instead be distributed to his 
children, RYAN TINO and LAUREN TINO, per stirpes. If neither of such sons nor 
issue of either of such sons survives Settlor, th Trustee shall dispose of the 
remaining trust estate for the benefit of Settlor ' s issue and the other contingent 
beneficiaries in accordance with the provisions of paragraph D below. 

3 

44



It is my desire that before the Trustee makes the distribution of the principal balance 
and undistributed income of STEPHE TINO's trust as directed in the paragraph 
immediately above that the Trustee donate a p011ion of the trust assets to a Christ ian 
charitable organization of the Trustee 's choosing. I ask my Trustee to take into 
account my beliefs and wishes and to consider organizations that have served me and 
my children during their lifetimes, but my Trustee is not bound by these wishes. 

I have intentionally chosen to omit my granddaughter AMBER TINO from any 
distributions hereunder not for lack of love or affection but in an effort to preserve her 
eligibility for benefits to which she is othern ise entitled. 

FIFTH: I amend Aliicle X, hich app ars on pages 23 and 24 of the Amended and 
Restated Trust Agreement, and which was amended pursuant to the First Amendment to 
Amended and Restated Trust Agreement on December 14, 2004, so that as amended, .Article X 
shall read in its entirety as follows: 

Settlor reserves th right and power to alter, amend or revoke this Agreement at any 
time, and from time to time, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the 
Trustee or any benefIciary hereunder or under any of said policies, by wrill~n notice 
to th Trustee to that effect; provide, however, that the duties, responsibilities and rate 
of compensation of the Trustee shall not be altered or modified without its written 
consent. 

Any successor Trustee is authorized and directed to accept from any prior Trustee the 
assets delivered by such predecessor on the basis of the predecessor ' s accounting for 
such assets without requiring an audit or other independent accounting of the 
transactions, acts or omissions of such prior Trustee, and any successor Trustee shall 
not have any duty, responsibility, obLigation or liability whatsoever for the acts or 
omissions of any prior Trustee. 

Upon the death,. removal, failure or inability to serve of AN E W. TINO as Trustee. 
Settlor's son, MARK TINO, shall serve as successor Trustee. I recommend that 
MARK TINO seek the advice of a fi nancial plann~r in managing the trust. Within 
thirty (30) days of accepting the responsibility of serving as successor Trustee, 
MARK TINO as successor Trustee shall designate a successor Trustee to serve in the 
event of his death or resignation as Trustee. The designation of a successor Trustee 
shall be in writing, executed by the Trustee and accepted by the written 
acknowledgement of the successor Trustee. The original designation and acceptance 
shall be attached to the original of the Trust Agreement. 

In the event that no successor Trustee shall be named to serve or all of the successor 
Trustees shall fail to serve as Trustee for any reason and no Trustee shall; then be 
named or serving, then in such event, a successor Trustee shall be named and 
appointed in a written instrument in recordable form signed by a majoEty of the adult 
beneficiaries who have capacity to consent and the parent(s) or guardian(s) of the mi 
nor and/or incompetent beneficiaris of the trust(s) created hereunder. 

4 

45



I have signed and sealed this instrument on the 24th day of May, 2012 .. 

STA E OF ORTH C ROLlNA 

/oUNTY OF wIECKL rBURG 

r. Kimberly A. Gossage, a Notary Public for said County and State. do bereby certify that 
ANNE W. TINO p rsonally appeared before me this day and acknowledge the due execution of 
the foregoine instrument. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal, this the 24th day of May, 2012. 

My commission expires: 5/2112016 

5 


46



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
RESJGNATION OF TRUSTEE 

COUNTY OF MECKLE BURG 

L ANNE W. TINO, Trustee under an Amended and Restated Tru!::'i Agreement dated the 

2 1st day of July, 2004, as subsequently amended, p rs uant to Article X, hereby resign as Trustee. 

I understand that upon my resignation, MARK 

successor Truslee. 

This the 24mday of .:vIay, 2012. 

_ _____ ____ .____(SEAL) 

ANNE W. TINO, Trustee 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLlNA 
~~ A(t~ ~1 /tv\~ (.AI. ~ }'" 

i?~ u 6wf ~~.o;j~ ~.1n;. 

COUNTY OF JVIECKLENBURG. 

I, Kimberly A. Gossage, a Notary Public for said County and State, do hereby certiJy that 
At"\JNE W. TL 0 personally appeared before me this day and acknowledge the due execution of 
the foregoing instrument. 

W ITNESS m y hand and oftl cial seal, this the 24th day of M ay, 20 12. 

My commission expires: 5/2112016 

47



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

APPOINTMENT OF SUCCESSOR 

COUNTY OF MECKLENB RG CO-TRUSTEES 

I, MARK TINO, Trustee under an Amended and Restated Trust Agreement dated the 

21 st day of July, 2004, as subsequently amended, having accepted appointment as successor 

Trustee upon the resignation of the initial Trustee on May 24, 2012, pursuant to Article X, 

hereby appoint my brother FRANK TINO, my nephew RYAN ANTHONY TINO and rny son, 

BRIAN ANT HONY TINO, to serve jointly as successor co-trustees in the event of my death, 

removaL failure or inability to serve. In the event FRANK TINO, RYAN ANTHONY TINO 

or BRIAN ANTHONY TINO is unable or unwilling to serve as a co-trustee hereunder, the 

survivors shall serve as the co-trustees. In the event two of these individuals are unable or 

unwilling to serve as co-trustees, the survivor shall serve as sole trustee. 

All other rights, responsibilities and duties of the trustees as defined in the Amended and 

Restated Trust Agreement shall remain in effect and shall apply to the successor co-trustees in 

the event they are called upon to serve in said capacity. 

Thistbe~dayof ~tJ/le...- :t4-vi:Z=Z
(SE L) 

MARK TINO, Trustee 

COMMO 'vVE ALTl-I OF PE NSYLVANIA 

CO -NTY OF ~~Ia 
I, Uebl,)1 0.."" :X . \l o...LUlr -e 110 , a Notary Public for said County and State, do hereby 

certify that MARK TINO personally appeared before me this day and acknowledge the due 
execution of the foregoing instrument. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal , this the ~ tL day of ~\d , 2012. 

MOl(}~9\)o...L ~ 
Notary Public 

My commission expires: ~~~J.l..J-'::~G.:l~---+==CO=MM~O:.:.;N:.:.;WEAL:=::=JH=O-:::= F=PEN~N::.SYL:..::..:.:VAN~IA~ 
Not!r1a1 Seal 

Oeboran l . Vaccarello, Notary Public 
Green Tree Born, AIIegt1eny County 

My Commission ExpIres Oct. 8, 2013 
Member, Pennsvtvanli! Assodatkln ~ NotaI1es 

48



Being located in Number 1 Township of Cabarrus County, North Carolina and 

being more particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at a point in the centerline of Rocky River Road having NC Grid 

Coordinates of N: 571,116.61, E: 1,523,716.96, said point being the northwestern 

corner of Roberta Gail Ritchie Linker as recorded in DB 11386 PG 198 and runs 

thence from the point of beginning along the center line of Rocky River Road the 

following three (3) calls: 1) thence N 38˚ 54’ 42” E 325.60’ to a computed point; 2) 

thence N 38˚ 54’ 42” E 250.79’ to a computed point; 3) thence N 37˚ 58’ 41” E 

364.66’ to a computed point, said point being the southwestern corner of Nao 

Kha Vang and Dia X. Vang as recorded in DB 6489 PG 117; thence leaving said 

centerline along the south line of said Vang parcel S 51˚ 17’ 41” E 393.08’ to a 

computed point; thence along the east line of said Vang parcel the following two 

calls: 1) thence N 38˚ 40’ 12” E 146.00’ to a found iron rod; 2) thence N 07˚ 27’ 30” 

W 215.37’ to a computed point (passing a found iron rod at 214.77’) and being the 

northwestern corner of Anne W. Tino as recorded in DB 7074 PG 164; thence 

along the north line of said Tino parcel N 82˚ 19’ 08” E 499.31’ to a found iron rod 

on the western line of Green Street Land Co. L.L.C. as recorded in DB 13394 PG 

152; thence along said west line S 11˚ 58’ 09” E 870.23’ to a found iron rod being 

the northwestern corner of Cabarrus County as recorded in DB 3127 PG 55; 

thence along the west line of said Cabarrus County tract S 11˚58’ 31” E 937.93’ to 

a found iron rod on the east line of said Cabarrus County tract and being the 

northeastern corner of Bric A. Elswick and Laurie A. Elswick; thence along the 

north line of said Elswick tract the following five (5) calls: 1) thence S 76˚ 38’ 37” 

W 906.31’ to a found iron rod; 2) thence N 47˚ 35’ 02” W 238.75’ to a found iron 

rod; 3) thence S 75˚ 06’ 12” W 542.95’ to a found iron rod; 4) thence S 10˚ 31’ 58” E 

208.17’ to a found iron rod; 5) S 73˚ 03’ 23” W 331.43’ to the centerline of Lower 

Rocky River Road (passing a found iron rod at 300.49’) and being the 

northwestern corner of said Elswick tract; thence along the centerline of said 

Lower Rocky River Road the following six (6) calls: 1)  thence N 38˚05’ 33” W 

2.60’ to a computed point; 2) thence along a circular curve to the right having a 

radius of 1093.48’, an arch length of 201.98’, and a chord bearing and distance of 

N 33˚ 52’ 46” W 201.70’ to a computed point; 3) thence N 27˚ 12’ 42” W 15.60’ to a 

computed point; 4) thence N 27˚ 12’ 42” W 128.28’ to a computed point; 5) thence 

along a circular curve to the left having a radius of 904.13’, an arch length of 

140.52’, and a chord bearing and distance of N 30˚ 45’ 53” W 140.38’ to a 

computed point; 6) thence N 34˚ 20’ 30” W 11.21’ to a computed point and being 

the southwestern corner of Rocky River Presbyterian Church (deed not found); 

thence leaving said centerline along the south line of Rocky River Presbyterian 

Exhibit A

49



Church N 47˚ 48’ 10” E 243.63’ to an found iron rod being the northeast corner of 

said Rocky River Presbyterian Church parcel and being on the west line of said 

Roberta Gail Ritchie Linker parcel; thence with the west line of said tract S 30˚ 43’ 

00” E 261.67’ to a found iron rod at the southwest corner of said tract; thence 

along the south line of said Linker tract for the following two (2) calls: 1) thence 

N 66˚ 41’ 13” E 186.34’ to a found iron rod; 2) thence N 43˚ 29’ 25” E 636.80’ to a 

found iron rod being the northeast corner of said tract: thence with the northern 

line of said tract N 50˚ 23’ 32” W 406.29’ to a found iron rod at the southwest 

corner of Rocky River Presbyterian Church Cemetery (no deed found); thence 

with three (3) lines of said cemetery the following calls: 1) thence N 31˚ 05’ 01” E 

108.86’ to a computed point; 2) thence N 47˚ 44’ 53” W 165.00’ to a computed 

point; 3) thence S 36˚ 48’ 27” W 114.70’ to a found iron rod being the southwest 

corner of said cemetery and on the north line of said Linker tract; thence with 

said north line N 61˚ 10’ 27” W 208.36’ to the place of BEGINNING. Said parcel 

contains 56.83 acres, more or less.  

50



Exhibit B and C

51



52



53



R

what 
Call

below.
before

Know
you dig.

s

DESCRIPTIONS DATE

REVISIONS

SCALE

HORIZONTAL:

VERTICAL:

DRAWING NUMBER

STATUS:

DRAWN

PROJ. MGR. 

DESIGNED

CHECKED

DATE:

MCE PROJ. #

AUGUST 2020

07816-0001

SKETCH PLAN

REV.NO.

This electronic document is the

property of

McKim & Creed, Inc.

and is not to be used for any

purpose without the written consent

of the engineer whose seal appears

on the original certified document.

DO NOT REMOVE FROM

ELECTRONIC FILE

REVISION

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

www.mckimcreed.com

NC License# F-1222

8020 Tower Point Drive

Phone: (704) 841-2588, Fax: (704) 841-2567

Charlotte, North Carolina 28227

1"=100'

NA

CITY OF CONCORD, NC

LOWER ROCKY RIVER  ROAD

SKETCH PLAN

CONCEPT

1

PROPOSED 30' PERIMETER BUFFER YARD

TYPE B (COS)(TYP)

1

2

22

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

41

42

38

43

44

45

46

47

48

50

51

52

57

58

59

60

65

66

88

87

89
90

92

83

84

TREE SAVE (COS) (TYP)

DJS

DJS

TMM

TMM

53

85

PROPOSED PEDESTRIAN

TRAIL WITH 15' ESMT

(TYP)

PROPOSED COMMUNITY GARDEN

WITH PEDESTRIAN PASS-THRU

(COS)

64

61

68

70

69

71

72

75

76

78

79

80

81

82

3

5

6

7

11

9

10

12

13

14

91

93 94

106
105

104

103 102

100
101

99

9695

21

20

19

18

16

PROPOSED 30' THOROUGHFARE

 BUFFER TYPE D (COS)

PROPOSED GREENWAY

DEDICATION

67

PARCEL LINE (PROPOSED)

PROPERTY LINE (ADJOINING)

PROJECT BOUNDARY (SITE)

EASEMENT (OTHER)

EASEMENT (STORM DRAINAGE)

BUFFER

BUILDING SETBACK

MAJOR TOPO CONTOUR

MINOR TOPO CONTOUR

FEATURE EXISTING PROPOSED

EASEMENT (SEWER)

FENCE LINE

RIGHT-OF-WAY (ROAD)

OVERHEAD UTILITY

SANITARY SEWER

STORM

UNDERGROUND GAS

UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE

UNDERGROUND WATERLINE

TOP OF BANK

BOTTOM OF BANK

TREE SAVE AREA

COMMON OPEN SPACE (COS)

EASEMENT (SIDEWALK)

POND / WATER FEATURE

SANITARY EASEMENT

RAIL ROAD

EASEMENT (TEMP. CONSTRUCTION)

TREE LINE

WETLAND BOUNDARY

648

650

C ROAD

 L

C DITCH/SWALE

 L

C CREEK/STREAM

 L

FEMA 100-YR FLOOD ZONE

FEMA FLOODWAY

FEMA FINGE LINE (Zone-X)

PRIMARY CONSERVATION

SECONDARY CONSERVATION

CONSERVATION EASEMENT

BUFFER, PERIMETER AND

THOROUGHFARE

PARCELS (PIN14): 55274164420000

55274064970000

55274011480000

55263989130000

PARCEL AREA: ±56.83 ACRES

DUA: 1.87 UNITS/ACRE

CURRENT ZONING: CR (CABARRUS COUNTY)

PROPOSED ZONING: CS (CITY OF CONCORD)

-DESIGNED AS CONSERVATION SUBDIVISION

TOTAL UNITS: 106 UNITS

LOT SIZE: 54 x 120

SETBACKS:

FRONT 24'

SIDE 7'

REAR 5'

TOTAL COS REQUIRED 22.73 ACRES (40%)

TOTAL COS PROVIDED 23.78 ACRES (41.8%)

BUFFER 4.92 ACRES

DEDICATION 6.95  ACRES

ALL OTHER 11.91 ACRES

ROADS (ROLLING & LEVEL TERRAIN)

MINOR COLLECTOR (60'R/W) 2770 LIN.FT.

LOCAL RESIDENTIAL (50'R/W) 2468 LIN.FT.

TREE SAVE PROVIDED 11.49 ACRES

HERITAGE TREES PRESERVED 13 (81%)

CONSERVATION AREAS PROVIDED 14.86 ACRES

PRIMARY CONSERVATION 10.58 ACRES

SECONDARY CONSERVATION 4.28  ACRES

LOTS ADJACENT TO COS

REQUIRED 85  (80%)

PROVIDED 91  (86%)

EXISTING IMPERVIOUS ±16000 SF

-GIS ESTIMATED

APPROXIMATE LOCATION

OF PROPOSED SITE

VICINITY MAP

N.T.S.

63

56

73

77

15

8

4

23

39

40

49

54

86

97

98

74

55

62

17

100' 50' 0 100' 200'

1"=100'

NOTES

1- THE PROPOSED SUBDIVISION WILL BE A DEEDED AGE RESTRICTED COMMUNITY. THE AGE

RESTRICTION WILL ELIMINATE ADDING STRESS TO THE SCHOOL SYSTEM.

54



AN ORDINANCE TO EXTEND THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
CONCORD, NORTH CAROLINA TO INCLUDE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7785 

ROCKY RIVER ROAD, 8041 LOWER ROCKY ROAD, 8063 LOWER ROCKY 
RIVER ROAD AND AN ADDITIONAL UNADRESSED PARCEL NORTHEAST 

OF LOWER ROCKY RIVER ROAD AND LOWER ROCKY RIVER ROAD 
INTERSECTION 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has been petitioned under G.S. 160A-58.1 by 
Bob Bennett, PE, Stanley Martin Homes, on November 10th and 12th, 2020 to 
annex the area described below; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has by resolution directed the City Clerk to 
investigate the sufficiency of the petitions; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the City Clerk has certified the sufficiency of the petitions and 
a public hearing on the question of this annexation was held via a digital media 
platform, on November 10th and 12th, 2020 after due notice by The Independent 
Tribune on October 23, 2020; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the petitions meet requirements of 
G.S. 160A-58.1; 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Concord, North Carolina, that: 
 
 SECTION 1. By virtue of the authority granted by G.S. 160A-58.1, the 
following described territory is hereby annexed and made part of the City of 
Concord, as of the 12th day of November 2020: 
 
Being located in Number 1 Township of Cabarrus County, North Carolina and 
being more particularly described as follows: 
 

Beginning at a point in the centerline of Rocky River Road having NC Grid 
Coordinates of N: 571,116.61, E: 1,523,716.96, said point being the northwestern 
corner of Roberta Gail Ritchie Linker as recorded in DB 11386 PG 198 and runs 
thence from the point of beginning along the center line of Rocky River Road the 
following three (3) calls: 1) thence N 38˚ 54’ 42” E 325.60’ to a computed point; 
2) thence N 38˚ 54’ 42” E 250.79’ to a computed point; 3) thence N 37˚ 58’ 41” E 
364.66’ to a computed point, said point being the southwestern corner of Nao 
Kha Vang and Dia X. Vang as recorded in DB 6489 PG 117; thence leaving said 
centerline along the south line of said Vang parcel S 51˚ 17’ 41” E 393.08’ to a 
computed point; thence along the east line of said Vang parcel the following two 
calls: 1) thence N 38˚ 40’ 12” E 146.00’ to a found iron rod; 2) thence N 07˚ 27’ 
30” W 215.37’ to a computed point (passing a found iron rod at 214.77’) and 
being the northwestern corner of Anne W. Tino as recorded in DB 7074 PG 164; 
thence along the north line of said Tino parcel N 82˚ 19’ 08” E 499.31’ to a found 
iron rod on the western line of Green Street Land Co. L.L.C. as recorded in DB 
13394 PG 152; thence along said west line S 11˚ 58’ 09” E 870.23’ to a found 
iron rod being the northwestern corner of Cabarrus County as recorded in DB 
3127 PG 55; thence along the west line of said Cabarrus County tract S 11˚58’ 
31” E 937.93’ to a found iron rod on the east line of said Cabarrus County tract 
and being the northeastern corner of Bric A. Elswick and Laurie A. Elswick; 
thence along the north line of said Elswick tract the following five (5) calls: 1) 
thence S 76˚ 38’ 37” W 906.31’ to a found iron rod; 2) thence N 47˚ 35’ 02” W 
238.75’ to a found iron rod; 3) thence S 75˚ 06’ 12” W 542.95’ to a found iron rod; 
4) thence S 10˚ 31’ 58” E 208.17’ to a found iron rod; 5) S 73˚ 03’ 23” W 331.43’ 
to the centerline of Lower Rocky River Road (passing a found iron rod at 300.49’) 
and being the northwestern corner of said Elswick tract; thence along the 
centerline of said Lower Rocky River Road the following six (6) calls: 1)  thence 
N 38˚05’ 33” W 2.60’ to a computed point; 2) thence along a circular curve to the 
right having a radius of 1093.48’, an arch length of 201.98’, and a chord bearing 
and distance of N 33˚ 52’ 46” W 201.70’ to a computed point; 3) thence N 27˚ 12’ 

55



42” W 15.60’ to a computed point; 4) thence N 27˚ 12’ 42” W 128.28’ to a 
computed point; 5) thence along a circular curve to the left having a radius of 
904.13’, an arch length of 140.52’, and a chord bearing and distance of N 30˚ 45’ 
53” W 140.38’ to a computed point; 6) thence N 34˚ 20’ 30” W 11.21’ to a 
computed point and being the southwestern corner of Rocky River Presbyterian 
Church (deed not found); thence leaving said centerline along the south line of 
Rocky River Presbyterian Church N 47˚ 48’ 10” E 243.63’ to an found iron rod 
being the northeast corner of said Rocky River Presbyterian Church parcel and 
being on the west line of said Roberta Gail Ritchie Linker parcel; thence with the 
west line of said tract S 30˚ 43’ 00” E 261.67’ to a found iron rod at the southwest 
corner of said tract; thence along the south line of said Linker tract for the 
following two (2) calls: 1) thence N 66˚ 41’ 13” E 186.34’ to a found iron rod; 2) 
thence N 43˚ 29’ 25” E 636.80’ to a found iron rod being the northeast corner of 
said tract: thence with the northern line of said tract N 50˚ 23’ 32” W 406.29’ to a 
found iron rod at the southwest corner of Rocky River Presbyterian Church 
Cemetery (no deed found); thence with three (3) lines of said cemetery the 
following calls: 1) thence N 31˚ 05’ 01” E 108.86’ to a computed point; 2) thence 
N 47˚ 44’ 53” W 165.00’ to a computed point; 3) thence S 36˚ 48’ 27” W 114.70’ 
to a found iron rod being the southwest corner of said cemetery and on the north 
line of said Linker tract; thence with said north line N 61˚ 10’ 27” W 208.36’ to the 
place of BEGINNING. Said parcel contains 56.83 acres, more or less. 

 
SECTION 2. Upon and after the 12th day of November, 2020 the above 

described territory and its citizens and property shall be subject to all debts, laws, 
ordinances and regulations in force in the City of Concord and shall be entitled to 
the same privileges and benefits as other parts of the City of Concord.  Said 
territory shall be subject to municipal taxes according to G.S. 160A-58.10. 

 
SECTION 3. The Mayor of the City of Concord shall cause to be recorded 

in the office of the Register of Deeds of Cabarrus County, and in the Office of the 
Secretary of State in Raleigh, North Carolina, an accurate map of the annexed 
territory, described in Section 1 above, together with a duly certified copy of this 
ordinance.  Such a map shall also be delivered to the County Board of Elections, 
as required by G.S. 163-288.1. 
 

SECTION 4. Notice of adoption of this ordinance shall be published once, 
following the effective date of annexation, in a newspaper having general 
circulation in the City of Concord.  
 

Adopted this 12th day of November 2020. 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF CONCORD 
NORTH CAROLINA 

 
___________________  

William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:               APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________ ___          _______________________  
Kim Deason, City Clerk VaLerie Kolczynski, City 

Attorney 

56



R

what 
Call

below.
before

Know
you dig.

s

DESCRIPTIONS DATE

REVISIONS

SCALE

HORIZONTAL:

VERTICAL:

DRAWING NUMBER

STATUS:

DRAWN

PROJ. MGR. 

DESIGNED

CHECKED

DATE:

MCE PROJ. #

OCTOBER 2020

07816-0001

SKETCH PLAN

REV.NO.

This electronic document is the

property of

McKim & Creed, Inc.

and is not to be used for any

purpose without the written consent

of the engineer whose seal appears

on the original certified document.

DO NOT REMOVE FROM

ELECTRONIC FILE

REVISION

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

www.mckimcreed.com

NC License# F-1222

8020 Tower Point Drive

Phone: (704) 841-2588, Fax: (704) 841-2567

Charlotte, North Carolina 28227

1"=100'

NA

CITY OF CONCORD, NC

LOWER ROCKY RIVER  ROAD

SKETCH PLAN

CONCEPT

1

PROPOSED 30' PERIMETER BUFFER YARD

TYPE B (COS)(TYP)

1

2

22

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

41

42

38

43

44

45

46

47

48

50

51

52

57

58

59

60

65

66

87

86

88
89

91

82

83

TREE SAVE (COS) (TYP)

DJS

DJS

TMM

TMM

53

84

PROPOSED PEDESTRIAN

TRAIL WITH 15' ESMT

(TYP)

PROPOSED COMMUNITY GARDEN

WITH PEDESTRIAN PASS-THRU

(COS)

64

61

67

69

68

70

71

74

75

77

78

79

80

81

3

5

6

7

11

9

10

12

13

14

90

92 93

105
104

103

102 101

99
100

98

9594

21

20

19

18

16

PROPOSED 30' THOROUGHFARE

 BUFFER TYPE D (COS)

PROPOSED GREENWAY

DEDICATION

PARCEL LINE (PROPOSED)

PROPERTY LINE (ADJOINING)

PROJECT BOUNDARY (SITE)

EASEMENT (OTHER)

EASEMENT (STORM DRAINAGE)

BUFFER

BUILDING SETBACK

MAJOR TOPO CONTOUR

MINOR TOPO CONTOUR

FEATURE EXISTING PROPOSED

EASEMENT (SEWER)

FENCE LINE

RIGHT-OF-WAY (ROAD)

OVERHEAD UTILITY

SANITARY SEWER

STORM

UNDERGROUND GAS

UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE

UNDERGROUND WATERLINE

TOP OF BANK

BOTTOM OF BANK

TREE SAVE AREA

COMMON OPEN SPACE (COS)

EASEMENT (SIDEWALK)

POND / WATER FEATURE

SANITARY EASEMENT

RAIL ROAD

EASEMENT (TEMP. CONSTRUCTION)

TREE LINE

WETLAND BOUNDARY

648

650

C ROAD

 L

C DITCH/SWALE

 L

C CREEK/STREAM

 L

FEMA 100-YR FLOOD ZONE

FEMA FLOODWAY

FEMA FINGE LINE (Zone-X)

PRIMARY CONSERVATION

SECONDARY CONSERVATION

CONSERVATION EASEMENT

BUFFER, PERIMETER AND

THOROUGHFARE

PARCELS (PIN14): 55274164420000

55274064970000

55274011480000

55263989130000

PARCEL AREA: ±56.83 ACRES

DUA: 1.87 UNITS/ACRE

CURRENT ZONING: CR (CABARRUS COUNTY)

PROPOSED ZONING: CS (CITY OF CONCORD)

-DESIGNED AS CONSERVATION SUBDIVISION

TOTAL UNITS: 106 LOTS

(105 UNITS & 1 POLICE 

OUTPOST)

LOT SIZE: 54 x 120

SETBACKS:

FRONT 24'

SIDE 7'

REAR 5'

TOTAL COS REQUIRED 22.73 ACRES (40%)

TOTAL COS PROVIDED 23.78 ACRES (41.8%)

BUFFER 4.92 ACRES

DEDICATION 6.95  ACRES

ALL OTHER 11.91 ACRES

ROADS (ROLLING & LEVEL TERRAIN)

MINOR COLLECTOR (60'R/W) 2770 LIN.FT.

LOCAL RESIDENTIAL (50'R/W) 2468 LIN.FT.

TREE SAVE PROVIDED 11.49 ACRES

HERITAGE TREES PRESERVED 13 (81%)

CONSERVATION AREAS PROVIDED 14.86 ACRES

PRIMARY CONSERVATION 10.58 ACRES

SECONDARY CONSERVATION 4.28  ACRES

LOTS ADJACENT TO COS

REQUIRED 85  (80%)

PROVIDED 91  (86%)

EXISTING IMPERVIOUS ±16000 SF

-GIS ESTIMATED

APPROXIMATE LOCATION

OF PROPOSED SITE

VICINITY MAP

N.T.S.

63

56

72

76

15

8

4

23

39

40

49

54

85

96

97

73

55

62

17

100' 50' 0 100' 200'

1"=100'

NOTES

1- THE PROPOSED SUBDIVISION WILL BE A DEEDED AGE RESTRICTED COMMUNITY. THE AGE

RESTRICTION WILL ELIMINATE ADDING STRESS TO THE SCHOOL SYSTEM.

LOT RESERVED FOR

FUTURE POLICE OUTPOST

57



 
Meeting Date 
November 10, 2020 
 

Annexation Staff Report 
 

The subject property consists of +/- 0.214 acres of land located at 10515 Poplar Tent Rd 
and is owned by Larry and Myra Stinson.  The authorized petitioner is Scott Moore, 
Project Manager of Skybrook LLC.  The subject property bisects a later parent parcel 
totaling +/- 3.044 acres, also addressed 10515 and 10435 Poplar Tent Rd.  The petition 
would include a +/- 50ft wide and +/- 188ft long strip of the parent parcel to be annexed 
into the City limits while allowing the remainder of the parcel to stay within Cabarrus 
County’s jurisdiction. 
 
Skybrook LLC, represented by the petitioner, owns the +/- 7-acre parcel to the north of 
the subject property.  This parcel is located within the City Limits and is zoned RV 
(Residential Village).  The petitioner is in the process of developing the site with a 
residential use.  The development south of the subject property, the Fullerton Place 
subdivision, is also located in the City limits and is zoned RV-CU (Residential Village 
Conditional Use).  A street (Ambercrest Ct. NW) within the Fullerton Place 
neighborhood stubs to the north, and was intended for a future connection to the parent 
parcel of the subject property.  As such, the petitioner has proposed to annex the subject 
property in order to accommodate a City street that would connect Fullerton Place with 
Skybrook owned parcel to the north.  If annexation is adopted, the City would propose to 
administratively rezone the parcel to RV (Residential Village for consistency with the 
developments to the north and south.  
 
Property to the west is located in Huntersville, property to the north is vacant and zoned 
City RV, property to the east is zoned County LDR (Low Density Residential), and 
property to the south is zoned RV-CU. The 2030 Land Use Plan designates the subject 
property as Suburban Neighborhood for which RV would be a corresponding zoning 
district. 

58



$ection B Submittal Deadlines

Petitions for annexation are accepted by Planning & Neighborhood Development at arry tirne. Find annexation schedule here:

httos://www.concordnc.oov/DeoartmentslPlanning/Planninq€eMces/Annexbtions The annexation will becorne efiective

immediately upon adoption of the annexation ordinance at the scheduled public hearing unless notified othendse by the

City Clert(

(Ihe City resefves the right to make exceptions to this tenlativs processing $chedule for any reasor, induding wien outstanding staff

comments need lo be addressed.)

&tigg$ Summary lnformation I Metes and Bounds Descriptions

Developmentproject*ame tl*,,rr^ Qooor Ar* * ol v,/or
StI6t Addresg toits {,pt*, TL+ 44" *},ohtn,tt,"

v
nlt L$o7b

Cabamrs County Propefi ldentificatlon Numbe(s) list below ({*ho" et)
P'r'H' 46lt'13 rzl toooa

F.I,N. P.t.N.

P.lJ\t. P.I.N. P.t.N.

Acreage of Annexation Site 
" L*l

Annexaffon site is requcating cannection to City of Concord Wa*ar , / andror Sewer 4

person to contact if there are questions about the petition

Name ?
r.) c. # lr,loott-

Add** bto 5l\ lvr,L 0, #unJ-, v,llr. Alc Le)l21

'*" (ror) Eqf '*r, Fax* t*"".t.. 
$ e- boruoot- .(ot*

Writtefl metcs and bounds descriptlon of proporty to be anilexod

Attach additional sheets if necessary. Petitioners must submit an electronic Microsoft Word version. Pditioners must email an

electronic copy to roqerss@concordnc.qov.

59



ffi
Part 'l Ttua undersigned' betnq al{ f,e ourirers of the real p'rDperry qscflheo in r1i€applil}ation {sedio. c} respecdulky re--", *
iltr_HffiffiSr#m,f,ffi,y,*Hfy::,*3fSl'L ;-h;;An"*ffilnffitu"o."nu agrea that any usri*es rharilffi-ff*ffi:y ro *re annexed area are *,re ieaso;ru,idri # tii lil#iii* iiiTlffi#I1ffi::dH::lJy,*?ff*l_

co*fiiguo*e te ifr,e Freserrt Fr{rix*ry e*rp*rate }imib of i"\€ e*y CI{ c{n{srd, r{wrfr Gard6na. cr

sdellita (t{*t ccsrtr:gt }o$s} t& the mltfiiciFai {ir.*k 6f e}e cny cf ec*card , and meds ail of trre re$}ire{ner}t* fdr Hces
s1ffi{"58'{thi" Th{s in6lud€5 fh@t if afw psfticH'} of a* area of the proposdi a.-rne:raticn is Faft fif a $r&dlvisii$1. aln a,f lhe

Fart e NC Geoeral $tahrtes require Fetitiofiers. cd hanF csntigu*us ard *ateHite annesstiorns 
!e nq a eigfied sHuller6 *-**

'aik*0her 
Hssted righ{s hsw bee* estah{shed in accao*nc*-*ittr Gs;60*-"&. i'JTsiil-k+., for propertiim **hibd {,o the ffitiri64i.

Da ys$ de6[ai* su6h vested dishf* fsr rt,* property *fuject [o ttxrs g€ti${$x? yss

lf yee, glease subrnit FroRtr thfit rdested rig&& harre heen grantxr by g&€rniftg hoad,- [ hweby ddar* that rny f*fluru u fficxisteme af a vested r!1ghrt tenrriudes am! ,ies{ed rigti pil;$r*ry *,frrt * d UrJ pr"pfr;"

SigFIgd ttlis 

-* 
day of SLgTEffLtsSR , ?0-!S_ hg Sre or,*renr; of th* poperftr dmcrfued i* $edion C"

tnclude sigfiature* df nB1ll. owfts* if oi*.neF*i}ip urifl cfia*ge d*ring the aaaexafl*n p.ruaes"
*ndicfita if oq$ner is signing on beftaffi cf lega{ enf}ty *nd in rxtrg.f cryacity.,

Pdrnildadre L,qRRY E. $TINSON

Addiress l$ljj Poplar Ten! Road" I-{uu,tersville- cabarrus county, I.{ertlr, caroliaa,Jm

Prlnttiiarse MYE*&A"STnNSOil

,dddiees I0515 Poplar.Tent R.t:acl, Hg.ntsrs'Eille, caharrus C*unty" North Ceroti&a, ]g$T&

Frlnt Nafrle

AddkefrE

SigflaEre

A not*ry *l.atmr*nt musf b* com$de*f fi$ed euf fier eErstl sigmcIuf,6.

60



FETITtrSH AiIUST" BE ISSTARHEM

NORTH CARC}N-INAStat* of:
C+unty ef:

tlse ffifs seclroa flr lmd*'r*Olrailffiffi rs"
,r

i' vttll & ltol$, ffvofaryk F,f*nTel, a Notary Fuhlic for said co*mg and $1tate" cta. hereby ceftify that thelandcwr,ler,@oflandgwner],asstat*donttea*fisxationpetit.e*.pers+naIly
appeared before rne tiris day and ackn*rtvledged flte due executi*n *f &i.e fcrego.img lnstrun"mnt-
$se ffijs seetron
trand ounrens, properfies tmfd rri en esfafe, Fpqpsr#es frerd in fru$f, ef*.

t' -. . .. - " fefdaryb /{a:oreJ, a f"lotanl Fuh{ic fo*" said *ounfu afid state" dc herehy

fer ... ' 
- 

*- fiLandot+ruee']" meniioned an tl'he annexaticn p*tftio,n as tf]e fandcen*er.
peraona[fy earne hs,forc rne this day amd a*knawledged that ha is _. . . .* _ f]itrsl of
said land owner, and atkn'orry{edgeri on behalf ef said lardowner" the dtt* ex**ufiq:n of the foregclng
instrurflerit.

tl-se ffifs seef*cn fsrafr_-rfidry{'
dnnexaffon fieq,uesf-

that, _ . ._ ._fA#cnrey_fn-F**fk. fvan:e]. ,ett*r*ey-inrFa.ct f,or

ff,d*nte of {-a*d*wt'rer{sl] perwma}ly appeared hefare nxe thls day, and
being hy me' duly svsorn, say th'at Fre/*he'exeeuted the foregcing and annexed instrun:l*r.tt for amd o*r beh*lf cf
sald l-andnwner'{s} and lf'la't hi#her autho.ity to execute ard acknaudedge *a6d ins{rurn*mt ie e*ntajned in an
instn"tr*ent duly executed, a*rmtrdedged and remrded rn the office of th,e Register cf seeds in tf,w c.*unty of

$tate of , I0ourfy & $kfe of fteeon*ngt OfitrCIel cn tfl* * day of20-' fDate of H*codrng of flte oocunre*{ and that tftis instr,trrnent $ras exec,$ted under a*d by
virtue *f the autfmrfty giv*n hy eaid instrunrent grantlng him p*wer *f attorrrey- tr ftrrther certify ff.rat thle s,aiAttaraey*l*Faat acknotqledg*dr the due execqtlon sf the fu*egcing irustrument frn t*re purrpc*ed t*erein
expres*ed f*rand on behatf ef sald {_andok{q,}ers"

Wituless rrry hand a*d off$cial s**lthisft day oifuffi1fof,20fu
I

h*y cc,rmrnission eNpireo rTt*\f. ..2 4 , 2s4t
ISEAI- of hdotary trubl$e]

..riqiilil tltgir,.

.ri}-'&l *" lJri"r.+
.:i .\1J v,. 'i,
s \\ ,.1 '/-.

.: l{ct3ri, fr,.,.,. ',.t!,
--:. ,yrc;i:i;,i|grr: i*a\€-
- ,.rljl.;iu 

=- fid. ,. i
=: '''',' '- 0i r; in F , - i'r' .,1 " t,';l_i d
=; i^, 't' )! -j' :,t) r ' 

-i
". "r:: 

_ 
' T_ :-

:r_ . :;-, 1 l' i
.., . J:.1(J--....

"':f;irrl:iiit11-"

N6{sn/s $ternp:

61



Septemben L4, 202S

Mrs. Starla Rogers

flaruntng & Seuelapment $klanager '

City of Ccncorid

P0 fiax 30S

Concord, HC 2&CI26

Dear Mrs" Rogers,

Flease a$lous this letter to seru& as authorlaa,tion for Seatt Moore, Fraiect Mamager sf the Skyhrook
Subdluislon andlor Bnian Pace. Face Sevelopment 6rcup. [nc- to ser$e a5 our agent{s} for all approrrat
andlor land devel*pment processes includlng but nst timited te Annexati@n Fetiticn, preilinrinary Flat,
Flan &euiew. Final PIat ar any sther re\riei.ql processes needed farthe prccurememt sf &aad frIght af Way
cr Comstruct[on ef said road inllolving approxirnatefiy .214 acre psrtion *f the parcel awed by the Stinson
tumity {parcefi ff467 173 n2 110800].

$irtcerety.

,(*r{.ffi, - .
taruy E. 5tins6ffi

62



Annexation - A portion of the Stinson property 0.214 a*es

commencing at a Bolt found, the northwest corner of the Larry E. stinson and Myra A. stinson as recorded in
Deed:1858-258 ln the Cabarrus County Register of Deeds Office; Said Bolt also being the southern corner of
Lot 1'4 of Parkside at Skybrook North as recorded in Map Book 50 Page 759 in the Mecklenburg County Register
of Deeds Office, and being the Justin Zimmerman & Susan Zimmerman property as recorded in Deed: 32258-923
in the Mecklenburg County Register of Deeds Office.

Thence from said Bolt with the northern line of the Larry E. Stinson and Myra A. Stinson property NS5-58-O3E
343.51' to a rebar set, the Point of Beginning, said rebar set also being on the southern line of the Skybrook LLC,
property as recorded in Deed:7075-32 in the Cabarrus County Register of Deeds Office. Thence from said point
of Beginning with the northern line of the Larry E. Stinson and Myra A. Stinson property and the southern line
of the Skybrook LLC property N55-58-03E 50.19 to a rebar set; Thence a new line in the Larry E. Stinson and
Myra A. Stinson property s37-39-LZE 185.63' to a rebar found on the southern line of the Larry E. Stinson and
Myra A. Stinson property, said rebar found also being the northwest corner of Lot 1j.0 of parkside at Skybrook
North as recorded in Map Book 70 Page 64 in the Cabarrus County Register of Deeds Offiee and being the
Erich N. Muhammad and Michella Muhammad property as recorded in Deed: 13333-345 in the Cabarrus County
Register of Deeds Office; Thence with the southern line of the Larry E. Stinson and Myra A. Stinson property
N52-20-48W 50.00'to a rebar found, the northeast corner of Lot 109 of Parkside at Skybrook North as recorded
in Map Book 70 Page 64 in the Cabarrus County Register of Deeds Office and being the Denise M. Lohbauer and
James A. Lohbauer prop€rty as recorded in Deed: L2579-278in the Cabarrus County Register of Deeds Office;
Thence a new line in the Larry E- Stinson and Myra A. Stinson property N37-39-12E 188,79'to a rebar found, the point of
Beginning.

Said property being a A.2L4 acre portion of the Larry E. Stinson and Myra A. Stinson property as shown on the
Annnexation Plat of the Larry E. Stinson and Myra A. Stinson property dated 9-03-20 by Yarbrough-Williams & Houle lnc.

63



Physical Addresr: 10515 POPLAR TENT RP HUNTERSVILTE NC 28078

PlNi 467173121100008

Property Real lD: 03-016 -0013.00

Account Neme: STINSON TARRY E

STINSON MYRA A WF

Mailing Addrcs*; 10653 POPLAR IEItlT RD HUIITERSVIII.E, NC 28078

Land Units: 3.11 AC

Land Value: $133980

Building Valuer $29410

OBXF Value: $336{

AssessedValue: $166750

Market Value: $166750

Sale Daier 511997

Sale Pricer $50000

Plat Book;

Plat Page;

Deed Book; taI 35.42I3215S760559 ton: -80.7548439$01716I

+

@

f
q

[:

a
A. ,i

1;

tlSnso$
AF$rl'|fron

"?{6 AC ler Rn6d R Ul,

64



e{ffi&ffi Fuffi$

,@K-SruE*-
:ffitr mffi -'! s5 & 3t!

ftcc{Gde65 Sqa ee 0fid fuc

;"t:-\:.L;J b. ltt &;]
ri€6[5TEir 0r sEEs$
C,1tsr{ftftU$ C0L Hg

of*Tffi (!fir? re &d$?/.;?

ffiffiffi
. ....... Plttcl [daMkf$6r

esrntfaaihe dssodVdffies.....
b.. ..-.......-. - !r... ......-

I{*& r&tr {los{rdjoc t@ ....

t&tc 0adma06wnG ffis$lrcd hg

Sr{cf dcoeaiptioo fer t&€ Xsd6

xm!.&g,t$ffio. 8@, ffi*sI! sJfy{s & fiwff,LE_ s&, rsfs8s&x$ at.!.&il, ._
cmc$*oo Ec ?E@e&,ffi1o

}SOR!"H C*"RCII.TNA
?t{6 tregl} ende th6s tad Ay ot . !{&y

GET$EEAI" WAR&ANTY DEE&

" 
le 9? . hy *nd bdsec*

GR6!f?Ag

lJts&Y StISSffi M sifeo
HXSf\ $IUc$Se
1s653 8$$de Bm m*&
E6StgRsV[i&S3 m UE&?&

€&,A38"S8

$[n&trffi?& r" B&8*"631t quUam]

& h .f,[il]#o 6'd drt 6 F[{rr o8s. .&* D.4 E r,*E5a4!a 66rua6 d cer. qD, dms.n rtr fiff!&
T&A fuil$qd{e G!"aEGor ed &'Mae fn cd Sctria
a&t[8 futulit a{B8utsr, *}osd, q*lpt*$[a*, f-*r-0.-; #;r"ii requlred by co6t*d.
WPfIfESSE'fE, thst t&6 Gmut6& {@ s m*5ab1e omddcmtim 

-r"a{d -hy t&a Cr.st**" g5e Ecc6&earkrcrte@*{ hn* n,rd hs *"*e partn ar* go*q-Gr8 iil"*u *c eo*i*e ffi?6ffinfuo 5.
e!rt6{e let sE p*ml cf had sleu*tod [* tk City of m.. 3eAeaffiEs . cocatr. t{orth camlim sud ** p&utieularttr der.ri&cd u &}iwri

d *h&e& to eare&
{e* dw&q" a![ &.6

fsrdtp" t
rytoS md W tu !co" 3 Two*fu, -g*W AryV, t{ffi C*&, ou tu Wcd dde dx&g.!" tu
Sry ryrery &e pogqry dJ" ttr@ wse6' M sffi 3Be, w *cs, xrmi €rM,xq8*q,) sd Jeffi K" ry {trw a{sh ?a8o IryG s* C&Wre Afofty Xii*myl W Uery uffie*rmwh*yffixtdffi
ffiryftBffi 

-q a ctr g!- b nsfi k S_€Gdtrd [hb rctr &M, ww^d.{ffi & ftr@oo@ drws &nw wkft ec &"me of sfifuH, s. rt&.2S-51 W. {re*oe m ffi@ tooa p@ oc &c d 3t-St e6}
?4:S tg e m si@ tosc See ryee w Wesed tbdtwo Hffi-dW"&k*-rc tu [x, N"!64&24 1#" (S{sS&S * X-&rc& b,@ lud m &ae m t"JS fcd} ZI?ffi ro ro.tr @ 3l*m &@ *ttft
squ&e M6 d te$ ed esd, N. 

-$e4n-t2 
E, {pn@ en exMeg fom F$E eo &e u 6,ff6]rs &6} m6.s &fi

to * p" k. ndl k Ghe @fr oif p@ T6ic Ro@ rmre wlta &e-@@er d? r&e Rffid" $" e3&m C
n?&-3ff feg tot&e &&6slN$Y6" eoe*rdw 3.t0& aec* m wnvryd h fi{&rfu [- $ffi; Jr"" RegM[-ffid s!Eycv@? s{&re Iq $st! rmd $qr&JE€T TCI rm niBm orwriy dp@otr,fcffi Rccd n* tuww msa@ dfis-

i
i

I

Id. C &6 $ie *e ?0 3 e 8S:G fts6d C, t$rl .G*eiq,k&&md&td&* .*1

65



e

e

ffi!ffiffiffi$

Ehe emwts k*iE6&€{re erihd *c* rcqaiued &r GmB?@ &y }natrsese$ wrded [o

DEE$ ffi& 3o9, S*68 e34G q.@Se!$ W!,$X.EEGI.538.Y=

A lu3g, Ekula8t&E rhst'a ktfred grewty lrH@ded dtsP8** A6* sfiaG...

tS B{tIfE Al{@ tr& SOX.& th2.fodnoid los cr pmdd bcd ord !}l ldvlk8q 6sd cffiaeffisfiffi M bell!@ b
t&! 6rotR ie fe dEpEs

And tlte Srneor eovtDe6t6 $atfr t&e Grsatse. t&S Groabr i*rutaedof tfuwemicsohfea@Se,emfudStSb€@
th 3r@ lim fe aimplc, t&st cEtlc ts eq&d*&ia ssd fHG aEd deqe{ oii ucembmN& Ed tft$t 6mt@ w68* xarru&md
d*f6d t&G tialc x*sinr*,the l*rfal eldm of e$! Scrow rhm@rs oryt f6rt&a r:cwi6s &*rq[*eft& te&&
trttlc to t&Q silsp@t, &sd*&ssc d*artBd ts s&j@e u th Sot8e*iw wwtfueol

ffi edf&334 $&t&C6?. {&e @@€ m 3@{do m *16 }Maq@ffiWeftPaffituded!tshM

^l'rc!v:

-*Md

-k&@(rb@.&sr!&

.n
7.€
x
'a

!4

{
6
F

,no*t* eaa@sr. -.. g&SS$g$-

I!, h@ s6&lk d tk fMy d

rnar,FP4ff

--- ele &N6

mt{ eA[@"SfAr -_-----.---*erdy.
!. * Stu, *st{k * e Cfrds &j ee d@m" d, M

rffiiltrt.ftMtrrd&&dew.dM-_-_h&--___ --@sd
a Hs6 6ed&3!€!i4ffi!Aed $d tA ${Ar@, W

I W" u & & trS s' &. {s#t& e6 #str&c tldrom$w6oeiSh &6ffi ts t!3.-
t ew4 M @ !e c..Sd st8 ..d &r*a ttr ....*.--"- S lrs --- --.- SecdeE .- wkn q &efr rai dBatg &!r c *& oft *----tid d ---_--"-*-----_-.----_ {S*--*-_

# Se@S6e.&1\
t, ar*ls*, d e

ts @ffiffi&bdliloak &ow a{r 3t Ekaa@ e &r 6 @ ,&B

q -&g#ggrtr" -*.... . 
" -. - "e,a,w,n*sBsffiI

ffi"*$ffiJ ffiritr rE+act km @ & {r* !ry{ E}E !ai.d @ .@ d tu tuee! @ FtM ff
hd d {d&s -i.ry 4 mi. & 1fr4 .- d .. .- #&X------." -. - -... ra -. - - -- ---. ru9}..

66



4$?1-8:S-x956
EE" 333 Pq r{5

d" moffi€v*aj*€
{673-7J-620

@ 3€.@ss.446

ogftr" rr (@ 5Ce4)

.*s*"'it-r*J7r

\ 6tu 
a$A. Bgsry

HEtr#u
h-8trS

$HHA
x&X fi

f-< *N
'r B8
*i ?9*

hts.%s"

rre'$ttq

-\,
b..

-*1"

#;s
\

#

.EAIIEB e" $eoflS^I.S &rffi I*ARCATT B. t{c$ofireo

@eneee
(sl *€4s ci@ EF xF$ e5 *ffi&

'@' {&ElsIEO Cs EG @3e& ;orfs ro.,6ttr r&i@
rrg€ e@mlas & re{trc eGr!r6*.
E Gtffi *Glw ilE Hanqfist affir* trrreGE
sEr trB Elt* A8.6j. c6e& $0Is *ffi &&|

*i"
r€@,r{}

-

sEr ffi FE( (?s EegrFr g poi.En Fflr
[rEr&E EEt puq qA$ B[$c&rroD 

-+ uud mc
@f dE 8A!&

\'6

4{t7i-72-ffiS
OE. 7?E FG"

fts a&tqr $6 EF, e 6Er&G ,*tr&

xrrt-#-tsH

$::#m;
Al".*du*".*
'&ffid",^t*&

06ratr "^'

4

{!}

flt
{r8

{4}
(a,

@

i
{}

(s Wffiffi*fl%mwP,Su-H'#ffimtmag
ctr@&$ffi tacEw F@Er ud morE${ M^

?XE LS€
&s{04ft9 *$ $rA\&yEO
&ft&.&r atr EE& m FUAt
€l&(f {rf Y
&rce L$€
?6x PM& me0ar|@
r&€E
fi$Ap t-s€
(rxsr&6 0&6Sr*@ Ffllg

F ffi.n e*G

0

is!

'\ffiffi# sfrb*"&e
*-" {6fl-?}-tt!} dq

xE\_oe $s Ft6.2&

" Ee';B }Iffi rffis c'

* aa'& ,/dQ"*E*B .f

qreL k*.@h!rcs"wlEffis

=f{:.qf€" 
G @ w mco roem ewm-ioio* *5- +t F? &L M E (ffi tr l:ffi E qle;in ;.ffi&{9_qF6€ € r.a@. w eorws w rcwo'<-iHs.-adq.e 6EB rrq@ rlos rdruw rere e miA.-ffi-€&wryffirqwwtr6nA=-*..

llffiffik_lw@fu&ffirGhW€ffi.!E

mu*afsu *e{e r.oa*r6oer - E
tr@€Pw OEE FrtE6.g" !il@f * rlf6! W4,rB!E eget?

YryqEa $ -np. 964@6, t**rers*:_%_ _&

s*O&rlen a r**.[,G.d &r.EgElo A nt @" "* 4]+
strrrfiY FEi [*)Em gilnm*ffi

-

c*s, lx.--j.99.-e. &l(H&{ i6&{ .@$7

ffiffi&ffitsw
qln@c.*{.%^@x&Esffi@reffi*
.rlap€6.ffiHffiLqe.&&qr€&
w.E rreGruEE&esa*.n*m wtr e€ fwcm6 u! flma.

e e € ffim trd#, w rw !6 E? rgucrc *{D?.

& m 9,-@2-39

67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



\"

4a

1A

BASEO ON I
(NAD 8)) 

I

$^
K
fl

l,

BEAFITiS$
NC GRIO

ii'
\?_'{
(e

"L

ralt
\3,.,

;\\
\

o.
9.nt.
'gnF \

'4r5'\+. gB\
r\?. -a s." \

{0f7nffl $? 51j01,'/Ltldtr
MIr4J ,7. UEiiC er gtj;48-9r. $lJ48.tt[

|HIS PROFENTY IE zuE"fCT 1O ALL OIIER RICHT$-OF'WAY
AHD EABfMftfA ffi BEEONO NOT OESEflVED IN ftE FEID
vtrr0H vlouLD 8l 0r8cL06ED BY A FllU lrtt $€AFQH,

frlS MAF l5 t{0r rNltNOEp T0 UEET Gt 47-i0 RE0UISCMENIS.
TH15 SURUY WAS PREPSEB PER TIIE 6TND]{8OS OI FRAC1CE
IOE LAHP SIRWYSfiS N ilAFlT CAftOUilA T{M AN E8808
oF CLo*JRS lN EXC€$S 0l 1r10,0m.

MECXLANOURC COINTY & *tsffiBUT COUNTY UUE A3sos Pffi REaoLuTlo{ 20Q2-42 BY *f qABARBUS
4ouflTy BoAnD rF cmu$ttoNE8$ Rg$oruNq rkg
MECI{LTNEUBO CAU!tr. MECKLEI$BUR8 CQUNry LINE LOCA'fiQN.

flslAilCfl$ $HOW! ARE SEAril[ ftS',iAHog$,T C4{VEftT TO CB,D ONSTANCES APPIY TE
coM€lNEp Gflro rAcT0E 0F 0.slst190l,
1H€ PRDPERIY !N CAEMNUS EO{'NTY LIES WTIIII,I
THE 0ry 0t cehJooFD 8,x,,-

FROPERIY CORNERS IDENTIFIEO YNE LOCAIES BY
ACTUAL FIELD SURVET AU OI8IAI.ICE$ ARi
BQRTZQNTAL PISIA}JCE$ UUffiB OfrERWS
t0m0.
!, IOSTPH [, MALEY ]R,, $TAIE 1HAT TT!$ UAP UAS
!BA}'1I UNEEB MY SUPEN{5ISi MOM & rcruAL
NELO SU lEY MADT B}
YS€RoUCH-ULLTAUS & H0ULE. tNc.

\ A[ BrffirNCS a\D USiA\€S aRE fl,. S, RIGHI QF W'Y LINq.

' 1ECEND.,.,,,...,,,,,.,.,.,...,..

\ ME; - MAP BWK
\ PL * PBryERTY LNE\. B/w - RrotrT-or-wAY

11

5t

ac

\
\{I)\

\r,b.
):d

rs

---\t --- ,^NE \

.*, 'j1:_ - \ q.
b\

(

\
r

,* \
\

\ Noi' at1 tafrMt,t.v
\ s{Y8}oor( il,cI DE!fi 7n?5 32

\ 
f,v /r8?/-?J 4fJrl

\

ON frE

REB,qE \
*uNo \

\
Nov uf Itrdjvlnlt \

,tfl\t!! y LaililALiui &
\ Jd/$ d raff8ii/ft \

\ DLLiO,lE,fg 3lA \

'\l_*.- __ **l
i u, oo ,rrur,r, - \
I tc:il\ iidli;ir;i * ,qEBAn'',j; "i( r'iiMUdM,. gQUND/

,',., :L.,ii*^'i," 1 4 /,
1ty titl nat tt /i

sftF ol{ [04{1r{Y
slrc,r {tr'fi a

Jiil}lt[jti tI/IH . F
t:EflD 30enB 8s8 I A

1',A$ 4t4l uge a?

r, 1BB UB0tft$&MtQ uAyln ir Ylre crry 0f Qil{QoRo.
HEStgy c$nFf TqAI flll9 lAE RErL{Cr€ td6 IYRRmBY
n+riH wAfl axNoxE0 lHro ftE clry dE cmetrI BY

srfiH tAg sfm
eD qff cllY aF coNc0ro

wlsl 00RRE$P0N0 'r9 ft[ Fffcl€ oATf roR

qITY S COWtrP

MUHI9FAL LUIIS _
IHI$ OqqW€NX

{otr 0t rolt&l/rrf
0u&[? rrffpflft{ &
i1{1iil7{ 1f ll,lurlfl48

Dsn'fi Jodi], s6g
, va te =rr1\ 14\ /dlti 08il EI

\

- *r'
tt'' ^s."t,' \\tr$l

I" PINCHE0 // . ^ .\ TOF PIF€ J lU+\ Fotlilo /
t *f,'

l\'0!r' 0R rotiMfl8r,r
l,iBIiY ni $?t\xoN,1s, tur&1 d

.111SS0r\
fiilil0: IAliS-nA$

I'AEt:El, jD!: 0A Dt0-0013a{)

W

GRAPHIC SCALE

SHEET TITLE

axHIBIr D - cl{Irl$jfirfol$ PLAf - 0.314 .arR8

lXtffi'xenpru r:ar
'om?fr#/P #a, SABAR&U8 CoUJYfr, ty.C.

J(\Infi7qr. ]T Vrsrcs*Wrwr&Hffi,bqq$/&l #'Itrl'.'3rryh'"FifflJ"'
",ryE{ib^.* ffi ffi-e@b...?**t!d@M

78



10378
1038410387

1038810391

10392
10396

10404
10408

10409

10412
10413

10416

10420

10424

10432

10436

1223

1224
1228

1231

1232

1236

1239
1247

1250
1254

1255
1259

710

711

716

717

720
721

724
725

1038310387
1039010391

10395 10396

1200
1204

1205

1204

11316

11317

11320

11321

11324

11325
11329

11330
11334

11416

11417

11420

11421

11424

11425

11428

11429

708
709

712

715

716

719

722

723

17517
17550

17615

17635

618

619

622

623

626

627

630

631
635

639 640
705

709
715

716

719

720

723 801

804

805

808

809

812

815

818

821
903

908

909

914

915

920

921

926

927

551

555559
563

567
571

574

575

578
579

582
586587

591
595

599
603

607

611

10398

10399

10401

10435

10506

10510

10515

10601

10651
10653
10657

1228

1229

1232

1233

1236

1237

1240

1241

1244
1248

1252
1256

1260

10303
10315

10321

10332

10338
10344
10350

1041810430

10431
10436

10437
10443

10448

10449

10454

10455

10460

10461

10466

1046710473

10502

10503

10508

10509

10514

10515

10520

10521

10532

10533

10538

10539

1093

1094
1097

1100
1101

1105
11061109

1113

1116
1117

11201121
1124

1125
1129

10503

10508

10509

10512

10513

10516

10517

10520

10521

10524

10525

10528

10529

10532

10533

10536

10537
10543

10544

10547

10548

10551

10552

10557

10641
10643

10645

10647

10649

10651

10655

10667

10345
10349
10357

POPLAR TENT RD

WESSON

HUNT RD NW

SAMUELS WAY DR

BRIDGEFORD DR NW

SAMUELS

WAY DR

MARTHAS VIEW DR NW

MARTHAS VIEW DR

FULLERTON

PL NW

FULLERTON PLACE DR NW

SANDY BOTTOM DR NW

SKIPPING ROCK LN NW

AMBERCREST CT NW

DOWLING

ST NW

FULLERTON

PLACE DR NW

DUNCAN

DR NW

HOPE ST

BYRUM WAY ST

ST
ONEW

ALL
 RD

REFLECTION AVE NW

HUNTERSVILLE-CONCORD RD

NCCGIA

²

ANX-12-20
Scott Moore 

p/o 10515 Poplar Tent Rd
p/o PIN: 4671-73-1211

Source: City of Concord
Planning Department

These maps and products are designed for general
reference only and data contained herein is subject 
to change. The City Of Concord, it's employees or 
agents make no warranty of merchantability or fitness 
for any purpose, expressed or implied, and assume no 
legal responsibility for the information contained therein. 
Data used is from multiple sources with various scales 
and accuracy. Additional research such as field surveys 
may be necessary to determine actual conditions.

Disclaimer

Legend
CONCORD CITY LIMITS

Subject Property

79



AN ORDINANCE TO EXTEND THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
CONCORD, NORTH CAROLINA TO INCLUDE +/- 0.214 ACRES LOCATED AT 

10515 POPLAR TENT ROAD 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has been petitioned under G.S. 160A-58.1 by 
Scott Moore, Skybrook LLC, on November 10th and 12th, 2020 to annex the area 
described below; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has by resolution directed the City Clerk to 
investigate the sufficiency of the petitions; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the City Clerk has certified the sufficiency of the petitions and 
a public hearing on the question of this annexation was held at via a virtual 
multimedia platform, on November 10th and 12th, 2020 after due notice by The 
Independent Tribune on October 23rd, 2020; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the petitions meet requirements of 
G.S. 160A-58.1; 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Concord, North Carolina, that: 
 
 SECTION 1. By virtue of the authority granted by G.S. 160A-58.1, the 
following described territory is hereby annexed and made part of the City of 
Concord, as of the 12th day of November 2020: 
 
Commencing at a Bolt found, the northwest corner of the Larry E. Stinson and 
Myra A. Stinson as recorded in Deed:1868‐258 In the Cabarrus County Register 
of Deeds Office; Said Bolt also being the southern corner of Lot 14 of Parkside at 
Skybrook North as recorded in Map Book 50 Page 759 in the Mecklenburg 
County Register of Deeds Office, and being the Justin Zimmerman & Susan 
Zimmerman property as recorded in Deed: 32258‐923  in the Mecklenburg 
County Register of Deeds Office.  Thence from said Bolt with the northern line of 
the Larry E. Stinson and Myra A. Stinson property N55‐58‐03E 343.51’ to a rebar 
set, the Point of Beginning, said rebar set also being on the southern line of the 
Skybrook LLC,  property as recorded in Deed:7075‐32 in the Cabarrus County 
Register of Deeds Office. Thence from said Point of Beginning with the northern 
line of the Larry E. Stinson and Myra A. Stinson property and the southern line of 
the Skybrook LLC property N55‐58‐03E 50.10’ to a rebar set; Thence a new line 
in the Larry E. Stinson and Myra A. Stinson property S37‐39‐12E 185.63’ to a 
rebar found on the southern line of the Larry E. Stinson and Myra A. Stinson 
property, said rebar found also being the northwest corner of Lot 110 of Parkside 
at Skybrook North as recorded in Map Book 70 Page 64 in the Cabarrus County 
Register of Deeds Office and being the Erich N.  Muhammad and Michella 
Muhammad property as recorded in Deed: 13333‐348 in the Cabarrus County 
Register of Deeds Office; Thence with the southern line of the Larry E. Stinson 
and Myra A. Stinson property S52‐20‐48W 50.00’ to a rebar found, the northeast 
corner of Lot 109 of Parkside at Skybrook North as recorded in Map Book 70 
Page 64 in the Cabarrus County Register of Deeds Office and being the Denise 
M. Lohbauer and James A. Lohbauer property as recorded in Deed: 12579‐278 
in the Cabarrus County Register of Deeds Office; Thence a new line in the Larry 
E. Stinson and Myra A. Stinson property N37‐39‐12W 188.79’ to a rebar found, 
the Point of Beginning.  
 
Said property being a 0.214 acre portion of the Larry E. Stinson and Myra A. 
Stinson property as shown on the Annexation Plat of the Larry E. Stinson and 
Myra A. Stinson property dated 9‐03‐20 by Yarbrough‐Williams & Houle Inc. 
 

SECTION 2. Upon and after the 12th day of November, 2020 the above 
described territory and its citizens and property shall be subject to all debts, laws, 
ordinances and regulations in force in the City of Concord and shall be entitled to 

80



the same privileges and benefits as other parts of the City of Concord.  Said 
territory shall be subject to municipal taxes according to G.S. 160A-58.10. 

 
SECTION 3. The Mayor of the City of Concord shall cause to be recorded 

in the office of the Register of Deeds of Cabarrus County, and in the Office of the 
Secretary of State in Raleigh, North Carolina, an accurate map of the annexed 
territory, described in Section 1 above, together with a duly certified copy of this 
ordinance.  Such a map shall also be delivered to the County Board of Elections, 
as required by G.S. 163-288.1. 
 

SECTION 4. Notice of adoption of this ordinance shall be published once, 
following the effective date of annexation, in a newspaper having general 
circulation in the City of Concord.  
 

Adopted this 12th day of November 2020. 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF CONCORD 
NORTH CAROLINA 

 
___________________  

William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:               APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________ ___          _______________________  
Kim Deason, City Clerk VaLerie Kolczynski, City 

Attorney 

81



 
Meeting Date 
November 10, 2020 
 

Annexation Staff Report 
 

The subject property consists of +/- 28.6 acres of land located at 1252 and 1260 Cox Mill 
Rd, and also includes an adjacent unaddressed parcel.  The City of Concord purchased 
the subject property by deed recorded in the Cabarrus County Register of Deeds office on 
February 19th, 2020 for the purpose of establishing a municipal park in the northwest 
sector of the City limits.   
 
The subject property is south of the Cabarrus County Clark Creek Heron Rookery, north 
of Cox Mill Elementary School, west of Cox Mill High School and east of the Highland 
Creek residential neighborhood.  The property is currently improved with a residential 
structure and outbuildings including a barn.  The City’s Parks and Recreation Department 
is currently in the process of soliciting input from the public in order to begin planning 
the Northwest Park. 
 
Properties to the north, south, and a few to the east remain in Cabarrus County. They are 
zoned LDR (Low Density Residential).  Cox Mill High School, to the east, is zoned RL 
(Residential Low Density) while Highland Creek is zoned R-CO (Residential County 
Originated). The 2030 Land Use Plan designates the subject property as Suburban 
Neighborhood and should annexation be approved, the City will administratively request 
a zoning classification of O-I (Office Institutional) in order to accommodate the public 
use of a municipal park.  O-I zoning would be consistent with the Land Use Plan.  

82



83



84



85



86



87



THE PROPERTY OF THE CITY OF CONCORD 

Parcel One: 

27.21 Acre Parcel (A portion of Map Book 39, Page 41) 
(Deed Book 14010, Page 249) (PIN: 4680-23-8327; Real ID: 02-001-0017.10) 

Lying and being in Township No. Two (2), Cabarrus County, North Carolina and being to the west of Cox 
Mill Road (SR# 1448) and being a 27.21 acres Parcel of land as shown on a map and survey by Jack R. 
Christian, R.L.S., dated June 29, 2001, to which map and survey reference is hereby made and a copy of 
which is found in Map Book 39, Page 41 (PIN: 4680-23-8327; Real ID: 02-001-0017.10), Cabarrus County
Registry, and is more specifically described as follows: 

Begin at a RAILROAD SPIKE, being the Northeast corner of said Parcel One as shown on said map and 
lying within the Right-of-Way of said Cox Mill Road as shown on said map; thence S01°30’00”W, 24.97 
feet at the easterly boundary of said Parcel One to a set IRON PIN, as shown on said map and described 
by NOTES #2 on said map; thence S01°30’00”W, 69.89 feet along the easterly boundary of said Parcel 
One to a set IRON PIN, as shown and described on said map, also being the Northeast corner of Parcel 
Four as shown on said map; thence S86°26’53”W (labeled N86°26’53”E), 175.78 feet along the southerly 
boundary of said Parcel One and the northerly boundary of said Parcel Four, passing a set IRON PIN, 
34.36 feet at the westerly Right-of-Way of said Cox Mill Road as shown and described on said map, to a 
set IRON PIN as shown and described on said map along the easterly boundary of said Parcel One, also 
being the Northwest corner of said Parcel Four; thence S03°35’20”E (labeled N03°35’20”W), 264.51 feet 
along said easterly boundary of said Parcel One and the westerly boundary of said Parcel Four and the 
westerly boundary of Parcel Three as shown on said map, to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on 
said map, being the Southeast corner of said Parcel One and the Southwest corner of said Parcel Three; 
thence S78°00’00”W, 2027.01 feet along the southerly boundary of said Parcel One, passing a set IRON 
PIN, 1626.98 feet along said southerly boundary line as shown and described on said map, to a set IRON 
PIN as shown and described on said map, along the centerline of CLARKE CREEK as described on NOTES 
#3 on said map, also being the Southwest corner of said Parcel One; thence along the centerline of said 
CLARKE CREEK as shown and described on said map the following fifteen (15) calls: (1) N05°19’20”E, 
56.69 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on said map; (2) N54°41’10”E, 193.11 feet to a set 
IRON PIN as shown and described on said map; (3) N38°06’21”W, 71.02 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown 
and described on said map; (4) N18°21’41”W, 99.93 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on 
said map; (5) N85°22’47”E, 107.86 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on said map; (6) 
N23°05’38”E, 102.15 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on said map; (7) N34°35’39”E, 44.20 
feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on said map; (8) N20°46’06”W, 90.75 feet to a set IRON 
PIN as shown and described on said map; (9) S68°01’27”W, 30.32 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and 
described on said map; (10) N43°23’59”W, 69.75 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on said 
map; (11) N69°03’29”W, 95.64 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on said map; (12) 
N85°53’04”W, 101.30 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on said map; (13) N51°01’20”W, 
98.79 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on said map; (14) N54°39’43”E, 93.42 feet to a set 
IRON PIN as shown and described on said map; (15) N43°11’50”W, 243.97 feet to a set IRON PIN as 
shown and described on said map, also being the Northwest corner of said Parcel One; thence 
S86°54’41”E, 1056.43 along the northerly boundary line of said Parcel One to an EXISTING IRON PIPE as 

Exhibit A

88

https://tax.cabarruscounty.us/SearchResults.aspx?field=parcel&parcel=46802383270000
https://tax.cabarruscounty.us/SearchResults.aspx?field=parcel&parcel=46802383270000


shown and described by NOTES #2 on said map; thence S86°55’52”E (labeled N86°55’52”W), 1297.03 
feet, passing a set IRON PIN, 1253.97 feet along the westerly Right-of-Way of said Cox Mill Road, as 
shown and described on said map to said RAILROAD SPIKE at the Northeast corner of said Parcel One, 
being the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 1,185,367 square feet or 27.21 acres, more or less, as 
shown on said map. 

Together with Parcel Two: 

1.00 Acre Parcel (A portion of Map Book 39, Page 41) 
(Deed Book 14010, Page 249) (PIN: 4680-33-2486; Real ID: 02-001-0017.20) 

Lying and being in Township No. Two (2), Cabarrus County, North Carolina and being a 1.00 acres Parcel 
of land as shown on said Map Book 39, Page 41 (PIN: 4680-33-2486; Real ID: 02-001-0017.20), Cabarrus
County Registry, and is more specifically described as follows: 

Commence at a RAILROAD SPIKE, being the Northeast corner of said Parcel One as shown on said map 
and lying within the Right-of-Way of said Cox Mill Road as shown on said map; thence S01°30’00”W, 
24.97 feet along the easterly boundary of said Parcel One to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on 
said map; thence along the centerline labeled as a 20’ ACCESS EASEMENT as shown on said map the 
following seven (7) calls: (1) S86°36’05”W, 144.24 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on said 
map; (2) N84°51’54”W, 214.04 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on said map; (3) 
S89°47’24”W, 84.28 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on said map, being the beginning of 
a curve; (4) thence 126.16 feet westerly, along said curve concave to the Southeast, having a radius of 
129.48 feet (chord bearing S61°52’42”W, chord length 121.23 feet) to a set IRON PIN as shown and 
described on said map; (5) S33°58’00”W, 102.41 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on said 
map, being the beginning of a curve; (6) thence 60.67 feet westerly, along said curve concave to the 
Northwest, having a radius of 458.44 feet (chord bearing S44°56’10”W, chord length 60.30 feet) to a set 
IRON PIN as shown and described on said map, beginning a compound curve; (7) thence 253.06 feet 
westerly, along said curve concave to the North having a radius of 336.05 feet (chord bearing 
S81°33’04”W, chord length 247.12 feet) to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on said map along 
the easterly boundary of Parcel Two, also being the POINT OF BEGINNING; thence S06°56’52”E, 10.00 
feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on said map, being the Southeast corner of said Parcel 
Two; thence S83°03’08”E, 217.80 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on said map, being the 
Southwest corner of said Parcel Two; thence N06°56’52”E, 200.00 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and 
described on said map, being the Northwest corner of said Parcel Two; thence N83°03’08”E, 217.80 feet 
to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on said map, being the Northeast corner of said Parcel Two; 
thence S06°56’52”E, 190.00 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on said map, to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING and containing 43,560 square feet or 1.00 acre, more or less, as shown on said map. 

Together with Parcel Four: 

0.39 Acre Parcel (A portion of Map Book 39, Page 41) 
(Deed Book 14010, Page 249) (PIN: 4680-43-2510; Real ID: 02-001-0017.40) 

89

https://tax.cabarruscounty.us/SearchResults.aspx?field=parcel&parcel=46802383270000
https://tax.cabarruscounty.us/SearchResults.aspx?field=parcel&parcel=46802383270000
https://tax.cabarruscounty.us/SearchResults.aspx?field=parcel&parcel=46802383270000


Lying and being in Township No. Two (2), Cabarrus County, North Carolina and being a 0.39 acres Parcel 
of land as shown on said Map Book 39, Page 41 (PIN: 4680-43-2510; Real ID: 02-001-0017.40), Cabarrus
County Registry, and is more specifically described as follows: 

Commence at a RAILROAD SPIKE, being the Northeast corner of said Parcel One as shown on said map 
and lying within the Right-of-Way of said Cox Mill Road as shown and described on said map; thence 
S01°30’00”W, 69.89 feet along the easterly boundary of said Parcel One to a set IRON PIN, as shown and 
described on said map, being the Northeast corner of Parcel Four as shown on said map; also being the 
POINT OF BEGINNING; thence S01°30’00”W, 100.39 feet along the easterly boundary of said Parcel Four 
to a set IRON PIN, as shown and described on said map, being the Southeast corner of said Parcel Four 
and the Northeast corner of said Parcel Three; thence S86°26’53”W (labeled N86°26’53”E), 166.87 feet 
along the southerly boundary of said Parcel Four and the northerly boundary of said Parcel Three, 
passing a set IRON PIN, 25.45 feet at the westerly Right-of-Way of said Cox Mill Road, as shown and 
described on said map, to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on said map along the easterly 
boundary of said Parcel One, being the Southwest corner of said Parcel Four; thence N03°35’20”W, 
100.00 feet along the westerly boundary of said Parcel Four and the easterly boundary of said Parcel 
One to a set IRON PIN, as shown and described on said map along the southerly boundary of said Parcel 
One, being the Northwest corner of said Parcel Four; thence N86°26’53”E, 175.78 feet along the 
northerly boundary of said Parcel Four and the southerly boundary of said Parcel One, passing a set 
IRON PIN, 141.42 feet at the westerly Right-of-Way of said Cox Mill Road, as shown and described on 
said map, to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on said map, being the Northeast corner of said 
Parcel Four, also being the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 17,132 square feet or 0.39 acres, more 
or less, as shown on said map.. 

Parcel One, Parcel Two and Parcel Four contains 1,246,059 square feet or 28.60 acres, more or less, as 
shown on said map. 

90

https://tax.cabarruscounty.us/SearchResults.aspx?field=parcel&parcel=46802383270000


953 956957
962

970
974

977
978

982
985 986

991
997

9981001 1002

9604
96089616

9617
96219624

9625

9628

9705

9708

9715

964
967 968

972
980

988
996

1000

9251
9291

9331
9371

9411
9511

9524 95369540

9543

9544
9552

9556
9557

9562
9566

9567 9570
9575 9578

95829585
95869590

9591

9594

9595

9598
9602

9603

9606

1509

987
990

991
995

999

1002

1003

1006

1007
1015

1018

1022

801

871

879998
999

1005

1022
10411044

1050

1051
1052

10551063

1070
1141

1150 1151

1200
1201

1221

1240 1243

1260

1266

1288

1300

1355

1400

1450

1477
1485

1500

1600
1645

1691
1705

9633
9637

9641

9642 9646

9649
9652

9653

9656
9661

9665
9669

1608
1609

1614 1617

9505

9511

9519

9520
9523

9524
9528

9532

9544
9548

955795609564
9568 9569

9573
9576 9579

9585
9601

9606 9610
9611
9621 9643

9646

9647

9650 9656

95899598
9602

9603
9606

9644
9648

9649
9652

9653
9656

96579660
9661

9664

9665

9668

9669

9670

9673 9674

9548
9554

9565
9572

9578

9603
9606
9610

9618

958962
963

966
970

971

974
975

978
979

983
986

993 996
997

9502
9503

9504
9508

9509
9512

9516
95179520

9524

9533
9536

9537

10036
10039

10040

10043

10044

10047

10048
10056

10063
10071

918
920

921
925 926929 930933

934941
944

965
966975

979
983991

1002
1003

95049508
9517
9520 9529

9530
9533
9537

9538
9541

9545
9552

9560
95619565
95699572

9576

1656
1660 1661

1664 1668
16711676

1680
1687

1692
1699

1706
1710 1714
1718
1722

1726
1734

1738 174117421819
1823

1828
1836

1840

9622

9625
9633

9634
9650 9701

9709

9715

9718

9719

9722

9725

9726
9728 9729

97339737
9740

1014

1838

1843

1846

1847

18501851

1901

1902
1910 1914

1921
1922

1929

1930

1937

1938
1942

1945
1946
1954
1960
20062007

2014
20222026

2034

ARAGORN LN NW

NEW LONDON

WAY NW

SPEARS
DR NW

PRESSLEYDR NW

TANNER
RD NW

MCGRUDEN

DR NW

BREVARD CT NW

PARKLAND PL NW

CAPWALK RD NW

WALTHAM
CTNW

PAISLEYDR NW
COX MILL RD

TROTTINGCIRNW

NUMENORE
DR NW

HERRINGBONELN NW

BE
LLE

GRAY
LN

 NW

PACING
LN NW

AN
AT

RE
LLA

LN
NW

BENJAMIN
WALKER LN

WILB
URN PA

RK
LN

NW

NCCGIA

²

ANX-07-20
City of Concord
1252 and 1260 

Cox Mill Rd
PINs:

4680-23-8327. 
4680-43-2510, & 
4680-33-2486

Source: City of Concord
Planning Department

These maps and products are designed for general
reference only and data contained herein is subject 
to change. The City Of Concord, it's employees or 
agents make no warranty of merchantability or fitness 
for any purpose, expressed or implied, and assume no 
legal responsibility for the information contained therein. 
Data used is from multiple sources with various scales 
and accuracy. Additional research such as field surveys 
may be necessary to determine actual conditions.

Disclaimer

Legend
CONCORD CITY LIMITS

Subject Property

EXHIBIT B

91



Exhibit C

92



93



94



95

Burgin
Text Box
CABARRUS CO.SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION

Burgin
Text Box
COX MILL ELEMENTARY

Burgin
Text Box
COX MILL HIGH SCHOOL

Burgin
Text Box
HIGHLAND CREEK

Burgin
Text Box
CABARRUS CO. & ODELL SPORTS FIELDS

Burgin
Text Box
COX MILL ROAD

Thayer
Text Box
ALLEN MILLS

Thayer
Text Box
GRANARY OAKS

Thayer
Text Box
EDENTON AT COX MILLS



CO
X M

ILL
 RD

ARAGORN LN NW

SPE
AR

S D
R N

W

PR
ESS

LEY
 DR

 NW

NUMENORE DR NW

CA
LLE

ND
ER

LN
NW

WILBURN PARK LN NW

PAISLEY DR NW

WALTHAM CT NW

ANDUINFALLS DR NW

BREVARD CT NWPAC
ING LN NW

BU
CKL

EBU
RY

CT
NW

TANNER RD NW

33.37 ac

1.02 ac 26.23 ac 0.35 ac

38.35 ac

1 inch = 300 feet
±

96

paulingj
Polygon



97

hydes
Polygonal Line



Existing
Open Play

Space

Existing
Playground

COX MILL
ELEMENTARY

Existing
Playground

Existing
Dock

25

50+/-

100+/-

B&
G

S1

S3

S4 Cox Mill Loop (Greenway)

Cox Mill Loop (Greenway)

S2

CABARRUS COUNTY
(SOIL & WATER

CONSERVATION)

RECREATION
CENTER

(40,000 +/- SF)

Splash Pad

Nature/
Activity
Center

Existing Parking
- 120 spaces

EXISTING FIELDS
(3 multi-purpose,

3 baseball)

Pedestrian
Bridge Crossing

Restr
oom

,

con
cess

ions

Cox Mill Loop (Greenway)

C
O

X
 M

ILL R
D

Proposed Nature Trails

“Natural”
Playground

Pump Track

Clarke Creek Greenway

Tennis and/or
Pickleball Courts

Obstacle/Skills-
Themed Playground

HEFNER PROPERTY_SITE PLAN

Example only.  Not intended for final development purposes

98



953 956957
962

970
974

977
978

982
985 986

991
997

9981001 1002

9604
96089616

9617
96219624

9625

9628

9705

9708

9715

964
967 968

972
980

988
996

1000

9251
9291

9331
9371

9411
9511

9524 95369540

9543

9544
9552

9556
9557

9562
9566

9567 9570
9575 9578

95829585
95869590

9591

9594

9595

9598
9602

9603

9606

1509

987
990

991
995

999

1002

1003

1006

1007
1015

1018

1022

801

871

879998
999

1005

1022
10411044

1050

1051
1052

10551063

1070
1141

1150 1151

1200
1201

1221

1240 1243

1260

1266

1288

1300

1355

1400

1450

1477
1485

1500

1600
1645

1691
1705

9633
9637

9641

9642 9646

9649
9652

9653

9656
9661

9665
9669

1608
1609

1614 1617

9505

9511

9519

9520
9523

9524
9528

9532

9544
9548

955795609564
9568 9569

9573
9576 9579

9585
9601

9606 9610
9611
9621 9643

9646

9647

9650 9656

95899598
9602

9603
9606

9644
9648

9649
9652

9653
9656

96579660
9661

9664

9665

9668

9669

9670

9673 9674

9548
9554

9565
9572

9578

9603
9606
9610

9618

958962
963

966
970

971

974
975

978
979

983
986

993 996
997

9502
9503

9504
9508

9509
9512

9516
95179520

9524

9533
9536

9537

10036
10039

10040

10043

10044

10047

10048
10056

10063
10071

918
920

921
925 926929 930933

934941
944

965
966975

979
983991

1002
1003

95049508
9517
9520 9529

9530
9533
9537

9538
9541

9545
9552

9560
95619565
95699572

9576

1656
1660 1661

1664 1668
16711676

1680
1687

1692
1699

1706
1710 1714
1718
1722

1726
1734

1738 174117421819
1823

1828
1836

1840

9622

9625
9633

9634
9650 9701

9709

9715

9718

9719

9722

9725

9726
9728 9729

97339737
9740

1014

1838

1843

1846

1847

18501851

1901

1902
1910 1914

1921
1922

1929

1930

1937

1938
1942

1945
1946
1954
1960
20062007

2014
20222026

2034

ARAGORN LN NW

NEW LONDON

WAY NW

SPEARS
DR NW

PRESSLEYDR NW

TANNER
RD NW

MCGRUDEN

DR NW

BREVARD CT NW

PARKLAND PL NW

CAPWALK RD NW

WALTHAM
CTNW

PAISLEYDR NW
COX MILL RD

TROTTINGCIRNW

NUMENORE
DR NW

HERRINGBONELN NW

BE
LLE

GRAY
LN

 NW

PACING
LN NW

AN
AT

RE
LLA

LN
NW

BENJAMIN
WALKER LN

WILB
URN PA

RK
LN

NW

NCCGIA

²

ANX-07-20
City of Concord
1252 and 1260

Cox Mill Rd
PINs:

4680-23-8327.
4680-43-2410, &

4680-33-2486

Source: City of Concord
Planning Department

These maps and products are designed for general
reference only and data contained herein is subject 
to change. The City Of Concord, it's employees or 
agents make no warranty of merchantability or fitness 
for any purpose, expressed or implied, and assume no 
legal responsibility for the information contained therein. 
Data used is from multiple sources with various scales 
and accuracy. Additional research such as field surveys 
may be necessary to determine actual conditions.

Disclaimer

Legend
CONCORD CITY LIMITS

Subject Property

99



NW PARK PROPERTY 
PROPERTY ANALYSIS & FACTS SHEET 

 

Property Address: 1252 Cox Mill Road 

Parcels (3): 4680-23-8327, 4680-33-2486, 4680-43-2510 (Map Attached)  

Property Description:  

• Total size: +/- 28.6 acres (15.6 outside) 
• Floodplain & floodway: +/- 12 acres (43%) 
• Floodway only: +/- 5.2 acres (18.5%) 
• Currently outside Concord City Limits 
• Current buildings on the property: 3-story 

home (3,302 sf), Shop/storage bldg (1,800 sf) 
& horse barn (900 sf)  - 6002 sf 

• Current Zoning: LDR (County) 
• Equivalent City Zoning: RE, RL, RM 
• 2030 Land Use Plan Designation: Suburban 

Neighborhood 

 
Adjoining and surrounding Property: 

• Clarke Creek Wetland and Rookery to the northeast, 33-acre nature preserve with educational trails and a 
dock overlooking wetlands.  Currently used by Cabarrus County Soil and Water Conservancy for 
Environmental Education. Access to this property is off of Benjamin Walker Lane (9511 Benjamin Walker 
Lane), and bus access for student education is difficult.  

• Property directly north is mostly large lot single-family residential, rural, and some vacant. Development 
plans have been presented at the Development Review Committee for this area. 

• County property directly south, including Cox Mill Elementary School (1450 Cox Mill Road), and recreation 
fields operated/managed by the Odell Youth Athletic Association (1300 Cox Mill Road). Total site is 65 acres. 
The 6 fields (1 baseball, 2 softball, 3 multi-purpose), additional open space used by the school, and trails at 
the back of the property consists of about 44 acres. 

• Cox Mill High School (1355 Cox Mill Road) lies immediately east across Cox Mill Road.   
• Clarke Creek provides the western property boundary, and there are several neighborhoods adjacent to or 

surrounding the site, including Highland Creek, Winding Walk, Christenbury, Granary Oaks (under 
construction), and Allen Mills (under construction).  

 
Appraisal Information: 

• Date of Appraisal: June 14, 2019 
• Appraised Value: $1,400,000 “as is” 

• Appraisal price per acre: $50,000 
• Highest & Best Use per appraisal: Residential 

 
Property comparable information: 

Property Owner Location Sale 
Date 

Sale Price / List 
Price 

Size % FP Price/acre 

RECENTLY SOLD PER APPRAISAL 
Epcon Poplar Tent 
LLC 

9000 Poplar 
Tent Rd. 

06/04/18 $3,100,000 69.8 55% $44,413 

KBR Bowman LLC 
(Huntersville) 

14300 Black 
Farms Rd. 

2/15/18 $1,322,000 24.9 0% $53,092 

Tarleton Place LLC 
(Classica Homes) 

Cox Mill Rd. 
(Granary Oaks) 

9/8/17 $2,340,000 57 55% $41,053 

M/I Homes of 
Charlotte LLC 

Cox Mill Rd. 
(Edenton) 

6/5/17 $3,320,000 87.4 45% $37,986 

FOR SALE 
Jeffrey Lee Bonds 9009 Poplar 

Tent Rd. 
N/A $3,900,000 33.5 43% $116,418 

Patrick & Poni 
Shannon 

2975 Odell 
School Rd. 

N/A $1,875,000 41.63 11.6% $45,040 

Ronald Lynn 
Goodnight 

2929 Odell 
School Rd. 

N/A $1,650,000 22 0% $75,000 

Rozalyn Abernathy 2821 Davidson 
Hwy. 

N/A $1,450,000 21.24 < 5% $68,267 

 

100



 

Population Data and Information: 

• 2018 Population within 1 mile: 4,242 
• 2018 Population within 3 miles: 43,726 
• 2018 Population within 5 miles: 101,306 
• 2023 Projected Population: 5,081 (1 mile) 
• 2023 Projected Pop: 50,385 (3 miles) 
• 2023 Projected Pop: 115,010 (5 miles) 

• Growth rate: 3.68% (1 mile) 
• Growth rate: 2.88% (3 miles) 
• Growth rate: 2.57% (5 miles) 
• Zip Code 28027 growth rate: 2.45% 
• Concord growth rate: 2.45% 
• Cabarrus County growth rate: 2.0%  

 
Environmental Information: 

• Date of ESA, Ph1 Report: 7/12/19 
• Minimum Env. Conditions noted by the report, which means : Generally no material risk of harm to public 

health or the environment, and generally would not be the subject of any enforcement actions. 
• One (1) minimal recognized Env. Condition (REC), several storage containers (drums) on the property, 

which would need to be removed by the owners prior to sale. 
• Floodplain, Floodway and potential jurisdictional wetlands noted in the report 
• Topography: The property slopes from Cox Mill Road to the back of the property at a gradual 4% slope.  

 
Transportation/Traffic Information: 

• Street Frontage: Approximately 170-feet along Cox Mill Road 
• Driveway Access: Yes, current driveway on Cox Mill, potential connections to properties east and west, 

include access to the Elementary School driveway. 
• Annual Average Daily Traffic (2018): 7,400  

 
Utility Information: 

• Current buildings are on a well and septic system. There are gravity sewer connection options, any of 
which would require a pump station with a capacity depending on property development. Water is 
available at Cox Mill Road 

• Duke Energy provides for Electric, and Piedmont Natural for Gas 
 

Connectivity: 

• The property will provide a direct linkage opportunity to the future Clarke Creek Greenway, which is one 
of the priority greenway sections for development over the next 5 years according to the Open Space 
Connectivity Analysis. 

• The future Clarke Creek Greenway could provide pedestrian and bicycle connectivity to Highland Creek 
(less than 1,000 feet), Allen Mills (less than half a mile), Winding Walk (just under 1 mile), Christenbury 
(4,000 feet), and Granary Oaks (just over 1 mile). 

• This property could also include greenway connectivity between Clarke Creek Greenway, and Hector 
Henry Greenway (Carolina Thread Trail corridor), and to Cox Mill Elementary and High School.  

 
Proposed Amenity Options: 

• Amenities that can be developed outside of the floodplain: 

1. Recreation/Community Center 
2. Parking 
3. Multi-Purpose Fields (grass or turf) 
4. Playgrounds 
5. Shelters 

6. Athletic courts (tennis/basketball) 
7. Greenways/trails (asphalt & natural surface) 
8. Splash Pad 
9. Maintenance and storage buildings (Buildings 

& Grounds and Parks & Recreation) 

• Amenities that could be developed within the floodplain with limited grading: 

1. Nature-based playgrounds 
2. Dog Park 
3. Greenways and trails 

4. Shelters (open air) 
5. Disc Golf 

• Amenities that could be developed in the floodway (no clearing or significant grading) 

1. Greenways 
2. Nature Trails 

101



AN ORDINANCE TO EXTEND THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
CONCORD, NORTH CAROLINA TO INCLUDE +/- 28.6 ACRES AT 1252 AND 
1260 COX MILL RD, AND AN UNADDRESSED PARCEL ON COX MILL RD, 

CONCORD, NC 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has been petitioned under G.S. 160A-58.1 by 
Jason Pauling and Lloyd Payne, The City of Concord, on November 10th and 
12th, 2020 to annex the area described below; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has by resolution directed the City Clerk to 
investigate the sufficiency of the petitions; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the City Clerk has certified the sufficiency of the petitions and 
a public hearing on the question of this annexation was held at via a virtual 
multimedia platform, on November 10th and 12th, 2020 after due notice by The 
Independent Tribune on October 23rd, 2020; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the petitions meet requirements of 
G.S. 160A-58.1; 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Concord, North Carolina, that: 
 
 SECTION 1. By virtue of the authority granted by G.S. 160A-58.1, the 
following described territory is hereby annexed and made part of the City of 
Concord, as of the 12th day of November 2020: 
 
Parcel One: 
27.21 Acre Parcel (A portion of Map Book 39, Page 41) 
(Deed Book 14010, Page 249) (PIN: 4680-23-8327; Real ID: 02-001-0017.10) 
Lying and being in Township No. Two (2), Cabarrus County, North Carolina and 
being to the west of Cox Mill Road (SR# 1448) and being a 27.21 acres Parcel of 
land as shown on a map and survey by Jack R. Christian, R.L.S., dated June 29, 
2001, to which map and survey reference is hereby made and a copy of which is 
found in Map Book 39, Page 41 (PIN: 4680-23-8327; Real ID: 02-001-0017.10), 
Cabarrus County Registry, and is more specifically described as follows: 

Begin at a RAILROAD SPIKE, being the Northeast corner of said Parcel 
One as shown on said map and lying within the Right-of-Way of said Cox Mill 
Road as shown on said map; thence S01°30’00”W, 24.97 feet at the easterly 
boundary of said Parcel One to a set IRON PIN, as shown on said map and 
described by NOTES #2 on said map; thence S01°30’00”W, 69.89 feet along the 
easterly boundary of said Parcel One to a set IRON PIN, as shown and 
described on said map, also being the Northeast corner of Parcel Four as shown 
on said map; thence S86°26’53”W (labeled N86°26’53”E), 175.78 feet along the 
southerly boundary of said Parcel One and the northerly boundary of said Parcel 
Four, passing a set IRON PIN, 34.36 feet at the westerly Right-of-Way of said 
Cox Mill Road as shown and described on said map, to a set IRON PIN as 
shown and described on said map along the easterly boundary of said Parcel 
One, also being the Northwest corner of said Parcel Four; thence S03°35’20”E 
(labeled N03°35’20”W), 264.51 feet along said easterly boundary of said Parcel 
One and the westerly boundary of said Parcel Four and the westerly boundary of 
Parcel Three as shown on said map, to a set IRON PIN as shown and described 
on said map, being the Southeast corner of said Parcel One and the Southwest 
corner of said Parcel Three; thence S78°00’00”W, 2027.01 feet along the 
southerly boundary of said Parcel One, passing a set IRON PIN, 1626.98 feet 
along said southerly boundary line as shown and described on said map, to a set 
IRON PIN as shown and described on said map, along the centerline of CLARKE 
CREEK as described on NOTES #3 on said map, also being the Southwest 
corner of said Parcel One; thence along the centerline of said CLARKE CREEK 
as shown and described on said map the following fifteen (15) calls: (1) 
N05°19’20”E, 56.69 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on said 
map; (2) N54°41’10”E, 193.11 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on 

102

https://tax.cabarruscounty.us/SearchResults.aspx?field=parcel&parcel=46802383270000
https://tax.cabarruscounty.us/SearchResults.aspx?field=parcel&parcel=46802383270000


said map; (3) N38°06’21”W, 71.02 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and 
described on said map; (4) N18°21’41”W, 99.93 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown 
and described on said map; (5) N85°22’47”E, 107.86 feet to a set IRON PIN as 
shown and described on said map; (6) N23°05’38”E, 102.15 feet to a set IRON 
PIN as shown and described on said map; (7) N34°35’39”E, 44.20 feet to a set 
IRON PIN as shown and described on said map; (8) N20°46’06”W, 90.75 feet to 
a set IRON PIN as shown and described on said map; (9) S68°01’27”W, 30.32 
feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on said map; (10) N43°23’59”W, 
69.75 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on said map; (11) 
N69°03’29”W, 95.64 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on said 
map; (12) N85°53’04”W, 101.30 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and described 
on said map; (13) N51°01’20”W, 98.79 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and 
described on said map; (14) N54°39’43”E, 93.42 feet to a set IRON PIN as 
shown and described on said map; (15) N43°11’50”W, 243.97 feet to a set IRON 
PIN as shown and described on said map, also being the Northwest corner of 
said Parcel One; thence S86°54’41”E, 1056.43 along the northerly boundary line 
of said Parcel One to an EXISTING IRON PIPE as shown and described by 
NOTES #2 on said map; thence S86°55’52”E (labeled N86°55’52”W), 1297.03 
feet, passing a set IRON PIN, 1253.97 feet along the westerly Right-of-Way of 
said Cox Mill Road, as shown and described on said map to said RAILROAD 
SPIKE at the Northeast corner of said Parcel One, being the POINT OF 
BEGINNING and containing 1,185,367 square feet or 27.21 acres, more or less, 
as shown on said map. 
Together with Parcel Two:  
1.00 Acre Parcel (A portion of Map Book 39, Page 41) 
(Deed Book 14010, Page 249) (PIN: 4680-33-2486; Real ID: 02-001-0017.20) 
 
Lying and being in Township No. Two (2), Cabarrus County, North Carolina and 
being a 1.00 acres Parcel of land as shown on said Map Book 39, Page 41 (PIN: 
4680-33-2486; Real ID: 02-001-0017.20), Cabarrus County Registry, and is more 
specifically described as follows: 

Commence at a RAILROAD SPIKE, being the Northeast corner of said 
Parcel One as shown on said map and lying within the Right-of-Way of said Cox 
Mill Road as shown on said map; thence S01°30’00”W, 24.97 feet along the 
easterly boundary of said Parcel One to a set IRON PIN as shown and described 
on said map; thence along the centerline labeled as a 20’ ACCESS EASEMENT 
as shown on said map the following seven (7) calls: (1) S86°36’05”W, 144.24 
feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on said map; (2) N84°51’54”W, 
214.04 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on said map; (3) 
S89°47’24”W, 84.28 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on said 
map, being the beginning of a curve; (4) thence 126.16 feet westerly, along said 
curve concave to the Southeast, having a radius of 129.48 feet (chord bearing 
S61°52’42”W, chord length 121.23 feet) to a set IRON PIN as shown and 
described on said map; (5) S33°58’00”W, 102.41 feet to a set IRON PIN as 
shown and described on said map, being the beginning of a curve; (6) thence 
60.67 feet westerly, along said curve concave to the Northwest, having a radius 
of 458.44 feet (chord bearing S44°56’10”W, chord length 60.30 feet) to a set 
IRON PIN as shown and described on said map, beginning a compound curve; 
(7) thence 253.06 feet westerly, along said curve concave to the North having a 
radius of 336.05 feet (chord bearing S81°33’04”W, chord length 247.12 feet) to a 
set IRON PIN as shown and described on said map along the easterly boundary 
of Parcel Two, also being the POINT OF BEGINNING; thence S06°56’52”E, 
10.00 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on said map, being the 
Southeast corner of said Parcel Two; thence S83°03’08”W, 217.80 feet to a set 
IRON PIN as shown and described on said map, being the Southwest corner of 
said Parcel Two; thence N06°56’52”W, 200.00 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown 
and described on said map, being the Northwest corner of said Parcel Two; 
thence N83°03’08”E, 217.80 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on 
said map, being the Northeast corner of said Parcel Two; thence S06°56’52”E, 
190.00 feet to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on said map, to the 
POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 43,560 square feet or 1.00 acre, more or 
less, as shown on said map. 

103

https://tax.cabarruscounty.us/SearchResults.aspx?field=parcel&parcel=46802383270000
https://tax.cabarruscounty.us/SearchResults.aspx?field=parcel&parcel=46802383270000


Together with Parcel Four:  
0.39 Acre Parcel (A portion of Map Book 39, Page 41) 
(Deed Book 14010, Page 249) (PIN: 4680-43-2510; Real ID: 02-001-0017.40) 
 
Lying and being in Township No. Two (2), Cabarrus County, North Carolina and 
being a 0.39 acres Parcel of land as shown on said Map Book 39, Page 41 (PIN: 
4680-43-2510; Real ID: 02-001-0017.40), Cabarrus County Registry, and is more 
specifically described as follows: 

Commence at a RAILROAD SPIKE, being the Northeast corner of said 
Parcel One as shown on said map and lying within the Right-of-Way of said Cox 
Mill Road as shown and described on said map; thence S01°30’00”W, 24.97 feet 
along the easterly boundary of said Parcel One to a set IRON PIN, as shown on 
said map and described by NOTES #2 on said map; thence S01°30’00”W, 69.89 
feet along the easterly boundary of said Parcel One to a set IRON PIN, as shown 
and described on said map, also being the Northeast corner of Parcel Four as 
shown on said map; and being the POINT OF BEGINNING; thence 
S01°30’00”W, 100.39 feet along the easterly boundary of said Parcel Four to a 
set IRON PIN, as shown and described on said map, being the Southeast corner 
of said Parcel Four and the Northeast corner of said Parcel Three; thence 
S86°26’53”W (labeled N86°26’53”E), 166.87 feet along the southerly boundary of 
said Parcel Four and the northerly boundary of said Parcel Three, passing a set 
IRON PIN, 25.45 feet at the westerly Right-of-Way of said Cox Mill Road, as 
shown and described on said map, to a set IRON PIN as shown and described 
on said map along the easterly boundary of said Parcel One, being the 
Southwest corner of said Parcel Four; thence N03°35’20”W, 100.00 feet along 
the westerly boundary of said Parcel Four and the easterly boundary of said 
Parcel One to a set IRON PIN, as shown and described on said map along the 
southerly boundary of said Parcel One, being the Northwest corner of said Parcel 
Four; thence N86°26’53”E, 175.78 feet along the northerly boundary of said 
Parcel Four and the southerly boundary of said Parcel One, passing a set IRON 
PIN, 141.42 feet at the westerly Right-of-Way of said Cox Mill Road, as shown 
and described on said map, to a set IRON PIN as shown and described on said 
map, being the Northeast corner of said Parcel Four, also being the POINT OF 
BEGINNING and containing 17,132 square feet or 0.39 acres, more or less, as 
shown on said map.. 
Parcel One, Parcel Two and Parcel Four contains 1,246,059 square feet or 28.60 
acres, more or less, as shown on said map. 
 

SECTION 2. Upon and after the 12th day of November, 2020 the above 
described territory and its citizens and property shall be subject to all debts, laws, 
ordinances and regulations in force in the City of Concord and shall be entitled to 
the same privileges and benefits as other parts of the City of Concord.  Said 
territory shall be subject to municipal taxes according to G.S. 160A-58.10. 

 
SECTION 3. The Mayor of the City of Concord shall cause to be recorded 

in the office of the Register of Deeds of Cabarrus County, and in the Office of the 
Secretary of State in Raleigh, North Carolina, an accurate map of the annexed 
territory, described in Section 1 above, together with a duly certified copy of this 
ordinance.  Such a map shall also be delivered to the County Board of Elections, 
as required by G.S. 163-288.1. 
 

SECTION 4. Notice of adoption of this ordinance shall be published once, 
following the effective date of annexation, in a newspaper having general 
circulation in the City of Concord.  
 

Adopted this 12th day of November 2020. 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF CONCORD 
NORTH CAROLINA 

 
___________________  

104

https://tax.cabarruscounty.us/SearchResults.aspx?field=parcel&parcel=46802383270000
https://tax.cabarruscounty.us/SearchResults.aspx?field=parcel&parcel=46802383270000


William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:               APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________ ___          _______________________  
Kim Deason, City Clerk VaLerie Kolczynski, City 

Attorney 

105



30 Market St, 26 Union St. S., Barbrick Wrap

Grant Analysis (10 Year)
City Grant
Estimated Assessed Value: $50,000,000

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10
Total Assessed Value $50,000,000.00 $50,000,000.00 $50,000,000.00 $50,000,000.00 $50,000,000.00 $50,000,000.00 $50,000,000.00 $50,000,000.00 $50,000,000.00 $50,000,000.00

City taxes at .48 240,000.00$     240,000.00$     240,000.00$     240,000.00$     240,000.00$     240,000.00$     240,000.00$     240,000.00$               240,000.00$                240,000.00$       

Grant @ Tier % 204,000.00$     204,000.00$     204,000.00$     204,000.00$     204,000.00$     180,000.00$     156,000.00$     132,000.00$               120,000.00$                120,000.00$       

Net Taxes to City 36,000.00$      36,000.00$      36,000.00$      36,000.00$      36,000.00$      60,000.00$      84,000.00$      108,000.00$               120,000.00$                120,000.00$       
10 Year Taxes 2,400,000.00$ 

10 Year Grant 1,728,000.00$ 

10 Year Net Revenue 672,000.00$    
County Grant
Estimated Assessed Value: $50,000,000

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10
Total Assessed Value $50,000,000.00 $50,000,000.00 $50,000,000.00 $50,000,000.00 $50,000,000.00 $50,000,000.00 $50,000,000.00 $50,000,000.00 $50,000,000.00 $50,000,000.00

County taxes at .74 370,000.00$     370,000.00$     370,000.00$     370,000.00$     370,000.00$     370,000.00$     370,000.00$     370,000.00$               370,000.00$                370,000.00$       

Grant @ Tier % 314,500.00$     314,500.00$     314,500.00$     314,500.00$     314,500.00$     277,500.00$     240,500.00$     203,500.00$               185,000.00$                185,000.00$       

Net Taxes to County 55,500.00$      55,500.00$      55,500.00$      55,500.00$      55,500.00$      92,500.00$      129,500.00$     166,500.00$               185,000.00$                185,000.00$       
10 Year Taxes 3,700,000.00$ 

10 Year Grant 2,664,000.00$ 

10 Year Net Revenue 1,036,000.00$ 
MSD Grant
Estimated Assessed Value: $50,000,000

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10
Total Assessed Value $50,000,000.00 $50,000,000.00 $50,000,000.00 $50,000,000.00 $50,000,000.00 $50,000,000.00 $50,000,000.00 $50,000,000.00 $50,000,000.00 $50,000,000.00

MSD taxes at .23 115,000.00$     115,000.00$     115,000.00$     115,000.00$     115,000.00$     115,000.00$     115,000.00$     115,000.00$               115,000.00$                115,000.00$       

Grant @ Tier % 97,750.00$      97,750.00$      97,750.00$      97,750.00$      97,750.00$      86,250.00$      74,750.00$      63,250.00$                 57,500.00$                  57,500.00$         

Net Taxes to MSD 17,250.00$      17,250.00$      17,250.00$      17,250.00$      17,250.00$      28,750.00$      40,250.00$      51,750.00$                 57,500.00$                  57,500.00$         
10 Year Taxes 1,150,000.00$ 

10 Year Grant 828,000.00$    

10 Year Net Revenue 322,000.00$    

10 Year City/County/MSD Taxes 7,250,000.00$ 
10 Year City/County/MSD Grant 5,220,000.00$ 
10 Year City/County/MSD Net Revenue 2,030,000.00$ 

106



 

Page 1 of 18 
 

CITY OF CONCORD  
COUNTY OF CABARRUS 
NORTH CAROLINA 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN  
CITY OF CONCORD AND  
CONCORD MASTER VENTURE, LLC  

 
     

 
This Agreement is entered into effective as of ____________ ___, 2020 (the “Agreement Date”) 
by and between Concord Master Venture, LLC a Florida limited liability company and/or 
corporation (“Company”), its successors and/or assigns, and the City of Concord, North Carolina, 
a North Carolina municipal corporation (“City”), and describes the agreement between the parties 
relating to an economic development project located at 30 Market St. SW., 26 Union St. S., and 
25 Barbrick Ave SW (collectively referred to as “Site”) in Concord, NC to assist the Company 
with the development and construction of a downtown catalyst project (the “Project”) comprised 
of the following improvements as more particularly described in the Master Development 
Agreement dated _______, 2020 (the “MDA”): 
 

1. Approximately 80 parking stalls for personal vehicles. 
2. Approximately 294 multifamily residential units, of which 151 units will constitute 

“Workforce Housing” as defined in the Master Development Agreement. 
3. Approximately 15,300 square feet of retail space. 

 
See Exhibit “A” for Development Description & Catalyst Project Schematic Drawings. 
 
This agreement terminates the agreement dated July 10, 2019 entered into by and between the 
Company and the City.  
 
 

RECITALS: 
 

WHEREAS, the City is vitally interested in the economic welfare of its citizens and the 
creation and maintenance of sustainable and well-paying jobs for its citizens in strategically 
important industries and therefore wishes to provide the necessary conditions to stimulate 
investment in the local economy and promote business, resulting in the creation of a substantial 
investment in the City and to encourage economic growth and development opportunities which 
the City has determined will be made possible pursuant to the Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City is vitally interested in the economic welfare of its citizens and the 

creation and maintenance of a sustainable and vibrant downtown core and therefore wishes to 
provide the necessary conditions to stimulate investment in the economy of the downtown and to 
promote business and housing therein, resulting in the creation of a substantial investment in the 
City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Company proposes to make an estimated capital investment of 

$50,000,000.00 at the Site; and 
 

107



Page 2 of 18 
 

WHEREAS, the City recognizes that the Project may bring direct and indirect benefits to 
the City, including development of a new or expanding business, job creation, economic 
diversification and stimulus, and has offered economic development incentives (the “EDI Grants”) 
to induce the Company to locate the Project at the Site; and 

 
WHEREAS, to encourage community comment and fulfill the requirements of the General 

Statutes, the City Council held a public hearing on offering this Agreement to the Company at a 
regularly scheduled meeting held on October 8, 2020; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City hereby acknowledges that the terms of this Agreement, including 

specifically the development of the Project and the EDI Grants described in this Agreement, 
constitute a dispositive inducement to the City to offer this Agreement and similarly the Company 
hereby acknowledges that its decision to locate the Project at the Site resulted from the City’s offer 
of local incentives described in this Agreement and that such incentives serve a valid public 
purpose. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements set 

forth herein, the parties hereby agree as follows: 
 

I. Company Investment 
 

 In return for the assistance and consideration being provided by the City under the terms 
 of this Agreement, Company agrees as follows: 
 

A.  The Project: Investment, Description and Time Frame 
  

Company will spend an estimated amount of $50,000,000.00 within five (5) years of the 
Agreement Date (the “Investment Term”), on capital costs related to the Project. The 
Project shall be limited to Company’s real property as determined by the Cabarrus County 
Tax Assessor. The Project shall result in the development and construction of mixed-use 
structures and a parking garage (the “Facility or Facilities”) at the Site. The Project shall 
consist of the redevelopment of the Site in accordance with Exhibit A and include the 
following: 
 

1. Approximately 80 parking stalls for personal vehicles. 
2. Approximately 294 multifamily residential units, of which 151 units will constitute 

“Workforce Housing” as defined in the Master Development Agreement. 
3. Approximately 15,300 square feet of retail space. 

 
The Project shall include appurtenances necessary and traditional for business or as 
provided by law. Company shall comply with all requirements of the City’s planning, 
development and land use ordinances, as they may from time to time be amended, in 
developing the Project. 
 
B. Build, Open, and Market 

 

108



Page 3 of 18 
 

1. Company must build or cause to be built, open and market for sale or lease, the 
Project within the Investment Term. Failure to build, open and market within 
the Investment Term shall be a default under this Agreement. 
 

2. From and after the substantial completion of the Facilities, the Company must 
then continuously market the Facilities as a mixed-use development for 
residential and commercial tenants for the remainder of the term of this 
Agreement), or until fully occupied by lessees, or sold, whichever first occurs.  

 
3. During the term of this Agreement, the Company must contract for and use at 

the Project the following utilities to the extent the same are provided by and are 
available from the City: potable water and sanitary sewerage treatment. 

 
C. Request Incentives and Provide Documentation of Investment   
 
After Company has completed the construction and the equipping of the Project, Company 
must submit the following documentation to the City’s Accountant to begin the EDI 
Grants: 
 

1. Cabarrus County Tax Assessors listing of tax value for the real property 
comprising the Project;  
 

2. a written request for incentive payment designating the year for which 
incentives are requested;  

 
3. proof of payment of taxes due to the City of Concord for each year for which 

incentives are requested; and 
 
Company must make a separate request for each of the ten contemplated EDI Grant 
payments and shall update the required documentation annually for each year in which 
incentives are requested. Company shall promptly provide any and all such additional 
information evidencing compliance with this Agreement as the City may request.  EDI 
Grant requests shall be based on one Tax Year only and EDI Grant payments shall not be 
processed or paid more than once per calendar year.  In the event more than one payment 
is requested in a calendar year, the first payment request received shall be processed and 
paid and the subsequent request shall be processed and paid in the following fiscal year.   
 

II.  City Economic Development Incentives  
 
In consideration of the Company’s agreement to locate the Project at the Site, the City will 
provide the EDI Grants as follows: 

A. The City agrees to provide a one-time payment of $500,000 to the Company for the 
Company assuming the full responsibility and cost associated with asbestos 
abatement and demolition of the structures located at 26 Union St. S. The City will 
make the one-time $500,000 payment once the Company provides satisfactory 

109



Page 4 of 18 
 

proof to the City that the asbestos abatement and demolition of 26 Union St. S. is 
complete. 

B. The City agrees to provide EDI Grants to Company for a term of ten (10) years (the 
“Payment Term”). The ten year Payment Term shall begin upon the Company’s 
written request for EDI Grant payments (provided that the other requirements of 
this Agreement are met in all material respects), and shall continue for a total of ten 
(10) consecutive years. See Exhibit B.   
 

C. The EDI Grant amount is calculated as follows: 
 

Assessed Valuation of real property improvements associated with the Project for 
the applicable Tax Year  
 
minus the Assessed Valuation for the Base Year  
 
multiplied by the then applicable total City, Cabarrus County and Municipal 
Service District ad valorem tax rates  
 
multiplied by the [Gradually Declining Percentage] As defined in Exhibit B. 
= EDI Grant payment 

 
“Assessed Valuation” or “Assessed Value” means  

a) for real property, the Cabarrus County Tax Assessor’s official valuation of 
the applicable real property for property taxation purposes excluding any 
increases in the Land valuation minus the official valuation of the Site as of 
the Base Year, and  

 
The current ad valorem City tax rate is 0.0048. The current ad valorem Cabarrus 
County tax rate is 0.0074. The current ad valorem Municipal Service District tax 
rate 0.0023. The number may vary based on the applicable year in which each Grant 
payment is calculated and paid. 
 
“Base Year” means 2020 for the purposes of calculating the investment. The 
official valuation for the Base Year shall be zero for the purposes of the EDI Grant 
calculation. 
 
“Tax Year” means the calendar year in which ad valorem taxes are assessed on a 
given parcel of real property.   
 
For example, Tax Year 2015 is Calendar Year (CY) 2014.    
 2014 A capital investment increases in a property’s value  
 2015 Increase is captured by the Tax Assessor and is reflected in the 
Assessed Value as of Jan. 2015.  Ad valorem taxes are billed in August (2015) of 
each year and due without penalty by January (2016) of the following year. 
    

110



Page 5 of 18 
 

D. Both parties agree that calculation of the incentives is based solely on the valuation 
of the Company’s real property only, as by the Cabarrus County Tax Assessor.  The 
real property valuations made by the County Tax Assessor are deemed by both 
parties to be the conclusive and final determination of the investments made by the 
Company; provided, that the Company does not waive any rights it may have to 
dispute any assessment.  
 

E. If the Assessed Value of the real property comprising the Project (or any part of it) 
is disputed by the Company, its agents, employees or lawyers, and as a result of 
such dispute, the Company withholds any part of payment of its ad valorem taxes 
to the City, Cabarrus County, or the Municipal Service District then the City shall 
make the EDI Grant payment as calculated only on the undisputed amount of the 
Assessed Value. Should the value be determined by a tribunal of proper jurisdiction 
or otherwise resolved, and the Company gives written notice to the City that the 
dispute of valuation is resolved within the Payment Term, then the City will make 
the payment on the amount so resolved upon the request of the Company and such 
documentation of the resolution as the City may require. The Company shall notify 
the City in writing of any appeal it makes to the Cabarrus County Board of 
Equalization and Review and/or the N.C. Property Tax Commission. Failure to 
notify the City of any ad valorem tax appeals is a default under this Agreement.   

 
F. The portion of the City’s annual EDI Grant payment calculated based on Cabarrus 

County and Municipal Service District ad valorem taxes is dependent on the City’s 
receipt and access to the ad valorem taxes collected for Cabarrus County and the 
Municipal Service District at the time of payment. If the City does not have access 
to Cabarrus County or Municipal Service District funds at the time that an EDI 
Grant payment is due, it may withhold that portion of the payment until the City 
has access to such funds.   

 
G. The Company shall produce and the City is entitled to receive such records related 

to the Company’s real property investment in the Facility as the City may 
reasonably request in the performance of this Agreement.   

 
H. The City shall pay the first EDI Grant to the Company by the later of (i) May 30 of 

the Tax Year in which the request was made or (ii) thirty (30) days following the 
request, provided that (i) the data requested under Section I.C. may be verified by 
City staff., and (ii) Cabarrus County Tax Assessor has completed any audits of the 
value of the assessed real property.   

 
I. Until such time as the Facility is 90% leased, in no case shall the City make any 

EDI Grant payment(s) for any year and any subsequent year during which the 
Company ceases to market the Facility. Once the Facility is 90% leased, this 
section shall have no further force or effect provided Facility remains 90% leased 
during the EDI Grant ten (10) year payment period.  

 

111



Page 6 of 18 
 

J. The Project consists of developing three mixed use structures on three individual 
parcels. The Company may initiate EDI Grant payments for each individual 
parcel as the Company completes construction.  
 

III. Reduction and Recapture of Incentives 
 

A. If Company is not current on all taxes, fees, assessments or other amounts owed to the City 
by Company related to the Project at the time an EDI Grant is to be paid, the City may set 
off from any EDI Grant any amount(s) so owed by Company to City. 
 

B. If for any reason Company fails to invest at least $1,500,000.00 within three (3) years from 
the Agreement Date, then the City will have no responsibility to make any EDI Grants 
pursuant to this Agreement.  
 

C. Company acknowledges that the EDI Grants shall only be calculated on verified Assessed 
Valuations resulting from capital investments related to the Project.  The Company’s actual 
investment amount may vary from the estimated amount appearing in Section I.A. of this 
Agreement and may vary from the amount reflected in the Assessed Value.   
 

D. During the ten-year Payment Term, the EDI Grant payment is calculated on the total 
change in Assessed Valuations from the value of Base Year. If the Assessed Value 
increases in any of the nine subsequent years of the Payment Term, the corresponding EDI 
Grant will increase accordingly.   
 
EXAMPLE:  Hypothetical Company agrees to invest $10,000,000 in year one which is 
expected to increase the Assessed Valuation on a dollar-for-dollar basis. The Tax Assessor 
finds the increase in tax value to be only $9,000,000.  The incentive paid by City for year 
one is $110,925.  [$9,000,000 x (.0048+.0023+.0074) x 85%]  In year two, Company 
invests another $1,000,000 which does result in a dollar-for-dollar valuation increase for a 
total Assessed Valuation of $10 million.  The incentive paid by the City for year two is 
$123,250. [$10,000,000 x (.0048+.0023+.0074) x 85%] 
 
Similarly, if the Assessed Value decreased in any of the subsequent years of the Payment 
Term, such reduction in total Assessed Value will be reflected in a decreased EDI Grant 
payment amount. 
 

E. The City is not required to make any EDI Grants to Company at any time after any public 
announcement by Company of its plan to cease marketing the Facility. Once the Facility is 
90% leased, this section shall have no further force or effect provided Facility remains 90% 
leased during the EDI Grant ten (10) year payment period. 
 

F. The provisions of this Section III survive the termination of this Agreement.  

IV. Indemnification and Limitations   
 
Company will indemnify and hold harmless the City, and its officers and employees (the 

112



Page 7 of 18 
 

“Indemnified Parties”), for damages imposed upon them by a court of final determination 
based on any claims of third parties arising out of any act or omission of the Company in 
the performance required of it by this Agreement, provided, however, that such 
indemnification shall not apply to third party claims arising out of or relating to an 
intentional or negligent act or omission of the City. The City agrees that none of the 
foregoing shall be construed to release the City from the obligations it has undertaken 
elsewhere in this Agreement, in connection with the EDI Grants or otherwise. Except as 
otherwise set forth herein, each Indemnified Party and the Company agrees to pay its own 
costs incurred in connection herewith, including all costs incurred in connection with the 
preparation of this Agreement.  
 
COMPANY SHALL NOT BE LIABLE TO THE CITY UNDER ANY 
CIRCUMSTANCES FOR ANY CLAIMS ARISING OUT OF ANY ACT OR OMISSION 
OF THE COMPANY IN THE PERFORMANCE REQUIRED OF IT BY THIS 
AGREEMENT FOR SPECIAL, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL 
DAMAGES, INCLUDING LOST REVENUES AND PROFITS, EVEN IF IT HAS BEEN 
ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF THOSE DAMAGES.   
 

V. Disclaimer of Warranties   

Company acknowledges that the City has not designed the Facility, that the City has not 
supplied any plans or specifications with respect thereto and that the City: (a) is not a 
manufacturer of, or dealer in, any of the component parts of the Facility or similar Facility, 
(b) has not made any recommendation, given any advice nor taken any other action with 
respect to (i) the choice of any supplier, vendor or designer of, or any other contractor with 
respect to the Facility or any component part thereof or any property or rights relating 
thereto or (ii) any action taken or to be taken with respect to the Facility or any component 
part thereof or any property or rights relating thereto at any stage of the construction 
thereof, (c) has not at any time had physical possession of the Facility or any component 
part thereof, and (d) has not made any warranty or other representation, express or 
implied, that the Facility or any component part thereof or any property or rights relating 
thereto (i) will not result in or cause injury or damage to persons or property, (ii) has been 
or will be properly designed, or will accomplish the results which Company intends 
therefor, or (iii) is safe in any manner or respect. 

The City makes no express or implied warranty or representation of any kind whatsoever 
with respect to the Facility or any component part thereof, including but not limited to any 
warranty or representation with respect to the merchantability or the fitness or suitability 
thereof for any particular purpose, and further including the design or condition thereof, 
the safety, workmanship, quality, or capacity thereof; compliance thereof with the 
requirements of any law, rule, specification or contract pertaining thereto; any latent 
defect; the Facility’s ability to perform any function; or any other characteristic of the 
Facility; it being agreed that as between the City and Company, Company is to bear all 
risks relating to the Facility, the completion thereof or the transactions contemplated 
hereby and Company hereby waives the benefits of any and all implied warranties and 
representation of the City. 

113



Page 8 of 18 
 

The provision of this Section V shall survive the Agreement’s termination. 
 
VI. Termination of Agreement  

This Agreement shall terminate after the City has made the last of the EDI Grant payments 
required by this Agreement, or in no case later than fifteen (15) years from the Agreement 
Date.  After such termination, this Agreement will be null and void, and the parties to this 
Agreement will have no further obligations from one to the other thereafter, except as 
specifically noted in this Agreement. 
 

VII. Assignments  
 
The Company shall not assign this Agreement or any portion thereof without the written 
consent of the City which will not be unreasonably withheld, nor shall the Company 
assign any funds due or to become due to it hereunder without the prior written consent of 
the City; provided, however, the Company shall be permitted without obtaining the City’s 
consent to assign this Agreement or any portion thereof, or any funds due or to become due 
to it hereunder, to any direct or indirect wholly-owned subsidiary or other related party of 
the Company or to any company that is the successor by merger, asset purchase or 
otherwise to all or substantially all of its business, or to any person or entity that acquires 
the Project (and any such party shall assume all obligations of the Company under this 
Agreement), provided that City Accountant is notified in writing of such assignment within 
thirty days.  However, in the event of such assignment, the Company will still remain 
ultimately responsible and liable for the performance of the Company’s obligations 
hereunder.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth herein, transfer of direct or 
indirect membership interests in Company, or its rights hereunder, shall be permitted 
without further consent in accordance with the terms of Section 4.31 of the MDA, which 
is incorporated in this Agreement by reference as if fully set forth herein. 

 
VIII. Representations  

 
The Company represents as of the date of this Agreement as follows: 
 
A. The Company (i) is a Florida limited liability company  duly organized and validly 

existing under the laws of its state of Florida; (ii) is duly qualified to transact business 
and is in good standing in North Carolina; (iii) is not in violation of any provision of 
its organizational documents; (iv) has full power to own its properties and conduct its 
business; (v) has full power and authority to enter into this Agreement and to enter into 
and carry out the transactions contemplated by this Agreement; (vi) by proper action 
has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Agreement; and (vii) is not in 
default under any provision of this Agreement. 
 

B. The Company’s execution and delivery of this Agreement neither conflicts with, nor 
will result in, a breach or default under its organizational documents; nor, to the best of 
its knowledge, will its execution and delivery conflict with, or result in, a breach or 
default under the terms, conditions, or provisions of any statute, order, rule, regulation, 

114



Page 9 of 18 
 

agreement, or instrument to which the Company is a party or by which it is bound; nor 
will its execution and delivery result in the imposition of any lien on its property. 

 
C. The Company has duly authorized, executed, and delivered this Agreement, and to the 

Company’s knowledge, this Agreement constitutes its legal, valid, and binding 
obligations, enforceable in accordance with its terms. 

 
D. To the Company’s knowledge, there is no litigation or proceeding pending or, to its 

knowledge, threatened against the Company, which would adversely affect the validity 
of this Agreement. 

 
The City represents as of the date of this Agreement as follows: 
 
A. To the best of the City’s knowledge at the time of execution of this Agreement, no 

officer or official of the City has any interest (financial, employment, or other) in the 
Company or the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 
 

B. With respect to this Agreement, City has complied fully with all requirements of N.C. 
General Statute 158-7.1, to the City’s ability and knowledge. 

 
C. The City shall make every effort to include the amounts of the grant payments in the 

City’s annual budget ordinance.     
 

NO PROVISION OF THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE CONSTRUED OR 
INTERPRETED AS CREATING A PLEDGE OF THE FAITH AND CREDIT OF 
THE CITY WITHIN THE MEANING OF ANY CONSTITUTIONAL DEBT 
LIMITATION. NO PROVISION OF THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE 
CONSTRUED OR INTERPRETED AS DELEGATING GOVERNMENTAL 
POWERS NOR AS A DONATION OR A LENDING OF THE CREDIT OF THE 
CITY WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE STATE CONSTITUTION.  THIS 
AGREEMENT SHALL NOT DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY OR CONTINGENTLY 
OBLGATE THE CITY TO MAKE ANY PAYMENTS BEYOND THOSE 
APPROPRIATED IN THE SOLE DISCRETION OF THE CITY FOR ANY FISCAL 
YEAR IN WHICH THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE IN FORCE.  NO PROVISION 
OF THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE CONSTRUED TO PLEDGE OR TO CREATE 
A LIEN ON ANY CLASS OR SOURCE OF THE CITY’S MONEYS, NOR SHALL 
ANY PROVISION OF THE AGREEMENT RESTRICT TO ANY EXTENT 
PROHIBITED BY LAW, ANY ACTION OR RIGHT OF ACTION ON THE PART 
OF ANY FUTURE CITY GOVERNING BODY. TO THE EXTENT OF ANY 
CONFLICT BETWEEN THIS ARTICLE AND ANY OTHER PROVISION OF 
THIS AGREEMENT, THIS ARTICLE TAKES PRIORITY. 
 

IX. Miscellaneous   
 

A. Definitions.  All terms used in this Agreement and not otherwise defined will have 
their commonly accepted dictionary meanings.  

115



Page 10 of 18 
 

 
B. Governing Law.  The parties intend that the law of the State of North Carolina 

will govern this Agreement. 
 

C. Notices. 
 

1) Any communication required or permitted by this Agreement must be in writing 
except as expressly provided otherwise in this Agreement. 
 

2) Any communication under this Agreement shall be sufficiently given and deemed 
given when delivered by email, by hand, by private delivery service or by US 
Postal Service, first-class certified mail, postage prepaid, and addressed as 
follows: 
 

 
  If to Company:    
      Concord Master Venture, LLC 
      Attn: Peter Flotz 
      2420 E. Sunrise Blvd. #90 
      Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33304 
      pflotz@lmgroup.us 
 
  With a required copy to Melville Law, P.A. 
      Attn: Drew Melville, Esquire 
      101 NE 3rd Avenue, Suite 1500 
      Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301 
      drew@melville.law 

               
With copy to  
Investor Member Concord Investor QOF LP 
   200 West Street 
   New York, New York 10282 
   Attention: Urban Investment Group Portfolio 

    Manager 
   E-mail; gs-uig-portfo1io-manager@gs.com  
   gs-uig-docs@gs.com 
 
With copy to   Sidley Austin LLP 
   787 Seventh Avenue 
   New York, New York 10019 
   Attention: Steven C. Koppel, Esq. 
   E-mail: skoppel@sidley.com 

 
 If to the City:   City Manager 
   City of Concord 
   35 Cabarrus Avenue, West 

116

mailto:pflotz@lmgroup.us


Page 11 of 18 
 

   Concord, NC, 28025 
    
   P. O. Box 308 
   Concord, NC 28026-0308  
 
   paynel@concordnc.gov 
 
 With a required copy to:  City Attorney  
   City of Concord 
   35 Cabarrus Avenue, West 
   Concord, NC 28025 
 
  P.O. Box 308  
  Concord, NC 28026-0308 
   
  kolczynv@concordnc.gov 
 
 
 Requests for EDI Grants to:   City Grant Accountant 
 
 With a copy to:  Finance Director 
 
 Both at:   City of Concord 
   Finance Dept. 
  35 Cabarrus Avenue, West 
  Concord, NC, 28025 
    
   PO Box 308 
   Concord, NC 28026-0308 
 
Any addressee may designate additional or different addresses for 
communications by notice given under this Section to each other. 
 

D. Non-Business Days.  If the date for making any payment or performing any act or 
exercising any right is not a Business Day, such payment must be made or act 
performed or right exercised on or before the next Business Day.  A Business Day shall 
be any day Monday through Friday excluding any day which is a legal holiday and the 
United States Post Office is closed for transactions.  
 

E. Entire Agreement: Amendments.  This Agreement constitutes the entire contract 
between the parties. This Agreement may not be changed except in writing signed by all 
parties. 
 

F. Binding Effect. This Agreement is binding upon, inures to the benefit of and is enforceable 
by the parties and their respective successors and assigns. There are no other agreements 
or other conditions precedent to the binding nature of the respective obligations of the 

117



Page 12 of 18 
 

City under Sections I and II, other than the performance by Company of its obligations 
under this Agreement. 
 

G. Time. Time is of the essence in this Agreement and each and all of its provisions. 
 

H. Liability of Officers and Agents.  No officer, agent, member or employee of the City or 
Company shall be subject to any personal liability or accountability by reason of the 
execution of this Agreement or any other documents related to the transactions 
contemplated hereby. Such officers, agents, or employees shall be deemed to execute 
such documents in their official capacities only, and not in their individual capacities. 
This Section shall not relieve any such officer, agent, or employee from the performance 
of any official duty provided by law. 
 

I. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, including 
separate counterparts. Each shall be an original, but all of them together constitute the same 
instrument. 
 

J. Provide W-9 To City.  Company shall provide a completed W-9 form to the City upon 
execution of this Agreement. 
 

K. Dissolution of Company.  If the Company’s legal entity is dissolved or suspended and 
the Company does not notify the City of such dissolution in ten calendar days and/or the 
entity status is not reinstated in thirty business days, this Agreement, at the sole option 
of the City, shall be declared null and void or the Company shall execute a new Agreement 
showing the Company’s correct legal entity. 
 

L. Notice of Potential Disclosure of Confidential Company Information. The Company 
acknowledges that it has been informed by the City that the City is required by North 
Carolina law to disclose “Public Records” as the term is defined by North Carolina 
General Statutes § 132-1, upon request. All information disclosed to the City by the 
Company which is subject to that definition and whose disclosure is not otherwise 
protected by law will be released by the City upon request as provided by North 
Carolina General Statutes § 132-6. The City may withhold from disclosure 
confidential records as defined by North Carolina General Statutes § 132-1.2. The 
Company acknowledges that it has read and is familiar with the City's obligations of 
public disclosure of documents and the definitions of confidential documents as 
contained in Chapter 132 of the North Carolina General Statutes. In order to prevent the 
disclosure of the confidentiality of information identified by the Company as a trade secret 
or as “confidential” pursuant to North Carolina General Statute § 132.1.2 the City shall, if 
it receives a request for disclosure of such information, notify the Company of such request 
so that the Company may defend any claims or disputes arising from efforts of others to 
cause such trade secrets to be disclosed as a public record. The Company acknowledges 
that this disclosure of the City’s public records requirements is given pursuant to North 
Carolina General Statutes § 132-1.8(b) and agrees that such disclosure is full and 
sufficient to the satisfaction of the Company.  Both parties agree that this Section will 
survive the termination of the Agreement. 

118



Page 13 of 18 
 

 
M. Force Majeure.  Any delay in the performance of any of the duties or obligations of either 

party hereunder (the “Delayed Party”) shall not be considered a breach of this Agreement 
and the time required for performance shall be extended for a period equal to the period of 
such delay, provided that such delay has been caused by or is the result of any acts of God; 
acts of the public enemy; insurrections; riots; embargoes; labor disputes, including strikes, 
lockouts, job actions, or boycotts; shortages of materials or energy; fires; explosions; 
floods; changes in laws governing international trade; or other unforeseeable causes 
beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Delayed Party.  The Delayed 
Party shall give prompt notice to the other party of such cause, and shall take whatever 
reasonable steps are necessary to relieve the effect of such cause as promptly as possible.  
No such event shall excuse the payment of any sums due and payable hereunder on the due 
date thereof except any payment due upon the occurrence of any act or event for which 
delayed performance is excused as provided above. 
 

N. Severability.  If any court of competent jurisdiction holds any provision of this Agreement 
invalid or unenforceable, then (a) such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable 
any other provision of this Agreement, unless such provision is contingent on the 
invalidated provision; and (b) the remaining terms hereof shall, in such event, constitute 
the parties’ entire agreement. 
 

O. Audit Right.  The City reserves the right to require a certified audit at the City’s expense 
or may perform the audit through the use of its staff pertaining to the Company’s 
compliance with the capital investment condition described in this Agreement during 
normal business hours and upon reasonable prior notice.   
 

P. Cure Right.  The City agrees to give company’s (i) investor member, Concord Investor 
QOF LP (the “Investor Member”) or (ii) lender with first deed of trust on the Catalyst 
Project a copy of any notice of default sent to Company, provided that City has been 
notified in writing by certified mail, return receipt requested, of the addresses of such 
parties.  City further agrees that if Company fails to cure any default under this Agreement 
within the time provided for herein, then prior to City exercising any right to terminate this 
Agreement on account of such default, Company’s Investor Member and lender, as 
applicable, shall have an additional sixty (60) days within which to cure such default. If 
such default cannot be cured within that time, Company’s Investor Member or lender, as 
applicable, shall have such additional time as may be necessary if within such sixty (60) 
days, Company’s Investor Member or lender, as applicable, has commenced and is 
diligently pursuing the remedies necessary to cure such default (including commencement 
of foreclosure proceedings, if necessary to effect such cure). The City may not exercise 
any right to terminate this Agreement on account of any such default by Company, whether 
available under this Agreement, at law or in equity, while such remedies are being so 
diligently pursued by Company’s Investor Member or lender, as applicable. 
 

Q. Effective Date of This Agreement.  The effective date of this Agreement shall be the date 
that the agreement is executed by all signatories, which shall also be the date set forth on 
the first page hereof.   

119



Page 14 of 18 
 

 
 
 

(SIGNATURES FOLLOW ON THE NEXT TWO PAGES.) 

120



Page 15 of 18 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed in their 
corporate names by their duly authorized officers, all as of the date first above written. 

 
 

[SEAL] 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 

By:       
Kim Deason, City Clerk 

 

CITY OF CONCORD 
NORTH CAROLINA 
 
 
By:  ________________________________ 
        William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
DATE:___________________ 

 
 
This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act. 
 
________________________________ 
Pam Hinson, Finance Director 
City of Concord, North Carolina 
Date: ________________________ 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: 

By:       
VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 
  

121



Page 16 of 18 
 

  
 
 

Concord Master Venture, LLC 
              
BY: _____________________________  
        TBD  
          
DATE: _________________________ 
  
 

 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA, 
COUNTY OF __________________. 
 
 I, _________________________, a Notary Public of ____________ County, North 
Carolina, certify that ____________________________, _________________ of 
_____________________ personally appeared me this day and acknowledged the due execution 
of the foregoing instrument. 
 
 WITNESS my hand and notarial seal/stamp, this the _____ day of _____________, 
201__. 
 
 
      _______________________________________ 
      
      Printed Name of Notary:  _____________________ 
[SEAL] 
      My commission expires:  _____________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

122



Page 17 of 18 
 

“Exhibit A” 
Development Description & Catalyst Project Schematic Drawings 

 

Developer intends to construct three, mixed-used structures as part of the Catalyst Project.  The 
descriptions and drawings below are intended to be close approximations of Developer’s intent, with 
the note that final design and permitting is still to come.   

Parcel 1, 30 Market Street – Tentatively named Novi Rise, the largest building in the project 
is located next to the new City Hall.  Novi Rise will include approximately one hundred sixty-seven 
(167) apartments and approximately 3,300 sq. ft. of retail space that will support the city’s goal of 
bringing more foot traffic to Market Street.  These units are slated to include granite counter tops, 
stainless steel appliances, hardwood floors, high efficiency furnaces with air conditioning, and in-
unit washers/dryers.  On-site amenities are programmed to include a pool, dog washing station, and 
secure Amazon package lockers, fitness center.  These amenities will be accessible to the tenants at 
our other two buildings as well.  This building will be built above approximately seventy-five (75) 
parking spaces that will be available to residents. 

Parcel 2, 26 Union Street South – As per the agreement above, the Developer will remove 
the old municipal building to make way for a second mixed-use project downtown, tentatively called 
Novi Lofts.  Novi Lofts will include approximately 84 apartments, approximately eight (8) parking 
spaces, and approximately 2,500 sq. ft. of ground level retail space.  Aside from having access to the 
amenities offered across the street at the Novi Rise, the units in this building will offer the same high-
quality interior finishes as the Rise. In addition to ground level retail space above, Developer will 
make “best efforts” to include approximately 2,900 sq. ft. of retail space suitable for a rooftop 
restaurant. The design will also include an outdoor patio and lobby space (approximately 1,700 sq. 
ft.) to support the tenant.  As a result of the retail and commercial real estate pressures related to 
Covid-19, in this instance, "best efforts" means (a) designing the space to support restaurant use, and 
(b) securing a lease with a credit tenant by December 31, 2021 for terms that include twenty-five 
dollars ($25.00) per square foot in rent for a lease term of at least five (5) years. 

Parcel 3, Barbrick Ave, adjacent to the County Parking Deck – The third piece of the Catalyst 
Project, tentatively named Novi Flats, will book-end Market Street where it meets Barbrick Ave.  
This building, running alongside the County’s new parking garage, will soften the view on Market 
Street by providing an aesthetically pleasing structure in front of the County garage. The Novi Flats 
component includes approximately forty-three (43) units with the same level of finish and amenities 
as the other two components. In addition, the building will include approximately 4,900 sq. ft. of 
ground level retail space.   

 
 

 
 

123



Page 18 of 18 
 

“Exhibit B” 
 

The base value for each property will be considered zero: 

• Years 1-5: 85% grant based on the applicable ad valorem taxes due to the City, County 
and Municipal Service District 

• Year 6: 75%  grant based on the applicable ad valorem taxes due to the City, County and 
Municipal Service District 

• Year 7: 65% grant based on the ad valorem taxes due to the City, County and Municipal 
Service District 

• Year 8: 55% grant based on the applicable ad valorem taxes due to the City, County and 
Municipal Service District 

• Year 9: 50% grant based on the applicable ad valorem taxes due to the City, County and 
Municipal Service District 

• Year 10: 50% grant based on the applicable ad valorem taxes due to the City, County and 
Municipal Service District 
 

The County’s grant will be paid to the City to cover the costs of infrastructure related to the 
project. The City will act as a pass-through agent for the County, paying the calculated incentive 
to Concord Master Venture for both the City and the County.  

 

124



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA    INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
 
COUNTY OF CABARRUS     (City of Concord-Cabarrus County) 

 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

This INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT (this "Interlocal Agreement"), made and entered 
into as of ____________, 2020 between the City of Concord, North Carolina, a municipal 
corporation created and existing under the laws of the State of North Carolina (the "City") and the 
County of Cabarrus, North Carolina (the "County"), a political subdivision created and existing 
under the laws of the State of North Carolina. 

RECITALS 

1. The City is selling three downtown properties and has determined to undertake revitalization 
activities in its downtown area, including, among other things, infrastructure improvements, 
parking improvements, construction of new commercial retail space, workforce housing and other 
housing and the construction and improvement of other public amenities (collectively, "Downtown 
Revitalization Projects"). 

2. The City has determined that there are numerous benefits that will come from public investment 
as part of the downtown revitalization efforts including but not limited to increased tax base 
growth, improved vitality of central business district, strengthening tourism assets resulting in 
additional sales tax generation, and job creation. 

3. The City has paid and will pay for the Downtown Revitalization Projects through a 
combination of available funds of the City and financing arrangements. 

4. Under Article 20 of Chapter 160A of the North Carolina General Statutes, as amended (the 
"Interlocal Act"), municipalities and counties are authorized to enter into interlocal cooperation 
undertakings with other local governments for the joint exercise of any power, function, 
public enterprise, right, privilege, or immunity of local governments in North Carolina. 

5. As permitted by the Interlocal Act, the County desires to provide assistance to the City for the 
funding of the Downtown Revitalization Projects located in the downtown area of the City by 
remitting to the City varying percentages as listed in Schedule B attached of the incremental ad 
valorem tax revenues collected on the parcels listed in Schedule A hereto (the "District") located 
in the City's downtown area, subject to the limitations, restrictions and conditions set forth in this 
Interlocal Agreement (the "County Contribution"). 

6. The County will sell and convey fee simple title to the property located at 25 Barbrick Avenue 
for a total purchase price of $165,000.00 to the City for economic development purposes.  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the City and the County desire to 
provide in this Interlocal Agreement for the basis on which the County Contribution will be made, 
the City and the County do hereby covenant, promise, agree and represent as follows: 

 
TERMS 

 
ARTICLE I 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

125



SECTION 1.1 Purpose of the Interlocal Agreement. This Interlocal Agreement is being 
entered into as a means for the County to provide assistance to the City in funding the Downtown 
Revitalization Projects by making periodic payments to the City from the County's Incremental 
Revenues (as defined below) actually received by the County from the District, subject to the 
restrictions and limitations set forth in this Interlocal Agreement. The County's payment 
obligations under this Interlocal Agreement are solely contractual in nature and nothing in this 
Interlocal Agreement shall be construed as a pledge of any of the County's Incremental Revenues 
or other funds. 

The taxing power of the County is not and may not be pledged directly or indirectly to 
secure any amounts payable by the County under this Interlocal Agreement, and this Interlocal 
Agreement does not constitute a pledge of the faith and credit of the County. 

SECTION 1.2 Duration of the Interlocal Agreement. This Interlocal Agreement shall be 
effective on the date of this Interlocal Agreement. Incremental Revenue payments to the City will begin 
upon the completion of each building and after ad valorem taxes are collected. The Interlocal 
Agreement shall remain in effect until the ten (10) years of payments are complete as outlined in 
Schedule B or otherwise no later than June 30, 2035.  

ARTICLE II 
INCREMENTAL REVENUES 

SECTION 2.1 City Deposit of Incremental Revenues. The City will establish a separate, 
segregated account in which it will deposit the Incremental Revenues received from the County. 

SECTION 2.2 Incremental Revenues. (a) From and after the effective date of this 
Interlocal Agreement in each year that the County's Tax Assessor shall determine that the current 
assessed tax value of the property that constitutes the District exceeds the base valuation of the 
District, the difference shall be the incremental valuation of the District for such year. The base 
valuation of the District shall be zero. If there is no incremental valuation on any of the parcels 
included in the District for any particular year, no County Contribution will be payable to the City 
for such year under this Interlocal Agreement. If an incremental valuation does exist on any of the 
parcels included in the District for a particular year, then for such year the County will be required 
to pay a County Contribution to the City in an amount equal to the percentage shown in Schedule B 
of the ad valorem tax revenues actually collected on the parcels included in the District that is 
attributable to such incremental valuation (the "Incremental Revenues"). 

The parcels that constitute the District subject to this Interlocal Agreement are listed on 
Schedule A by tax identification number as of January 1, 2020 together with the base valuation of 
each parcel as of January 1, 2020 (subject to changes based on property tax appeals). If parcels are 
subdivided or combined the County Tax Assessor will be responsible for assigning the 
appropriate base valuations to each resulting parcel for purposes of making the calculations under 
this Interlocal Agreement. If parcels subject to this Interlocal Agreement are combined with 
parcels that are not subject to this Interlocal Agreement, the resulting parcel will be subject to this 

Interlocal Agreement if the majority (based on acreage) of the combined parcel was previously 
  

126



subject to this Interlocal Agreement and the current tax value of the parcel that was previously not 
subject to this Interlocal Agreement will be added to the base valuation of the parcel that was 
previously subject to this Interlocal Agreement for purposes of the calculations hereunder. 

(b) Revenues from ad valorem taxation on the District levied and collected by the 
County shall be applied as follows: 

The net proceeds of the following taxes shall be paid to each unit of local 
government with taxing power related to the District: (i) taxes separately stated and levied 
solely to service and repay debt secured by a pledge of the faith and credit of the unit; (ii) non-
school taxes levied by such unit pursuant to a vote of the people; (iii) taxes levied for a municipal 
or county service district, if any; and (iv) taxes levied by any taxing unit other than the City 
or the County. 

(ii) The net proceeds of all other ad valorem taxes levied and collected by the 
County related to the District in any year shall be multiplied by a fraction, the numerator 

of which is the current valuation of the District minus the base valuation of the District as 
determined in accordance with Section 2.2(a) and the denominator of which is the current 
valuation of the District. The amount shown as the product of this multiplication, when 
paid by the taxpayer and after subtracting out the amounts set forth in (i) above, shall be 
the Incremental Revenues of the County. Commencing with the fiscal year beginning as 
each building is completed and each fiscal year thereafter for the term of this Interlocal 
Agreement, the County will transmit the varying percentage shown in Schedule B of the 
Incremental Revenues to the City following ad valorem tax collection on each parcel. 

This Interlocal Agreement is only intended to apply to the ad valorem taxes levied and 
collected by the County on real property and does not apply to taxes for motor vehicles or other 
personal property. 

ARTICLE III 
DOWNTOWN REVITALIZATION PROJECTS 

SECTION 3.1 Downtown Revitalization Projects, The City and the County acknowledge 
that the County Contribution is intended to assist the City in the funding of the Downtown 
Revitalization Projects. The City shall be solely responsible for the funding, the scope, the design 
or the plan for the Downtown Revitalization Projects.  

ARTICLE IV 
MISCELLANEOUS 

SECTION 4.1 Tax Collections. The City and the County acknowledge that the County's 
Department of Tax Administration is responsible for assessment of all property for purposes of 
taxation and for collection of taxes imposed by the County and the City with respect to property 
within the boundaries of the City that is located in the County and serves as the Tax Assessor and the 
Tax Collector. The County agrees to proceed diligently to collect all taxes due and to provide for 
the performance of the duties of the Tax Assessor thereunder with respect to the District. The County 
further agrees to provide the City's Chief Financial Officer with the assessed value of the District not 
later than June 15 of each year (subject to change based on outstanding property tax appeals). No 
provision of this Interlocal Agreement shall be construed to require the County to levy taxes at any 

127



particular rate of taxation; and the County shall hereafter be free to increase or decrease the County's 
respective rates of taxation without regard to this Interlocal Agreement. 

SECTION 4.2 Notices. All notices, demands or requests required or permitted to be given 
pursuant to this Interlocal Agreement shall be given in writing and shall be deemed to have been 
properly given or served and shall be effective upon being deposited in the United States mail, 
postage prepaid, sent to the respective address as follows: 
 
As to the City:                   City of Concord, North Carolina 

35 Cabarrus Avenue West 
Concord, NC 28025 
Attention: City Manager 

As to the County: Cabarrus County, North Carolina 
P.O. Box 707 
Concord, NC 28026  
Attention: County Manager 

Any party may, however, at any time, change its address for notification purposes by giving 
to the other parties a notice in the manner herein provided stating the change and setting forth the 
new address. 

SECTION 4.3 Headings. The headings appearing in this Interlocal Agreement are 
inserted only as a matter of convenience and in no way define, limit, construe or describe the scope 
or intent of any article, section or paragraph of this Interlocal Agreement. 

SECTION 4.4 Counterparts. This Interlocal Agreement may be executed in one or more 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute 
one and the same instrument. The signature of any party to any counterpart may be appended to 
any other counterpart. 

SECTION 4.5 Modification. No change or modification of, or waiver under, this 
Interlocal Agreement shall be valid unless it is in writing and signed by duly authorized 
representatives of the City and the County. 

SECTION 4.6 Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence in this Interlocal 
Agreement. 

128



IN WITNESS, the parties hereto have caused this Interlocal Agreement to be duly 
executed and delivered as of the day and year first above written. 

 
CITY OF CONCORD, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
 
       By: _______________________________ 
        City Manager 
 
       Attest: _____________________________ 
        City Clerk 
 

This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and 
Fiscal Control Act. 

 
 

Finance Officer 
City of Concord, North Carolina 

 
 

CABARRUS COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
       By: _______________________________ 
        County Manager 
 
       Attest: _____________________________ 
        Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 
 
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act. Subject to Board approval of FY 2020 to FY 2035 budgets. 

_____________________________ 
Finance Officer 
County of Cabarrus, North Carolina 

  

129



SCHEDULE A 
(District Parcels) 

 
Parcels      PIN   2020 Taxable Value 

1. 30 Market Street SW   5620-87-7591-0000   $0  
2. 26 Union Street South  5620-87-9814-0000   $0 
3. 25 Barbrick Ave SW   5620-97-0377-0000   $0 

  

130



SCHEDULE B 
(Incentive Percentages) 

 
Year 1        85% 
Year 2        85% 
Year 3        85% 
Year 4        85% 
Year 5        85% 

  Year 6        75% 
 Year 7        65%  
 Year 8        55% 
 Year 9        50% 
 Year 10       50% 

131



Parking in Cabarrus County Parking Deck 
Provider  Commitment  # of Spaces 
City  5 PM – 8 AM Every Evening 

& 
All‐Day Saturday & Sunday 

132 

County  5 PM – 8 AM Every Evening 
& 

All‐Day Saturday & Sunday 

168 

     
City  All‐Day Monday – Friday 

Optional Paid Passes 
80 

County  All‐Day Monday – Friday 
Optional Paid Passes 

120 

132



PARKING GARAGE LEASE AGREEMENT 

THIS PARKING GARAGE LEASE AGREEMENT (“Parking Lease”) is made as of the 
____ day of September, 2020, by and between the CITY OF CONCORD, NORTH CAROLINA, 
a public body corporate and politic (the “City”), CABARRUS COUNTY (the “County”), and 
CONCORD MASTER VENTURE, LLC, a Florida limited liability company (the “Developer”). 

RECITALS: 

A. Developer was selected by the City through a competitive process to facilitate the 
development and construction of a multi-parcel, mixed-use redevelopment project to include a mix 
of parking stalls, residential units and retail space (the “Catalyst Project”); 

B. City and County are parties to the CABARRUS COUNTY PARKING DECK 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT dated October 15, 2018 and amended on October xx, 2020 (the 
“Interlocal Agreement”) which sets forth the City’s and the County’s agreement to share space in 
the Parking Garage along Barbrick Ave SW, Spring and Corban Streets and with an address of 81 
Spring Street, SW, Concord, North Carolina (the “Garage”). 

C. Developer and City are parties to that certain AMENDED AND RESTATED 
MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT dated September 22, 2020 (the “MDA”) which sets 
forth the plan for Developer’s construction and development of the Catalyst Project as defined in 
the MDA; 

 D. The MDA sets forth terms upon which City will lease up to three hundred (300) 
offsite parking spaces in the evening (based on the Catalyst Project’s need) and up to two hundred 
(200) offsite parking spaces in the daytime (based on the Catalyst Project’s need) to Developer to 
serve the residential components of the Catalyst Project (the “Parking Lease Terms”) which 
Parking Lease terms are incorporated into this Parking Lease.  

E. Considerable economic benefit is expected to accrue to City and County from 
Developer’s construction and leasing of the Catalyst Project, and City and County desire to provide 
a competitive long-term lease of a portion of the spaces in the Garage for the use and benefit of 
the Catalyst Project; 

F. City and County are agreeable to leasing parking spaces in the Garage to Developer 
as provided in this Parking Lease beginning with Certificate of Occupancy following construction 
of the mixed-use building on Parcel 1 as defined in the MDA (the “Commencement Date”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the mutual covenants contained 
in this Parking Lease and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the City, County, and Developer agree as follows: 

1. Lease of Parking Spaces 

During the Term (as defined below) of this Parking Lease, City and County hereby lease 
to Developer, and Developer hereby leases from City and County, parking spaces in the Garage 
subject to the following terms and conditions: 

133



 2 
 

a. Evening/Weekend Spaces.  City and County lease to Developer and its successors 
and assigns three hundred (300) parking spaces on the second level and above in the Garage for 
residential users of the Catalyst Project to use for personal vehicular parking.  Of the total three 
hundred allocable parking spaces, one hundred and thirty-two (132) spaces will be leased by the 
City from the City’s allocation of spaces in the Garage per the Interlocal Agreement and one 
hundred and sixty-eight (168) spaces will be leased directly from the County.  For a period of 10 
years following the Commencement Date, Developer shall have the non-exclusive right to use 
such spaces during the hours of 5 PM to 8 AM between Monday and Friday and for 24 hours per 
day on Saturday and Sunday at no cost.  At the end of the tenth year, City, County, and Developer 
will negotiate the future rate, if any, for evening parking in the Garage at a rate not to exceed the 
minimum rate charged to Garage users for evening parking. Developer may (in compliance with 
all applicable zoning requirements) adjust the number of spaces under this section at any time 
during the Initial Term or any Renewal Term by providing notice to City and County of 
Developer’s intent to adjust the number of spaces under this section. If Developer provides that 
notice to City and County, then City, County and Developer shall amend this Parking Lease within 
thirty (30) days of that notice to set the new number of spaces under this section. However, the 
total number of spaces allotted under this section shall not exceed three hundred for 
evening/weekend spaces.     

b. Daytime Spaces.  The parties acknowledge that the Garage will be a public facility 
available to the public on an “open occupancy” basis with no reserved spaces or access gates 
installed thereto; provided, however, County reserves its right to later designate certain spaces as 
“Reserved” and to install access gates to the Garage.  In the event that County restricts daytime 
parking in the Garage, the City and County will make the following accommodations to the 
Developer for daytime parking: 

i. Should daytime parking be restricted during years one through ten 
following the Commencement Date, the City will make available eighty (80) all-day parking 
passes for Catalyst Project residents at a rate of twenty-five dollars ($25.00) per pass, per month.  
The County will similarly provide one hundred and twenty (120) parking passes for Catalyst 
Project residents at the same rate. Parking passes do not guarantee a reserved parking space. 

ii. Should daytime parking be restricted during years 11 through 15 following 
the Commencement Date, the City will make available 80 all-day parking passes and the County 
will make available 120 all-day parking passes for residents at a rate of thirty dollars ($30.00) per 
pass, per month. 

iii. Should daytime parking be restricted during years 16 through 20 following 
the Commencement Date, the City will make available 80 all-day parking passes and the County 
will make available 120 all-day parking passes for residents at a rate of twenty-five dollars ($36.00) 
per pass, per month. 

iv. Should daytime parking be restricted after year 20 following the 
Commencement Date, the City, County, and the Developer will negotiate the future rate for 
daytime parking in the Garage for the next ten (10) years at a rate not to exceed the minimum rate 
charged to Garage users for daytime parking and review every ten (10) years for the remainder of 
the Initial Term. 

134



 3 
 

If the County restricts daytime parking, residents of the Catalyst Project will not be required to 
purchase all-day parking passes.  Residents without passes may access public parking in the 
Garage but must follow any hourly limits or fee schedules. 

2. Operation and Use 

a. County or its designated operator shall operate the Garage with all services and 
facilities normally associated with comparable public parking areas. 

b. County shall allow unimpeded and open access to users and occupiers 
(“Occupiers”) of the Catalyst Project to and from the Garage at all times, i.e., twenty-four (24) 
hours per day, seven (7) days per week, including holidays.  City and County agree to designate 
levels 2-6 as generally available for residential parking per Section 1 and will develop a pass and 
signage system managing the availability. 

c. Developer or a duly recognized representative will manage all-day parking pass 
requests and payments to the County and City on behalf of the Catalyst Project’s residents. 
Developer or a duly recognized representative will be responsible for distributing all-day parking 
passes to residents. The County and City will not manage all-day parking pass requests and 
payments directly with individual residents. 

d. Use of the Garage by Developer, Occupiers, and their agents, employees, 
contractors and guests shall be subject to County policies and procedures and such reasonable rules 
and regulations as County may adopt from time to time. 

e. Except as provided in Section 1 above, County reserves the right to charge parking 
fees to the public for use of the Garage. 

3. Term 

The initial term of the Parking Lease (“Initial Term”) shall be for a period of fifty (50) 
years from the Commencement Date, unless this Parking Lease is sooner terminated as provided 
for in this Parking Lease.  Provided that (i) the Apartments are operated as an apartment or 
condominium project at the expiration of the Initial Term, (ii) Developer is not in default under 
this Parking Lease beyond applicable notice and cure periods at the expiration of the Initial Term, 
(iii) Developer has not given City written notice of its desire to terminate the Initial Term to end 
at the expiration of the Initial Term at least ninety (90) days prior to the expiration of the Initial 
Term, and (iv) City and County has not given Developer written notice of its desire to terminate 
the Initial Term to end at the expiration of the Initial Term at least ninety (90) days prior to the 
expiration of the Initial Term, then Term of this Parking Lease shall automatically extend for five 
(5) additional successive extension terms of ten (10) years each (individually referred to in this 
Parking Lease as a “Renewal Term” and collectively as the “Renewal Terms”).  As used in this 
Parking Lease, “Term” means the Initial Term and any Renewal Terms.  Each Renewal Term shall 
be upon all the terms and conditions set forth in this Parking Lease. 

135



 4 
 

4. Electronic Access, Signage, Cameras, Garage Improvements 

The Developer shall not be responsible for any costs associated with the purchase and 
installation of access and revenue equipment, including any hardware and/or software needed for 
use of the Garage.  Further, the Developer shall not be responsible for any costs associated with 
the maintenance, repair, upgrade, or replacement of the systems serving the Garage. The County 
shall provide the periodic utilization report generated by the access and revenue equipment, 
including those reports generated by any Apartment modules(s) that are mutually selected, 
purchased, and installed in the Garage if requested by the Developer.  Developer may request to 
upgrade and/or replace certain exterior doors, gates, locks, and/or signage to permit Occupiers 
access to the Garage and to facilitate ADA access to and from the Apartments as may be required 
for the lawful operation of the Apartments or to improve security for the Occupiers and to make 
other nonstructural, cosmetic changes for the purpose of improving the general appearance of the 
Garage. Prior to making any such improvements, the Developer shall provide County with thirty 
(30) days prior, written notice of such proposed improvements.  County will work cooperatively 
with the Developer to assure access to and from the Garage by Occupiers and will endeavor to 
grant the Developer permission to place such items, including monitoring cameras and pre-
approved signage (collectively, “Upgrades”), in and around the Garage, all subject to County’s 
prior written approval. County will make best efforts to approve or deny the request within 30 
days. However, upon request of County, the Developer must present County with sufficient 
drawings and/or information, together with any required engineering documentation, to establish 
that the Upgrades will not damage and/or impair the Garage or the use of the Garage and will not 
interfere with County’s operation of the Garage.  Developer shall be solely responsible for all 
costs, expenses, and responsibility, including any claims of any type or nature that may be made 
in connection with or resulting from the placement, installation, use, operation, maintenance, 
repair, removal or the Upgrades, and/or any other matters involving the Upgrades, and Developer 
agrees to indemnify and hold the County and its parking management company, their employees, 
agents, and representatives, harmless from any and all such claims relating to the Upgrades, 
including reasonable attorney’s fees.  Developer shall also be solely responsible for relocating any 
Upgrades.  Developer further assumes all risks of any type or nature in connection with any 
Upgrades, including, but not limited to, any damage to, any theft of, or any vandalism of the 
Upgrades.  Upon the expiration and/or termination of this Parking Lease, Developer shall properly 
and timely remove any Upgrades, including any signs, that it installed or had installed and restore 
the areas where Upgrades were installed to the condition the areas were in prior to the installation 
of the Upgrades by Developer.  Developer agrees that if Developer fails to remove the Upgrades 
and properly restore the areas within thirty (30) days of any such expiration or termination of this 
Parking Lease that County may do so and dispose of the Upgrades as County sees fit and charge 
the Developer all reasonable costs and expenses of such removal and disposal. Furthermore, all 
Upgrades, including cameras, and signage are subject to applicable federal, state and local laws, 
rules, and regulations and Developer shall also obtain at Developer’s cost any required approvals 
and permits. 

5. Operation, Maintenance, Repair and Temporary Relocation 

a. County will ensure the operation of the Garage in a manner similar to the operation 
of other publicly-owned and/or controlled parking facilities in the region.  County will maintain 
the Garage in good working condition and repair and will make such repairs, perform such 

136



 5 
 

preventative maintenance, structural repairs or other improvements as the County reasonably 
deems necessary.  In performing maintenance, repairs or replacements, County shall use all 
commercially reasonable efforts to minimize interference with the use, occupation and enjoyment 
of the Garage by Developer and Occupiers.  If possible, maintenance, repairs and replacements 
shall be confined to the area actually being so maintained, repaired or replaced. County will use 
commercially reasonable efforts to make other parking spaces available in the event of temporary 
closure of the Garage for the purposes of maintenance, repair, or replacement, at no additional cost 
or expense of the alternate parking spaces to the Developer.  Other than in the event of an 
emergency, the County will confer with Developer prior to any closures of the Garage and will 
endeavor to accomplish all Garage maintenance, repairs and replacements in a manner that will 
result in the least inconvenience for the Occupiers. In the event that Developer is denied the use of 
any of its allotted spaces for a period exceeding three (3) days due to any such maintenance, 
repairs, replacements or otherwise, and replacement parking in the Garage reasonably satisfactory 
to Developer is not provided by the County and City, Developer payments with respect to such 
parking may be abated until use of the affected Spaces is restored. In that event, the County and 
City will make every effort to provide reasonably satisfactory replacement parking until such 
maintenance, repairs, or replacements are completed. Otherwise, the Developer will not be entitled 
to any payments or offsets from the County’s monthly, hourly, daily, or parking revenues against 
the parking charges otherwise due from the Developer to the County under the terms of this 
Parking Lease. Developer and/or Occupiers shall have no rights in or to any monies paid by anyone 
to the County, or revenues received from anyone by the County on account of parking in the 
Garage. 

b. County shall maintain interior and exterior illumination sufficient to illuminate the 
Garage and all means of pedestrian and vehicular access and egress thereto and therefrom, during 
all twilight and evening hours of operation.  

c. County may provide suitable and sufficient signs around the Garage as required for 
safe and orderly flow of pedestrian and vehicular traffic, including signage directing garage users 
to appropriate Catalyst Project entrances within the Garage and on any general directories provided 
by County in the Garage if the County ever chooses to install such signage. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, Developer shall be solely responsible for all costs and expenses in connection with or 
resulting from the placement, installation, use, operation, maintenance, repair, removal, and/or any 
other matters involving nonstructural and cosmetic changes to the signage and re-marking of the 
Spaces subject to the County’s approval.  Any signs pertaining to the Catalyst Project will be 
subject to County’s approval, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or 
delayed. 

d. The County shall approve the finishing of the wall of the Catalyst Project that will 
be visible from the interior of the Garage. 

6. Damage to the Garage 

During the Term of this Parking Lease, in the event of any damage or destruction of all or 
any portion of the Garage, County shall undertake promptly to repair and/or rebuild the Garage to 
provide to Developer as promptly as reasonably possible after the date of such damage or 
destruction the parking contemplated by this Parking Lease.  In the event that any or all of the 

137



 6 
 

allotted spaces are unavailable for Developer’s use as a result of any such damage or destruction, 
the County and City will make every effort to identify and provide reasonably satisfactory 
replacement parking until the Garage is restored and the affected spaces are again available for use 
by Developer. 

7. Default by Developer 

a. The failure or refusal by the Developer to perform any of its covenants or 
obligations hereunder within sixty (60) days after written notice of nonperformance shall constitute 
a default under this Agreement; however, if such failure to perform cannot reasonably be cured 
within sixty (60) days, the Developer shall not be in default if it commences within sixty (60) days 
steps reasonably calculated to cure the nonperformance and in good faith pursues those steps 
diligently and in good faith to completion (not to exceed ninety (90) days). 

b. Upon the occurrence of a Default as set forth in Section 7(a), City and County may 
immediately terminate this Parking Lease by written notice to the Developer. In addition to this 
right to terminate this Parking Lease, City and County may also in the event of a Default by 
Developer under this Parking Lease exercise any and all other rights and remedies available to 
City and County at law or in equity, including without limitation the recovery of any and all 
monetary damages that City and County has suffered as a result of such Default. 

c. City and County agree to give Developer’s (i) investor member, Concord Investor 
QOF LP (the “Investor Member”) or (ii) lender with first deed of trust on the Catalyst Project a 
copy of any notice of default sent to Developer, provided that City and County has been notified 
in writing by certified mail, return receipt requested, of the addresses of such parties.  City and 
County further agrees that if Developer fails to cure any default under this Parking Lease within 
the time provided for in this Parking Lease, then prior to City and County exercising any right to 
terminate this Parking Lease on account of such default, Developer’s Investor Member and lender, 
as applicable shall have an additional sixty (60) days within which to cure such default. If such 
default cannot be cured within that time, Developer’s Investor Member or lender, as applicable, 
shall have such additional time as may be necessary if within such sixty (60) days, Developer’s 
Investor Member or lender, as applicable, has commenced and is diligently pursuing the remedies 
necessary to cure such default (including commencement of foreclosure proceedings, if necessary 
to effect such cure). The City and County may not exercise any right to terminate this Parking 
Lease on account of any such default by Developer, whether available under this Parking Lease, 
at law or in equity, while such remedies are being so diligently pursued by Developer’s Investor 
Member or lender, as applicable. 

8. Force Majeure 

A delay in, or failure of, performance by any party, shall not constitute a default, nor shall 
Developer, City or County be held liable for loss or damage, or be in breach of this Parking Lease, 
if and to the extent that such delay, failure, loss or damage is caused by an occurrence beyond the 
reasonable control of such party, and its agents, employees, contractors, subcontractors, and 
consultants, including results from Acts of God or the public enemy, compliance with any order 
or request of any governmental authority or person authorized to act therefore, acts of declared or 
undeclared war, public disorders, rebellion, sabotage, revolution, earthquake, floods, riots, strikes, 

138



 7 
 

labor or equipment difficulties, delays in transportation, inability to obtain necessary materials or 
equipment or permits due to existing or future laws, rules or regulations of governmental 
authorities or any other causes, whether direct or indirect, and which by the exercise of reasonable 
diligence said party is unable to prevent. For purposes of this Parking Lease any one delay caused 
by any such occurrence shall not be deemed to last longer than six (6) months and the party 
claiming delay caused by any and all such occurrences shall give the other party written notice of 
the same within thirty (30) days after the date such claiming party learns of or reasonably should 
have known of such occurrence. Notwithstanding anything else set forth above, after a total of nine 
(9) months of delays of any type have been claimed by a party as being subject to force majeure, 
no further delays or claims of any type shall be claimed by such party as being subject to force 
majeure and/or being an excusable delay. 

9. Default by the City or County 

In the event of any default, nonperformance, or breach of any of the terms or conditions of 
this Parking Lease by City or County or both (the “Defaulting Entity”), the Defaulting Entity shall 
make every effort to identify alternative parking for residents in downtown Concord. In addition 
to the remedies set forth in the prior sentence, if the Defaulting Entity is in default, 
nonperformance, or breach of any of the terms or conditions of this Parking Lease, Developer may 
provide the Defaulting Entity with written notice of the same and the Defaulting Entity shall have 
sixty (60) days following receipt of such notice from Developer to cure any such default, 
nonperformance, or breach, provided if such default, nonperformance, or breach cannot be cured 
within sixty (60) days from the date of receipt of the notice from Developer, the Defaulting Entity 
shall be deemed to have cured the default as long as the Defaulting Entity undertakes to remedy 
the same within sixty (60) days following receipt of notice and the Defaulting Entity diligently 
proceeds to remedy such default, nonperformance, and/or breach. 

10. Insurance Requirements 

Developer shall maintain the insurance coverage as set forth in Exhibit “B” attached and 
incorporated into to this Parking Lease and provide the proof of such insurance coverage as called 
for in Exhibit “B”, including workers’ compensation coverage if Developer hires any employees.  
If Exhibit “B” coverage exceeds reasonable insurance requirements for a parking deck, serving the 
intended purposes, then City, County, and Developer will agree on acceptable coverage.  Such 
insurance coverage shall be obtained at the Developer’s sole expense and maintained during the 
Term of this Parking Lease and shall be effective prior to the beginning of any performance by the 
Developer or others under this Parking Lease.  All insurance companies providing the coverages 
required hereunder must be lawfully authorized to do business in North Carolina and be acceptable 
to City’s and the County’s risk manager, in its reasonable discretion.  Certificates evidencing 
required insurance shall be delivered to the City and the County prior to the Commencement Date 
(as defined in Section 18 of this Parking Lease) or opening date of the garage, whichever is later 
and upon renewal of the applicable policies. Notice of cancellation or reduction or elimination of 
coverage shall be provided to additional insureds in accordance with the terms of the applicable 
policy. 

139



 8 
 

11. Indemnity 

a. City and County Indemnity. To the extent permitted by law, City and County hereby 
assumes liability for, and shall indemnify, protect, defend, save and keep harmless Developer, its 
leasehold mortgagees, and their respective affiliates, officers, directors, employees, agents, 
contractors, subcontractors, licensees and invitees (individually a “Developer Indemnitee” and 
collectively, “Developer Indemnitees”) from and against any and all claims, liabilities, losses, 
damages, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees actually incurred), whenever 
they may be suffered or incurred by, imposed on or asserted against a Developer Indemnitee, as 
applicable (collectively, “Developer Claims”), arising out of or resulting from: (i) any default, 
breach, violation, or nonperformance by City or County under this Parking Lease (including breach 
of any representation, warranty or covenant of City or County contained herein); or (ii) any 
negligent act or omission of City or County, including, without limitation, injury to or death of any 
person or damage to property arising out of any work, construction, reconstruction, restoration, 
maintenance, repair or other work to be done hereunder by City or County, except in all cases to 
the extent such Developer Claims are caused by the negligent act or omission or willful misconduct 
of Developer or Developer Indemnitees. The provisions of this Section 12(a) shall survive the 
expiration or earlier termination of this Parking Lease. 

b. Developer Indemnity. Developer hereby assumes liability for, and shall indemnify, 
protect, defend, save and keep harmless City and County, including council members, 
commissioners, officers, employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors, successors, assigns, 
licensees, mortgagees of City or County and invitees (individually a “Public Indemnitee” and 
collectively, “Public Indemnitees”) from and against any and all claims, liabilities, losses, 
damages, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees actually incurred), whenever 
they may be suffered or incurred by, imposed on or asserted against a Public Indemnitee, as 
applicable (collectively, “Public Claims”), arising out of or resulting from: (i) any default, breach, 
violation, or nonperformance by Developer under this Parking Lease (including breach of any 
representation, warranty or covenant of Developer contained herein); or (ii) any negligent act or 
omission of Developer, including, without limitation, injury to or death of any person or damage 
to property arising out of any work construction, reconstruction, restoration, maintenance, repair 
or other work to be done hereunder by Developer, except in all cases to the extent such Public 
Claims are caused by the negligent act or omission or willful misconduct of City or County or 
Public Indemnitees. The provisions of this Section 12(b) shall survive the expiration of earlier 
termination of this Parking Lease. 

12. Title to Property; Memorandum 

a. County covenants that it has full right to enter into this Parking Lease as of the date 
hereof and the Interlocal Agreement gives the City rights to lease spaces in the Garage and does 
not prevent County from performing its obligations hereunder. 

b. Upon Developer’s request, City and County will execute and deliver to Developer 
an original memorandum of this Parking Lease in form reasonably satisfactory to City, County, 
and Developer, and Developer may record the memorandum in the land records of the County of 
Cabarrus, North Carolina.  Developer will pay all recording taxes or fees required in connection 
with recording such memorandum. 

140



 9 
 

13. Attorneys’ Fees 

In the event of any litigation between City and/or County and Developer arising out of this 
Parking Lease, each party shall bear its own expense. 

14. Assignment and Leasing 

a. Developer may not assign this Parking Lease, in whole or in part, except to a 
purchaser of the Apartments in the event of a sale thereof, subject to the written approval of the 
City and County which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.  Developer shall also be 
permitted to assign this Parking Lease to any affiliate or to any lender providing financing in 
connection with the Apartments as collateral for its loan and to sublease individual spaces that 
may, from time to time, be in excess of the amount of parking required to accommodate the needs 
of the Catalyst Project subject to City and County review and approval. Notwithstanding anything 
to the contrary set forth herein, transfer of direct or indirect membership interests in Developer, or 
its rights hereunder, shall be permitted without further consent in accordance with the terms of 
Section 4.31 of the MDA, which is incorporated in this Agreement by reference as if fully set forth 
herein. 

b. Except as provided in Section 16(a) above, Developer may not assign, transfer, or 
pledge any of its rights under this Parking Lease without the prior written consent of the City and 
County and the City and County may grant or deny its consent in City or County sole discretion. 

c. Notwithstanding any permitted assignment, the Developer shall remain responsible 
for all obligations under this Parking Lease unless the City and County specifically grants the 
Developer a release in writing. 

15. Notices 

Except where other forms of notice are expressly and specifically authorized in this Parking 
Lease, all notices or other communications required or desired to be given with respect to this 
Parking Lease shall be in writing and shall be addressed as follows: 

To the City City Manager 
City of Concord 
35 Cabarrus Avenue W 
Concord, NC 28025 
Attn: Lloyd Wm. Payne, Jr. 
 

With a copy to: 
 
 
 
 
 
To the County 
 
 

City Attorney 
City of Concord 
35 Cabarrus Avenue W 
Concord, NC 28025 
Attn: VaLerie Kolczynski 
 
County Manager 
Cabarrus County 
PO Box 707 

141



 10 
 

 
 
 
With a copy to: 

Concord, NC 28026 
Attn: Michael Downs 
 
County Attorney 
Cabarrus County 
PO Box 707 
Concord, NC 28026 
Attn: Richard Koch 
 

If to Developer Concord Master Venture, LLC 
2420 East Sunrise Boulevard, #90 
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33304 
Attn: Peter Flotz 
 

With copy to  
Investor Member 

Concord Investor QOF LP 
200 West Street 
New York, New York 10282 
Attention: Urban Investment Group Portfolio Manager 
E-mail; gs-uig-portfo1io-manager@gs.com  
gs-uig-docs@gs.com 
 

With copy to  Sidley Austin LLP 
787 Seventh Avenue 
New York, New York 10019 
Attention: Steven C. Koppel, Esq. 
E-mail: skoppel@sidley.com 
 

 
Any communication so addressed shall be deemed duly served when received or when mailed by 
certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested. 

16. MDA  

This Parking Lease is expressly conditioned on the execution, delivery and performance of 
the MDA by the Developer which terms are incorporated herein by reference; provided that after 
the Commencement Date, this Lease shall not be terminated or voided by City for any default by 
Developer under the MDA. 

17. Dispute Resolution. 

Disputes arising under this Parking Lease shall be mediated. Disputes resulting in 
unsuccessful mediations shall be determined in the state courts of North Carolina with its venue in 
Cabarrus County. 

142

mailto:gs-uig-docs@gs.com
mailto:skoppel@sidley.com


 11 
 

18. Iran Divestment Act Certification 

Developer certifies that, if it submitted a successful bid for this Parking Lease, then as of 
the date it submitted the bid, Developer was not identified on the Iran List.  If it did not submit a 
bid for this Parking Lease, Developer certifies that as of the date that this Parking Lease is entered 
into, Developer is not identified on the Iran List.  It is a material breach of this Parking Lease for 
Developer to be identified on the Iran List during the term of this Parking Lease or to utilize on 
this Parking Lease any contractor or subcontractor that is identified on the Iran List.  In this Iran 
Divestment Act Certification section – “Iran List” means the Final Divestment List – Iran, the 
Parent and Subsidiary Guidance List – Iran, and all other lists issued from time to time by the N.C. 
State Treasurer to comply with N.C.G.S. §143C-6A-4 of the N.C. Iran Divestment Act. 

19. Entire Agreement 

This Parking Lease, including any attachments, exhibits, and referenced documents, 
constitutes the complete understanding between the parties hereto with respect to the matters 
addressed herein and supersedes all prior understandings and writings, and this Parking Lease may 
only be amended or modified only by a writing signed by City, County and Developer. 

20. Miscellaneous 

a. The obligations of this Parking Lease shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit 
of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.  Any such successors and assigns 
shall be deemed to have assumed and agreed to perform all obligations under this Parking Lease 
arising from and after such assignment. 

b. In the event that any provisions of this Parking Lease shall be held invalid, the same 
shall not affect in any respect whatsoever the validity of the remaining provisions of this Parking 
Lease. 

c. This Parking Lease and the rights of the parties hereunder shall be interpreted in 
accordance with the laws of the State of North Carolina. 

d. This Parking Lease may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which 
shall be deemed to be an original and all of which together shall comprise but a single document. 

e. In the case that any provisions of this Agreement are in conflict with the Interlocal 
Agreement or the MDA, the provisions of this Agreement shall control.   

 

 

 

 

 

143



 12 
 

 

 

 

[THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

144



 13 
 

 
 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereby set their hands and seals, effective the date 
first above written. 

CITY OF CONCORD, NORTH CAROLINA 
[SEAL] 

____________________________________ 
Lloyd Wm. Payne, Jr., City Manager 

ATTEST: 

___________________________________ 
Kim Deason, City Clerk 

Approved as to form: 

___________________________________ 
VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF CABARRUS 

I, __________________________________, a Notary Public of the State and County aforesaid, 
certify that Kim Deason personally came before me this day and acknowledged under seal that she 
is City Clerk of the City of Concord, and that by authority duly given and as the act of the Council, 
the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by its City Manager, sealed with its corporate seal 
and attested by herself as its City Clerk. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal, this _____ day of _____________, 2020. 

Notary Public 
My commission expires: 

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

 
  

145



 14 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereby set their hands and seals, effective the date 
first above written. 

CABARRUS COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
[SEAL] 

____________________________________ 
Michael Downs, County Manager 

ATTEST: 

___________________________________ 
 

Approved as to form: 

___________________________________ 
Richard Koch, County Attorney 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF CABARRUS 

I, __________________________________, a Notary Public of the State and County aforesaid, 
certify that Kim Deason personally came before me this day and acknowledged under seal that she 
is City Clerk of the City of Concord, and that by authority duly given and as the act of the Council, 
the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by its City Manager, sealed with its corporate seal 
and attested by herself as its City Clerk. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal, this _____ day of _____________, 2020. 

Notary Public 
My commission expires: 

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

 

 

146



 15 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereby set their hands and seals, effective the date 
first above written. 

CONCORD MASTER VENTURE, LLC, a Florida 
limited liability company 

__________________________________________ 
Peter Flotz, Manager 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
County of BROWARD 

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, do hereby certify that Peter 
Flotz personally came before me this day and acknowledged under seal that he is Manager of 
CONCORD MASTER VENTURE, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, and acknowledged, 
on behalf of the company, the due execution of the foregoing instrument. Witness my hand and 
official stamp or seal, this the _____ day of ___________________, 2020. 

Notary Public 
My commission expires: 
 

147



Exhibit “A” 

 

Access & Rates (Daytime): 
 
o The County currently permits unrestricted daytime parking in the deck. 
o If the County decides to restrict daytime parking during years one through ten 
following the completion of Parcel 1, the City and County will make available 
200 all-day parking passes (120 provided by the County and 80 provided by the 
City) for residents at a rate of $25 per pass per month. 
o In years 11 – 15, the City will make available 100 parking passes at the rate of 
$30 per pass per month. 
o In years 16 – 20, the City will make available 100 parking passes at the rate of 
$36 per pass per month. 
o During Year 20, the City and Concord Master Venture will renegotiate the rate for 
Years 21 – 50 to the prevailing rate for all-day parking in downtown Concord. 
o If passes become necessary, Residents will not be required to purchase an all-day 
pass. Residents without passes will be able to access public parking in the deck 
but must follow any hourly limits or fees. 
 
Access & Rates (Evening/Weekend): 
 
o During the evening hours of 5 PM – 8 AM between Monday and Friday and for 24 hours per 
day on Saturday and Sunday , the City and the County will reserve up to 300 Spaces (132 provided 
by the City and 168 provided by the County) at no cost for the first 10 years following the 
completion of construction on “Parcel 1”, as defined in the MDA.   

148



 17 
 

Exhibit “B” 

Insurance Requirements 

Garage Lease Insurance 

A. Insurance Coverage  
Developer shall obtain insurance to satisfy the requirements hereunder.  The policies shall be with 
companies authorized to do business in North Carolina and rated “A” or above by A.M. Best 
Company.  Developer, individually or by and through its subcontractors, shall satisfy the following 
requirements and provide the following coverage: 

(a) General Requirements. 

1. Developer shall name the City as an additional insured under the liability policies required 
by this section. 

2. Developer’s insurance shall be primary of any self-funding and/or insurance otherwise 
carried by the City for all loss or damages arising from Developer’s operations under this 
Parking Lease.  Developer and each of its subcontractors shall and does waive all rights of 
subrogation against the City. 

3. City shall be exempt from, and in no way liable for any sums of money that may represent 
a deductible in any insurance policy.  The payment of such deductible shall be the sole 
responsibility of Developer and/or subcontractor providing such insurance. 

4. Developer shall provide the City with certificates of insurance and endorsements 
documenting that the insurance requirements-set forth in this paragraph have been met, and 
that the City be given thirty (30) days’ written notice of any intent to amend coverage or 
make material changes to or terminate any policy by either the insured or the insurer.  
Developer shall further provide such certificates of insurance to the City at any time 
requested by the City after the execution of this Parking Lease, and shall provide such 
certificates within five (5) days after the City’s request.  The City’s failure to review a 
certificate of insurance sent by or on behalf of Developer shall not relieve Developer of its 
obligation to meet the insurance requirements set forth in this Parking Lease. 

5. Should any or all of the required insurance coverage be self-funded/self-insured, Developer 
shall furnish to the City a copy of the Certificate of Self-Insurance or other documentation 
from the North Carolina Department of Insurance. 

(b) Types of Insurance. 

1. Automobile Liability.  Bodily injury and property damage liability covering all owned, 
non-owned and hired automobiles for limits of not less than $1,000,000 bodily injury each person, 
each accident and $1,000,000 property damage, or $1,000,000 combines single limit-bodily injury 
and property damage. 

2. Commercial General Liability.  Bodily injury and property damage liability as shall protect 
Developer and any subcontractor performing work under this Parking Lease, from claims of bodily 

149



 18 
 

injury or property damage which arise from operation of this Parking Lease, whether such 
operations are performed by Developer, any subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly 
employed by either.  The amounts of such insurance shall not be less than $1,000,000 bodily injury 
each occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate and $1,000,000 property damage each 
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate, or $1,000,000 bodily injury and property damage combined 
single limits each occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate.  This insurance shall include coverage for 
products, operations, personal injury liability and contractual liability, assumed under the 
indemnity provision of this Parking Lease. 

3. Workers’ Compensation Insurance.  Developer shall meet the statutory requirements of the 
State of North Carolina, $100,000 per accident limit, $500,000 disease per policy limit, $100,000 
disease each employee limit. 

4. Umbrella. $1,000,000 per occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. 

(c) Certificates of all required insurance and endorsements shall be furnished to the City and 
shall contain the provision that the City will be given thirty (30) day advance written notice of any 
intent to amend or terminate by either the insurance or the insuring company. 

(d) Failure to maintain the insurance coverage required in this paragraph is a material default 
subject to termination of this Parking Lease. 

B. Notice of Cancellation  
Developer shall notify the City, in writing immediately upon learning of cancellation or 
reduction of the insurance afforded by its policy. 

Garage Construction Insurance: 
In addition to the above, property insurance on a builder’s “all risk” or equivalent policy in the 
amount of the contract amount plus the value of any subsequent modifications, cost of materials 
supplied or installed on a replacement cost basis. 

150



151



152



153



154



155



156



Meeting Date: November 12, 2020 
 

 Staff Report: 
Approve appropriation of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Coronavirus Aid, 
Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) funding in the amount of $255,000 to 
purchase and rehabilitation of 570 Vance Drive NE from Habitat for Humanity Cabarrus, 
repair The Salvation Army food pantry facility for $25,000 and fund select public service 
agencies responding to immediate community needs related to COVID-19 in the amount 
of $349,865. 

 
Background: 
September 11, 2020 official notification was issued for the City of Concord in regards to 
a special allocation of The Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) 
(Public Law 116-136).  The CARES Act allocated supplemental Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) funding for grants to prevent, prepare for, and respond to 
coronavirus. Additionally, the CARES Act provides flexibilities that make it easier to use 
the funds by granting waivers, removes the spending cap regulated for public service 
agencies and alternative requirements.  Within the notification, Concord was allocated 
an additional $604,865 to respond to the growing effects of this historic public health 
crisis.   
 
Based on guidance provided by HUD, staff received approval for the acquisition and 
rehabilitation of a facility to safely house persons temporarily who are either waiting for 
test results or need to quarantine.  The four, one-bedroom unit apartment on Vance 
Drive will meet this need.  A recent appraisal by Habitat valued the property at 
$240,000.  An offer, contingent on Council approval, has been accepted by the owner 
for $235,000.  Anticipated repairs to the property will be $20,000. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Staff also received approval to complete a repair in the food storage area of The 
Salvation Army building.  Food for the food pantry and shelter guest has to be removed 
from this location with each rain.  Due to the increase in persons seeking assistance 
because of COVID-19, HUD approved the request to repair the issue.  City staff will 
oversee the work to ensure compliance with HUD regulations.  The cost estimate for the 
repair is $25,000.   
 
In addition, staff had worked with the five agencies below who are meeting immediate 
needs for Concord residents, to assess their individual COVID-19 related needs totaling 
$324,865. Recommendations to fund these agencies are as follows; 
 

Vance Street 
Purchase 

Units will be used to temporarily house persons 
waiting for COVID test results or needing to 
quarantine. 

$235,000 

Vance Street 
Repairs 

Rehabilitation of units $20,000 

157



Meeting Date: November 12, 2020 
 

Agency Proposed Usage Based on Increase 
Need  

CARES Act 
Funding  

Cooperative 
Christian Ministry 

Rental assistance and utility assistance  $258,240 
 

The Salvation Army Continuation of emergency shelter/ 
food panty/Angel Tree services 

$19,625 

Opportunity House Nurse salary and medical expense 
 

$10,000 

Meals on Wheels 
 

Food cost, prep and delivery $21,000 

El Puente After school staff salaries $6,000 

 Management cost of Vance Street for 
temporary quarantine needs related to 
COVID -19 

$10,000 

 
Recommendation: 
Motion to approve appropriation of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) funding in the amount of 
$255,000 to purchase and rehabilitate 570 Vance Drive NE from Habitat for Humanity 
Cabarrus, repair The Salvation Army food pantry facility for $25,000 and fund select public 
service agencies responding to immediate community needs related to COVID-19 in the 
amount of $324,865. 
 

 

 

 

158



159



160



161



162



163



164



487 & 489 Cook Street NW 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Duplex located in Gibson Village.  Each unit is one bedroom and one bath.   

165



Page 1 of 9 
 . 

 
Buyer Initials ______  _____  Seller  Initials _____   _____ 
 

  

 

 AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE AND SALE 
     OF IMPROVED REAL PROPERTY 

 

THIS AGREEMENT, including any and all addenda attached hereto (“Agreement”), is by and between 
Roenix, LLC, a North Carolina limited liability company (“Buyer”), and  
The City of Concord, a North Carolina municipal corporation, (“Seller”). 
 
FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL PROMISES SET FORTH HEREIN AND OTHER GOOD AND 
VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, THE RECEIPT AND SUFFICIENCY OF WHICH ARE HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGED, THE 
PARTIES HERETO AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Terms and Definitions: The terms listed below shall have the respective meaning given them as set forth adjacent to each 
term.   

(a) “Property”:  0.074 Acres, a portion of 247 Crowell Drive NW, Concord, NC 28025 

“Parcel ID No”: BEING A PORTION OF PIN: 5620-57-5873, Tax ID No. 12-021-0013.00 

See Attached Exhibit A for a complete description.  
 
$ 500.00  (b)   “Purchase Price” shall mean the sum of Five Hundred Dollars and NO Cents, 

  payable on the following terms: 

$  50.00   (i) “Earnest Money” shall Fifty Dollars and NO Cents 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 

The Earnest Money shall be deposited in escrow with 
______________________________________________________ (name of person/entity with whom 
deposited- “Escrow Agent”) within five (5) calendar days of the Contract Date, to be applied as part 
payment of the Purchase Price of the Property at Closing, or disbursed as agreed upon under the provisions 
of Section 10 herein. Should Buyer fail to deliver the Earnest Money by the date required hereunder, or 
should any check or other funds paid by Buyer be dishonored, for any reason, by the institution upon which 
the payment is drawn, Buyer shall have one (1) banking day after written notice of such dishonor to deliver 
cash, official bank check, wire transfer or electronic transfer to the Escrow Agent. If Buyer fails to deliver 
the required funds within one (1) banking day after written notice, then Seller may terminate this 
Agreement by written notice to Buyer at any time thereafter, provided Seller has not then received 
acknowledgement by Escrow Agent of its receipt of funds from Buyer.  If the Escrow Agent has not 
delivered to the Seller the acknowledgement of Earnest Money on the last page of this Agreement by the 
calendar day following the date the Earnest Money is required to be delivered hereunder, it shall be 
presumed that the Earnest Money was not delivered by the required time (unless, upon the written request 
of Seller, Escrow Agent can provide proof of its receipt of the Earnest Money by the required time). Buyer 
and Seller consent to the disclosure by the Escrow Agent, to the parties to this Agreement, the Broker(s) 
and any Buyer lender, of any material facts pertaining to the Earnest Money.  
 
 ANY EARNEST MONEY DEPOSITED BY BUYER IN A TRUST ACCOUNT MAY BE 
PLACED IN AN INTEREST BEARING TRUST ACCOUNT, AND:   (check only ONE box)  

 
  ANY INTEREST EARNED THEREON SHALL BE APPLIED AS PART PAYMENT OF THE 
PURCHASE PRICE OF THE PROPERTY AT CLOSING, OR DISBURSED AS AGREED UPON 
UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 10 HEREIN.  (Buyer’s Taxpayer Identification Number 
is:     ) 

 
  ANY INTEREST EARNED THEREON SHALL BELONG TO THE ACCOUNT HOLDER IN 
CONSIDERATION OF THE EXPENSES INCURRED BY MAINTAINING SUCH ACCOUNT 
AND RECORDS ASSOCIATED THEREWITH. 

 
$ N/A____________ (ii) Delivery of a promissory note secured by a deed of trust, said promissory note in the amount of 

________________________________________________________________________________ Dollars 
being payable over a term of ______ years, with an amortization period of    years, payable in monthly 
installments of principal, together with accrued interest on the outstanding principal balance at the rate 

166



 

Page 2 of 9 
 

 
                                        Buyer Initials ______   _____  Seller  Initials _____   _____   

of_____________________________________ percent (__________%) per annum in the amount of $ 
 , with the first principal payment beginning on the first day of the month next succeeding the date 
of Closing, or such other terms as may be set forth on Exhibit B.  At any time, the promissory note may be 
prepaid in whole or in part without penalty and without further interest on the amounts prepaid from the 
date of such prepayment.  (NOTE: In the event of Buyer’s subsequent default upon a promissory note 
and deed of trust given hereunder, Seller’s remedies may be limited to foreclosure of the Property.  If 
the deed of trust given hereunder is subordinated to senior financing, the material terms of such 
financing must be set forth on Exhibit B.  If such senior financing is subsequently foreclosed, the 
Seller may have no remedy to recover under the note.)   

 
$ N/A____________ (iii) Assumption of that unpaid obligation of Seller secured by a deed of trust on the Property, such 

obligation having an outstanding principal balance of $__________________________________________  
and evidenced by a note bearing interest at the rate of  ________________________ percent (________%) 
per annum, and a current payment amount of $    .  

 
$ 450.00 (iv) Cash, balance of Purchase Price, at Closing in the amount of Four Hundred Fifty Dollars and NO 

Cents. 
 
Buyer, at Buyer’s expense, shall be entitled to pursue qualification for and approval of any loan Buyer intends to obtain in connection 
with the transaction contemplated by this Agreement.  (Note: Buyer’s obligations under this Agreement are not conditioned upon 
obtaining or closing any loan. Therefore, Buyer is advised to consult with Buyer’s lender prior to signing this offer to assure 
that the Examination Period allows sufficient time for Buyer’s lender to provide Buyer sufficient information to decide 
whether to proceed with or terminate the transaction.) 
 

(c)  “Closing” shall mean the date of completion of the process detailed in Section 11 of this Agreement.  Closing shall 

occur on or before November 30, 2020. 

 
(d) “Contract Date” means the date this Agreement has been fully executed by both Buyer and Seller. 

 
(e) “Examination Period” shall mean the period beginning on the first day after the Contract Date and extending 

through 5:00pm (based upon time at the locale of the Property): ___N/A_____ days from the date of contract 

acceptance. 

(f) “Broker(s)” shall mean: 

  N/A (“Listing Agency”), “Listing Agent License #N/A 

  Acting as:    Seller’s Agent          Dual Agent 

  N/A (“Buyer’s Agency”), “Buyer’s Agent License #N/A 

  Acting as:    Buyer’s Agent;          Dual Agent 

 
(g) “Seller’s Notice Address” shall be as follows: 

  City of Concord, PO Box 308, Concord, NC 28026-0308 

  except as same may be changed pursuant to Section 12. 
 

(h)  “Buyer’s Notice Address” shall be as follows: 

  Roenix, LLC, 191 Crowell Drive NW, Concord, NC 28025 

  except as same may be changed pursuant to Section 12. 
 

    (i)  If this block is marked, additional terms of this Agreement are set forth on Exhibit B attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference. (Note: Under North Carolina law, real estate agents are not permitted to 
draft conditions or contingencies to this Agreement.) 

 
    (j)  If this block is marked, additional terms of this Agreement are set forth on the Additional Provisions Addendum 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 
 

167



 

Page 3 of 9 
 

 
                                        Buyer Initials ______   _____  Seller  Initials _____   _____   

    (k)  If this block is marked, additional terms of this Agreement are set forth on the Back Up Agreement Addendum 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

 
Section 2. Sale of Property and Payment of Purchase Price: Seller agrees to sell and Buyer agrees to buy the Property for the 
Purchase Price, PURSUANT TO THE REQUIREMENTS of NCGS § 160A-269.  * 
 

A) The offer set forth herein is a real offer to purchase the Property from the Seller.  This offer MUST be accepted and 
approved by the Concord City Council.  Once accepted, the Buyer must deposit 5% of the offered amount to the City 
Clerk.  The offer must then be advertised for upset bid as required by North Carolina General Statute 160A-269. 

 
B) All payments are to be in the form of a money order, cash, or certified bank funds and made to the City Clerk. All earnest 

money/bid deposits are non-refundable, unless the bid is upset by another bidder or the offer declined by the Concord 
City Council.  

 
C) Once the bid period closes, if the Buyer hereunder has the highest bid, the City Council will accept the bid and direct 

City staff to take the necessary actions to convey the property to the Buyer. 
 

D) The Buyer shall have thirty (30) days after the expiration of the “Examination Period” to pay the remaining balance to 
the City of Concord.  If more time is needed in order to close the properties, please contact the City of Concord with the 
projected time required. 

 
 
Section 3. Proration of Expenses and Payment of Costs: Seller and Buyer agree that all property taxes (on a calendar year basis), 
leases, rents, mortgage payments and utilities or any other assumed liabilities, if any, shall be prorated as of the date of Closing. Seller 
shall pay for preparation of a deed and all other documents necessary to perform Seller’s obligations under this Agreement, excise tax 
(revenue stamps), any deferred or rollback taxes, and other conveyance fees or taxes required by law, any fees required for confirming 
Seller’s account payment information on owners’ association dues or assessments for payment or proration; any fees imposed by an 
owners’ association and/or a management company as agent of the owners’ association in connection with the transaction 
contemplated by this Agreement other than those fees required to be paid by Buyer in this Section 3 below, and the following: 
N/A________________________________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________. 
 
Buyer shall pay recording costs, costs of any title search, title insurance, survey, the cost of any inspections or investigations 
undertaken by Buyer under this Agreement, charges required by an owners’ association declaration to be paid by Buyer for Buyer’s 
future use and enjoyment of the Property, including, without limitation, working capital contributions, membership fees, or charges for 
Buyer’s use of the common elements and/or services provided to Buyer, any costs or charges for determining restrictive covenant 
compliance, and the following: 
N/A. 
 
Each party shall pay its own attorney’s fees. 
 
Section 4. Deliveries: Seller agrees to use best efforts to deliver to Buyer, as soon as reasonably possible after the Contract Date, copies 
of all material information relevant to the Property in the possession of Seller, including but not limited to: title insurance policies (and 
copies of any documents referenced therein), surveys, soil test reports, environmental surveys or reports, site plans, civil drawings, 
building plans, maintenance records and copies of all presently effective warranties or service contracts related to the Property. Seller 
authorizes (1) any attorney presently or previously representing Seller to release and disclose any title insurance policy in such attorney's 
file to Buyer and both Buyer's and Seller's agents and attorneys; and (2) the Property’s title insurer or its agent to release and disclose all 
materials in the Property's title insurer's (or title insurer's agent's) file to Buyer and both Buyer's and Seller's agents and attorneys.  If 
Buyer does not consummate the Closing for any reason other than Seller default, then Buyer shall return to Seller all hard copy materials 
delivered by Seller to Buyer pursuant to this Section 4 (or Section 7, if applicable), if any, and shall, upon Seller's request, following 
release of the Earnest Money, provide to Seller copies of (subject to the ownership and copyright interests of the preparer thereof) any and 
all studies, reports, surveys and other information relating directly to the Property prepared by or at the request of Buyer, its employees 
and agents, without any warranty or representation by Buyer as to the contents, accuracy or correctness thereof. Notwithstanding the 
above provisions regarding delivery and return of information and documentation, should there exist a separate non-disclosure, 
confidentiality, or similar agreement between Buyer and Seller, the terms of which conflict with this provision insofar as delivery and 
return of information and documentation, then the terms of such non-disclosure, confidentiality, or similar agreement shall control as 
to the delivery and return of information and documentation. 
 
Section 5. Evidence of Title: Seller agrees to convey fee simple insurable title to the Property without exception for mechanics’ liens, 
free and clear of all liens, encumbrances and defects of title other than: (a) zoning ordinances affecting the Property, (b) Leases (as 
defined in Section 7, if applicable) and (c) specific instruments on the public record at the Contract Date agreed to by Buyer (not 

168



 

Page 4 of 9 
 

 
                                        Buyer Initials ______   _____  Seller  Initials _____   _____   

objected to by Buyer prior to the end of the Examination Period), which specific instruments shall be enumerated in the deed 
referenced in Section 11 (items 5(a), 5(b) and 5(c) being collectively “Permitted Exceptions”); provided that Seller shall be required to 
satisfy, at or prior to Closing, any encumbrances that may be satisfied by the payment of a fixed sum of money, such as deeds of trust, 
mortgages or statutory liens.  Seller shall not enter into or record any instrument that affects the Property (or any personal property 
listed on Exhibit A) after the Contract Date without the prior written consent of Buyer, which consent shall not be unreasonably 
withheld, conditioned or delayed.  
 
Seller will convey the property to the Buyer subject to an easement for maintenance.   
 
Section 6. Conditions: This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the parties under this Agreement are hereby made expressly 
conditioned upon fulfillment (or waiver by Buyer, whether explicit or implied) of the following conditions: 
  

(a)  Qualification for Assumption: The obligations of Buyer under this Agreement are conditioned upon Buyer being able to 
assume the existing loan described in Section 1(b)(iii) above. If such assumption requires the lender’s approval, Buyer agrees to use its 
best efforts to secure such approval and to advise Seller immediately upon receipt of the lender’s decision.  Approval must be granted 
on or before ______N/A____________________. On or before this date, Buyer has the right to terminate this Agreement for failure to 
be able to assume the loan described above by delivering to Seller written notice of termination by the above date, time being of the 
essence. If Buyer delivers such notice, this Agreement shall be null and void, and the Earnest Money shall be refunded to Buyer. If 
Buyer fails to deliver such notice, then Buyer will be deemed to have waived this condition.  Unless provided otherwise in Section 3 
hereof, Buyer shall pay all fees and costs associated with any such assumption, including any assumption fee charged by the lender. At 
or before Closing, Seller shall assign to Buyer all interest of Seller in any current reserves or escrows held by the lender, any property 
management company and/or Seller, including, but not limited to: any tenant improvement reserves, leasing commission reserves, 
security deposits and operating or capital reserves for which Seller shall be credited at Closing. 
 
 (b)  Title Examination: After the Contract Date, Buyer shall, at Buyer’s expense, cause a title examination to be made of the 
Property before the end of the Examination Period.   In the event that such title examination shall show that Seller’s title is not fee 
simple insurable, subject only to Permitted Exceptions, then Buyer shall promptly notify Seller in writing of all such title defects and 
exceptions, in no case later than the end of the Examination Period, and Seller shall have thirty (30) days to cure said noticed defects. 
If Seller does not cure the defects or objections within thirty (30) days of notice thereof, then Buyer may terminate this Agreement and 
receive a return of Earnest Money (notwithstanding that the Examination Period may have expired). If Buyer is to purchase title 
insurance, the insuring company must be licensed to do business in the state in which the Property is located. Title to the Property 
must be insurable at regular rates, subject only to standard exceptions and Permitted Exceptions. 
 
 (c)  Same Condition: If the Property is not in substantially the same condition at Closing as of the date of the offer, 
reasonable wear and tear excepted, then the Buyer may (i) terminate this Agreement and receive a return of the Earnest Money or (ii) 
proceed to Closing whereupon Buyer shall be entitled to receive, in addition to the Property, any of the Seller's insurance proceeds 
payable on account of the damage or destruction applicable to the Property. 
 

(d)  Inspections: Buyer, its agents or representatives, at Buyer’s expense and at reasonable times during normal business 
hours, shall have the right to enter upon the Property for the purpose of inspecting, examining, conducting timber cruises, and 
surveying the Property; provided, however, that Buyer shall not conduct any invasive testing of any nature without the prior express 
written approval of Seller as to each specific invasive test intended to be conducted by Buyer. Buyer shall conduct all such on-site 
inspections, examinations, testing, timber cruises and surveying of the Property in a good and workmanlike manner, at Buyer’s 
expense, shall repair any damage to the Property caused by Buyer's entry and on-site inspections and shall conduct same in a manner 
that does not unreasonably interfere with Seller's or any tenant's use and enjoyment of the Property.  In that respect, Buyer shall make 
reasonable efforts to undertake on-site inspections outside of the hours Seller’s or any tenant's business is open to the public.  Buyer 
shall provide Seller or any tenant (as applicable) reasonable advance notice of and Buyer shall cause its agents or representatives and 
third party service providers (e.g. inspectors, surveyors, etc.) to give reasonable advance notice of any entry onto the Property.  Buyer 
shall be obligated to observe and comply with any terms of any tenant lease which conditions access to such tenant’s space at the 
Property. Upon Seller's request, Buyer shall provide to Seller evidence of general liability insurance.  Buyer shall also have a right to 
review and inspect all contracts or other agreements affecting or related directly to the Property and shall be entitled to review such 
books and records of Seller that relate directly to the operation and maintenance of the Property, provided, however, that Buyer shall 
not disclose any information regarding this Property (or any tenant therein) unless required by law, and the same shall be regarded as 
confidential, to any person, except to its attorneys, accountants, lenders and other professional advisors, in which case Buyer shall 
obtain their agreement to maintain such confidentiality. Buyer assumes all responsibility for the acts of itself and its agents or 
representatives in exercising its rights under this Section 6(d) and agrees to indemnify and hold Seller harmless from any damages 
resulting therefrom. This indemnification obligation of Buyer shall survive the Closing or earlier termination of this Agreement.    
Except as provided in Section 6(b) above, Buyer shall have from the Contract Date through the end of the Examination Period to 
perform the above inspections, examinations and testing. IF BUYER CHOOSES NOT TO PURCHASE THE PROPERTY, FOR 
ANY REASON OR NO REASON, AND PROVIDES WRITTEN NOTICE TO SELLER THEREOF PRIOR TO THE 
EXPIRATION OF THE EXAMINATION PERIOD, THEN THIS AGREEMENT SHALL TERMINATE, AND BUYER 

169



 

Page 5 of 9 
 

 
                                        Buyer Initials ______   _____  Seller  Initials _____   _____   

SHALL RECEIVE A RETURN OF THE EARNEST MONEY. 
 
Section 7. Leases (Check one of the following, as applicable):  
 
   If this box is checked, Seller affirmatively represents and warrants that there are no Leases (as hereinafter defined) 
affecting the Property. 
 
   If this box is checked, Seller discloses that there are one or more leases affecting the Property ("Leases”), and the 
following provisions are hereby made a part of this Agreement. 
 
 (a)  A list of all Leases shall be set forth on Exhibit B. Seller represents and warrants that, as of the Contract Date, there are 
no other Leases, oral or written, recorded or not, nor any subleases affecting the Property, except as set forth on Exhibit B; 
 
 (b)  Seller shall deliver copies of any Leases to Buyer pursuant to Section 4 as if the Leases were listed therein; 
 
 (c)  Seller represents and warrants that, as of the Contract Date, there are no current defaults (or any existing situation which, 
with the passage of time, or the giving of notice, or both, or at the election of either landlord or tenant, could constitute a default) 
either by Seller, as landlord, or by any tenant under any Lease ("Lease Default").  In the event there is any Lease Default as of the 
Contract Date, Seller agrees to provide Buyer with a detailed description of the situation in accordance with Section 4.  Seller agrees 
not to commit a Lease Default as Landlord after the Contract Date; and agrees further to notify Buyer immediately in the event a 
Lease Default arises or is claimed, asserted or threatened to be asserted by either Seller or a tenant under the Lease. 
 
 (d)  In addition to the conditions provided in Section 6 of this Agreement, this Agreement and the rights and obligations of 
the parties under this Agreement are hereby made expressly conditioned upon the assignment of Seller's interest in any Lease to Buyer 
in form and content acceptable to Buyer (with tenant's written consent and acknowledgement, if required under the Lease).  Seller 
agrees to deliver an assignment of any Lease at or before Closing, with any security deposits held by Seller under any Leases to be 
transferred or credited to Buyer at or before Closing.  The assignment shall provide: (i) that Seller shall defend, indemnify and hold 
Buyer harmless from claims, losses, damages and liabilities (including, without limitation, court costs and attorneys’ fees) asserted 
against or incurred by Buyer which are caused by or the result of any default by Seller under any Lease prior to the date of Closing, 
and (ii) that Buyer shall defend, indemnify and hold Seller harmless from claims, losses, damages and liabilities (including, without 
limitation, court costs and attorneys’ fees) asserted against or incurred by Seller which are caused by or the result of any default by 
Buyer under any Lease after the date of Closing.  
 
 (e)  Seller also agrees to work diligently to obtain any tenant signatures on any estoppel certificates in such form as Buyer 
may reasonably request and to work diligently to obtain any subordination, nondisturbance and attornment agreements in such form as 
Buyer may reasonably request.  
 
Section 8. Environmental: Seller represents and warrants that it has no actual knowledge of the presence or disposal, except as in 
accordance with applicable law, within the buildings or on the Property of hazardous or toxic waste or substances, which are defined 
as those substances, materials, and wastes, including, but not limited to: those substances, materials and wastes listed in the United 
States Department of Transportation Hazardous Materials Table (49 CFR Part 172.101) or by the Environmental Protection Agency as 
hazardous substances (40 CFR Part 302.4) and amendments thereto, or such substances, materials and wastes, which are or become 
regulated under any applicable local, state or federal law, including, without limitation, any material, waste or substance which is      
(i) petroleum, (ii) asbestos, (iii) polychlorinated biphenyls, (iv) designated as a Hazardous Substance pursuant to Section 311 of the 
Clean Water Act of 1977 (33 U.S.C. §1321) or listed pursuant to Section 307 of the Clean Water Act of 1977 (33 U.S.C. §1317), (v) 
defined as a hazardous waste pursuant to Section 1004 of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976 (42 U.S.C. §6903) or 
(vi) defined as a hazardous substance pursuant to Section 101 of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and 
Liability Act of 1980 (42 U.S.C. §9601). Seller has no actual knowledge of any contamination of the Property from such substances as 
may have been disposed of or stored on neighboring tracts. 
 
Section 9. Risk of Loss/Damage/Repair: Until Closing, the risk of loss or damage to the Property, except as otherwise provided 
herein, shall be borne by Seller. Except as to maintaining the Property in its same condition, Seller shall have no responsibility for the 
repair of the Property, including any improvements, unless the parties hereto agree in writing. 
 
Section 10. Earnest Money Disbursement: In the event that any condition hereto is not satisfied, then the Earnest Money shall be 
refunded to Buyer. In the event of breach of this Agreement by Seller, the Earnest Money shall be refunded to Buyer upon Buyer’s 
request, but such return shall not affect any other remedies available to Buyer for such breach. In the event of breach of this 
Agreement by Buyer, the Earnest Money shall be paid to Seller as liquidated damages and as Seller’s sole and exclusive remedy for 
such breach, but without limiting Seller’s rights under Section 6(d) or Section 22 of this Agreement. It is acknowledged by the parties 
that payment of the Earnest Money to Seller in the event of a breach of this Agreement by Buyer is compensatory and not punitive, 
such amount being a reasonable estimation of the actual loss that Seller would incur as a result of such breach. The payment of the 

170



 

Page 6 of 9 
 

 
                                        Buyer Initials ______   _____  Seller  Initials _____   _____   

Earnest Money to Seller shall not constitute a penalty or forfeiture but actual compensation for Seller's anticipated loss, both parties 
acknowledging the difficulty determining Seller’s actual damages for such breach. 

NOTE: In the event of a dispute between Seller and Buyer over the disposition of the Earnest Money held in escrow, a licensed real 
estate broker is required by state law (and Escrow Agent, if not a broker, hereby agrees) to retain the Earnest Money in the Escrow 
Agent’s trust or escrow account until Escrow Agent has obtained a written release from the parties consenting to its disposition or 
until disbursement is ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction. Alternatively, if a broker or an attorney licensed to practice law in 
North Carolina is holding the Earnest Money, the broker or attorney may deposit the disputed monies with the appropriate clerk of 
court in accordance with the provisions of N.C.G.S. §93A- 12. 

Seller and Buyer hereby agree and acknowledge that the Escrow Agent assumes no liability in connection with the holding of the 
Earnest Money pursuant hereto except for negligence or willful misconduct of Escrow Agent. Escrow Agent shall not be responsible 
for the validity, correctness or genuineness of any document or notice referred to under this Agreement.  Seller and Buyer hereby 
agree to indemnify, protect, save and hold harmless Escrow Agent and its successors, assigns and agents pursuant to this Agreement, 
from any and all liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, claims, actions, suits, costs or expenses (including attorney fees) of 
whatsoever kind or nature imposed on, incurred by or asserted against Escrow Agent which in any way relate to or arise out of the 
execution and delivery of this Agreement and any action taken hereunder; provided, however, that Seller and Buyer shall have no such 
obligation to indemnify, save and hold harmless Escrow Agent for any liability incurred by, imposed upon or established against it as 
a result of Escrow Agent’s negligence or willful misconduct. 
 
Section 11. Closing: At or before Closing, Seller shall deliver to Buyer a General Warranty Deed and other documents customarily 
executed or delivered by a seller in similar transactions, including without limitation, a bill of sale for any personalty, an owner’s 
affidavit, lien waiver forms (and such other lien related documentation as shall permit the Property to be conveyed free and clear of 
any claim for mechanics’ liens) and a non-foreign status affidavit (pursuant to the Foreign Investment in Real Property Tax Act), and 
Buyer shall cause to be delivered the funds necessary to pay to Seller the Purchase Price. The Closing shall be conducted by Buyer’s 
attorney or handled in such other manner as the parties hereto may mutually agree in writing. Possession shall be delivered at Closing, 
unless otherwise agreed herein. The Purchase Price and other funds to be disbursed pursuant to this Agreement shall not be disbursed 
until the Buyer’s attorney’s (or other designated settlement agent’s) receipt of authorization to disburse all necessary funds. 
 
Section 12. Notices: Unless otherwise provided herein, all notices and other communications which may be or are required to be 
given or made by any party to the other in connection herewith shall be in writing (which shall include electronic mail) and shall be 
deemed to have been properly given and received (i) on the date delivered in person or (ii) the date deposited in the United States 
mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested, to the addresses set out in Section 1(g) as to Seller, and in Section 1(h) as to 
Buyer, or at such other addresses as specified by written notice delivered in accordance herewith, (iii) at such time as the sender 
performs the final act to send such transmission, in a form capable of being processed by the receiving party’s system, to any 
electronic mail address or facsimile number, if any, provided in Section 1(g) as to Seller, and in Section 1(h) as to Buyer or (iv) on the 
date deposited with a recognized overnight delivery service, addressed to the addresses set out in Section 1(g) as to Seller, and in 
Section 1(h) as to Buyer, or at such other addresses as specified by written notice delivered in accordance herewith.  If a notice is sent 
by more than one method, it will be deemed received upon the earlier of the dates of receipt pursuant to this Section. 
 
Section 13. Counterparts; Entire Agreement: This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, which taken together, 
shall constitute one and the same original document.  Copies of original signature pages of this Agreement may be exchanged via 
facsimile or e-mail, and any such copies shall constitute originals.  This Agreement constitutes the sole and entire agreement among 
the parties hereto and no modification of this Agreement shall be binding unless in writing and signed by all parties hereto. The 
invalidity of one or more provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity of any other provisions hereof and this Agreement 
shall be construed and enforced as if such invalid provisions were not included. 
 
Section 14. Enforceability:  This Agreement shall become a contract when signed by both Buyer and Seller and such signing is 
communicated to both parties; it being expressly agreed that notice given in accordance with Section 12 is not required for effective 
communication for the purposes of this Section 14.  The parties acknowledge and agree that: (i) the initials lines at the bottom of each 
page of this Agreement are merely evidence of their having reviewed the terms of each page, and (ii) the complete execution of such 
initials lines shall not be a condition of the effectiveness of this Agreement.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the 
benefit of the parties, their heirs, successors and assigns and their personal representatives. 
 
Section 15. Adverse Information and Compliance with Laws: 
 

(a) Seller Knowledge/Assessments: Seller has no actual knowledge of (i) condemnation(s) affecting or contemplated with 
respect to the Property; (ii) actions, suits or proceedings pending or threatened against the Property; (iii) changes contemplated in any 
applicable laws, ordinances or restrictions affecting the Property; or (iv) governmental special assessments, either pending or 
confirmed, for sidewalk, paving, water, sewer, or other improvements on or adjoining the Property, and no pending or confirmed 
owners’ association special assessments, except as follows (Insert “None” or the identification of any matters relating to (i) through 
(iv) above, if any): 

171



 

Page 7 of 9 
 

 
                                        Buyer Initials ______   _____  Seller  Initials _____   _____   

N/A________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________. 
 
Note: For purposes of this Agreement: (i) a “special assessment” is defined as a charge against the Property by a governmental 
authority in addition to ad valorem taxes and recurring governmental service fees levied with such taxes, or by an owners’ association 
in addition to any regular assessment (dues), either of which may be a lien against the Property; a special assessment may be either 
pending or confirmed; (ii) .a “confirmed” special assessment is defined as an assessment that has been approved by a governmental 
agency or an owners’ association for the purpose(s) stated, whether, at the time of Closing, it is payable in a lump sum or future 
installments; (iii) a “pending” special assessment is defined as an assessment that is under formal consideration by a governmental 
agency or an owners’ association but which has not been approved prior to Closing. Seller shall pay, in full at Closing, all confirmed 
governmental or association special assessments, provided that the amount thereof can be reasonably determined or estimated.  The 
payment of such determined or estimated amount shall be the final payment between Buyer and Seller as to any confirmed special 
assessments. If the amount of any special assessment cannot be reasonably determined or estimated, the special assessment shall be 
deemed a pending special assessment.  Buyer shall take title subject to all pending special assessments disclosed by Seller herein, if 
any. 
 
 (b)  Compliance: To Seller’s actual knowledge, (i) Seller has complied with all applicable laws, ordinances, regulations, 
statutes, rules and restrictions pertaining to or affecting the Property; (ii) performance of the Agreement will not result in the breach 
of, constitute any default under or result in the imposition of any lien or encumbrance upon the Property under any agreement or other 
instrument to which Seller is a party or by which Seller or the Property is bound; and (iii) there are no legal actions, suits or other legal 
or administrative proceedings pending or threatened against the Property, and Seller is not aware of any facts which might result in 
any such action, suit or other proceeding. 
 
 (c)  Owners’ Association: If the Property is subject to regulation by an owners’ association, Seller shall deliver the following 
information to Buyer pursuant to Section 4 as if the same were listed therein (or Seller shall state that Seller does not have same in 
their possession or that such item is not applicable): (i) the name of the owners’ association; (ii) the amount of regular assessments 
(dues); (iii) the name, address and telephone number of the president of the owners’ association or of the association manager or 
management company; (iv) the owners’ association website address; (v) the Seller’s statement of account; (vi) the master insurance 
policy showing the coverage provided and the deductible amount; (vii) copies of any Declaration and/or Restrictive Covenants; (viii) 
the Rules and Regulations, (ix) the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of the owners’ association; (x) the current financial statement 
and budget of the owners’ association; (xi) the parking restrictions and information; and (xii)  the architectural guidelines.  Seller 
authorizes and directs any owners’ association, any management company of the owners’ association, any insurance company and any 
attorney who has previously represented the Seller to release to Buyer, Buyer’s agents, representative, closing attorney or lender true 
and accurate copies of the foregoing items affecting the Property, including any amendments thereto. 
 
Section 16. Survival of Representations and Warranties: All representations, warranties, covenants and agreements made by the 
parties hereto shall survive the Closing and delivery of the deed.  Seller shall, at or within six (6) months after the Closing, and 
without further consideration, execute, acknowledge and deliver to Buyer such other documents and instruments, and take such other 
action as Buyer may reasonably request or as may be necessary to more effectively transfer to Buyer the Property described herein in 
accordance with this Agreement. 
 
Section 17. Applicable Law: This Agreement shall be construed under the laws of the state in which the Property is located.  This 
form has only been approved for use in North Carolina. 
 
Section 18.  Assignment:  This Agreement is not assignable. 
 
Section 19. Tax-Deferred Exchange: In the event Buyer or Seller desires to effect a tax-deferred exchange in connection with the 
conveyance of the Property, Buyer and Seller agree to cooperate in effecting such exchange; provided, however, that the exchanging 
party shall be responsible for all additional costs associated with such exchange, and provided further that a non-exchanging party 
shall not assume any additional liability with respect to such tax-deferred exchange. Seller and Buyer shall execute such additional 
documents, at no cost to the non-exchanging party, as shall be required to give effect to this provision. 
 
Section 20.  Memorandum of Contract:  Upon request by either party, the parties hereto shall execute a memorandum of contract in 
recordable form setting forth such provisions hereof (other than the Purchase Price and other sums due) as either party may wish to 
incorporate.  Such memorandum of contract shall contain a statement that it automatically terminates and the Property is released from 
any effect thereby as of a specific date to be stated in the memorandum (which specific date shall be no later than the date of Closing). 
The cost of recording such memorandum of contract shall be borne by the party requesting execution of same. 
 
Section 21.  Authority: Each signatory to this Agreement represents and warrants that he or she has full authority to sign this 
Agreement and such instruments as may be necessary to effectuate any transaction contemplated by this Agreement on behalf of the 
party for whom he or she signs and that his or her signature binds such party.   

172



 

Page 8 of 9 
     

 

Section 22.  Brokers:  Except as expressly provided herein, Buyer and Seller agree to indemnify and hold each other harmless from 
any and all claims of brokers, consultants or real estate agents by, through or under the indemnifying party for fees or commissions 
arising out of the sale of the Property to Buyer.  Buyer and Seller represent and warrant to each other that: (i) except as to the Brokers 
designated under Section 1(f) of this Agreement, they have not employed nor engaged any brokers, consultants or real estate agents to 
be involved in this transaction and (ii) that the compensation of the Brokers is established by and shall be governed by separate 
agreements entered into as amongst the Brokers, the Buyer and/or the Seller. 
 
Section 23. Attorneys Fees: If legal proceedings are instituted to enforce any provision of this Agreement, the prevailing party in the 
proceeding shall be entitled to recover from the non-prevailing party reasonable attorneys fees and court costs incurred in connection 
with the proceeding. 
 
   EIFS/SYNTHETIC STUCCO: If the adjacent box is checked, Seller discloses that the Property has been clad previously 
(either in whole or in part) with an “exterior insulating and finishing system” commonly known as “EIFS” or “synthetic stucco”.  
Seller makes no representations or warranties regarding such system and Buyer is advised to make its own independent determinations 
with respect to conditions related to or occasioned by the existence of such materials at the Property. 
 
THE NORTH CAROLINA ASSOCIATION OF REALTORS®, INC. AND THE NORTH CAROLINA BAR ASSOCIATION 
MAKE NO REPRESENTATION AS TO THE LEGAL VALIDITY OR ADEQUACY OF ANY PROVISION OF THIS FORM IN 
ANY SPECIFIC TRANSACTION.  IF YOU DO NOT UNDERSTAND THIS FORM OR FEEL THAT IT DOES NOT PROVIDE 
FOR YOUR LEGAL NEEDS, YOU SHOULD CONSULT A NORTH CAROLINA REAL ESTATE ATTORNEY BEFORE YOU 
SIGN IT. 
 
BUYER:  
 
Roenix, LLC,  
a North Carolina limited liability company                                 
 
By: _________________________________________ 
Name: ______________________________ 
Title: Member/Manager 
 
By: _________________________________________ 
Name: _______________________________ 
Title: Member/Manager 
 
Date of Execution: __________ _______, 2020 

SELLER: 
         

City of Concord,  
A North Carolina municipal corporation   

                                       
By:___________________________________   
Name: Lloyd Wm. Payne, Jr., City Manager   

ATTESTED 
 
By: __________________________________ 
        Kim J. Deason, City Clerk      [SEAL] 
 
Date of Execution: __________ _______, 2020  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
________________________________ 
VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 
 
This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the "Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act."  
 

_________________________________________ 
Pam Hinson, Finance Director 

173



 

Page 9 of 9 
     

 

WIRE FRAUD WARNING 

 
To Buyers:  Before sending any wire, you should call the closing agent’s office to verify the instructions.  If you receive wiring 
instructions for a different bank, branch location, account name or account number, they should be presumed fraudulent.  Do not send 
any funds and contact the closing agent’s office immediately. 
 
To Sellers: If your proceeds will be wired, it is recommended that you provide wiring instructions at closing in writing in the presence 
of the closing agent.  If you are unable to attend closing, you may be required to send an original notarized directive to the closing 
agent’s office containing the wiring instructions.  This directive may be sent with the deed, lien waiver and tax forms if those 
documents are being prepared for you by the closing agent.  At a minimum, you should call the closing agent’s office to provide the 
wire instructions.  The wire instructions should be verified over the telephone via a call to you initiated by the closing agent’s office to 
ensure that they are not from a fraudulent source. 
 
Whether you are a buyer or a seller, you should call the closing agent’s office at a number that is independently obtained.  To ensure 
that your contact is legitimate, you should not rely on a phone number in an email from the closing agent’s office, your real estate 
agent or anyone else. 
 
The undersigned hereby acknowledges receipt of the Earnest Money set forth herein and agrees to hold said Earnest Money in 
accordance with the terms hereof. 
 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

(Name of Escrow Agent) 
 
Date:___________________________________________  By: _______________________________________________ 
 
Escrow Agent’s contact/notice information is as follows: 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

e-mail address:     fax number:       

except as same may be changed pursuant to Section 12. 

174



KERR STREET, N.W.

CROWELL DRIVE, N.W.

CROW
ELL D

RIV
E, N

.W
.

Line Table
Line #

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

L11

L12

L13

L14

Direction

S82° 44' 00"W

N84° 10' 48"W

N06° 52' 53"E

N06° 10' 26"E

N02° 32' 41"E

N03° 08' 22"W

N03° 21' 04"W

N07° 35' 27"W

N39° 03' 02"E

S51° 15' 24"E

S46° 25' 26"E

N88° 34' 20"E

N11° 22' 36"W

S50° 58' 45"E

Length

20.00'

15.00'

6.80'

42.40'

43.90'

43.90'

17.10'

41.00'

36.95'

24.60'

35.11'

56.19'

62.26'

35.00'

175

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY CITY OF CONCORD PIN:5620-57-8656 DB 904, PG 373

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY CITY OF CONCORD PIN:5620-57-2908 DB 12165, PG 268

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/A CONCORD REVITALIZATION TRUST PIN:5620-58-2142 DB 7767, PG 279

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/A WALTER LIGHTNER PIN:5620-58-2197 DB 6983, PG 085

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/A DANIEL P BICKERSTAFF & wife TARA BICKERSTAFF PIN:5620-58-3222 DB 7880, PG 63

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY ROENIX LLC. 191 CROWELL DRIVE, N.W. PIN:5620-58-7025 REAL ID:12-021-0014.00 DEED BOOK 13907, PAGE 248 (SEE ALSO MAP BOOK 2, PAGE 10)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHISELED "X"  IN CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAG NAIL FOUND IN PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAG NAIL FOUND IN PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENT IRON FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW LINES

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW LINES

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW LINES

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENT IRON FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON FOUND ON LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.074 ACRES PORTION OF 5620-57-5873 TO BE COMBINED INTO PIN: 5620-58-7025

AutoCAD SHX Text
35' PLATTED PUBLIC R/W 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MB 2, PG 10)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(AKA NORTH CROWELL STREET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
35' PLATTED PUBLIC R/W 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MB 2, PG 10 AND MB 61, PG 53)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(AKA NORTH CROWELL STREET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF CONCORD 247 CROWELL DRIVE, N.W. PIN:5620-57-5873 REAL ID:12-021-0013.00 (PORTION OF 3.272 ACRES TRACT) MAP BOOK 61, PAGE 53

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY CITY OF CONCORD 247 CROWELL DRIVE, N.W. PIN:5620-57-5873 REAL ID:12-021-0013.00  142,508 SQUARE FEET OR  3.272 ACRES TRACT, MORE OR LESS MAP BOOK 61, PAGE 53 (SEE ALSO MAP BOOK 2, PAGE 10)

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH PUBLIC R/W 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MB 2, PG 10 AND MB 61, PG 53)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(AKA KERR STREET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY BOARD OF LIGHT & WATER COMMISSON PIN:5620-57-2964 DB 408, PG 463

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY PAUL DOUGLAS SMITH PIN:5620-58-4167 DB 11457, PG 75

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY BOARD OF LIGHT & WATER COMMISSON PIN:5620-58-4100

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY BOARD OF LIGHT & WATER COMMISSON PIN:5620-58-3077 DB 362 PG 191

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY BOARD OF LIGHT & WATER COMMISSON PIN:5620-57-3919

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY ROY LEE JR. MORRIS & DICIE D. MORRIS DICIE D. MORRIS PIN:5620-58-3042 DB 7821, PG 302

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY TIMOTHY M. SHERMAN  & JEANETTE H. SHERMAN JEANETTE H. SHERMAN PIN:5620-57-0992 DB 2088, PG 327

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY JOSE VELASQUEZ & DORA VELASQUEZ PIN:5620-57-1846 DB 4182, PG 226

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY CAROLINE KALAYJIAN PIN:5620-57-1880 DB 12694, PG 70

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY RUBEN JUAREZ-FERREIRA & IRMA ARELLANES PRUDENTE PIN:5620-57-1744 DB 13225, PG 277

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY PROPST BROS. DIST. INC. PIN:5620-57-4467 DB 519, PG 188

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY R & P EUDY  CONSTRUCTION INC. PIN:5620-57-6334 DB 11915, PG 138

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY PROPST BROS. DIST. INC. PIN:5620-57-4620 DB 1274, PG 277

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY D&H INVESTMENTS LLC. PIN:5620-57-3660 DB 13700, PG 144

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY U.S.  BANK TRUST, N.A.  BANK TRUST, N.A. TRUSTEE FOR LSF9 MASTER  PARTICIPATION TRUST PIN:5620-57-3647 DB 12795, PG 208

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY RUTH E. CRISCO PIN:5620-57-3700 DB 5986, PG 235

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY PINNACLE PROPERTY GROUP OF THE CAROLINAS, LLC PIN:5620-57-2764 DB 10475, PG 232

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY PINNACLE PROPERTY GROUP OF THE CAROLINAS, LLC PIN:5620-57-2634 DB 10475, PG 235

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY SILVIA M. CORONA PIN:5620-57-2600 DB 2175, PG 317

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY CITY OF CONCORD PIN:5620-58-1073 DB 11637, PG 268

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOW OR FORMERLY CITY OF CONCORD PIN:5620-58-1037DB 11637, PG 268

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE  FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENT AXLE FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TIE LINE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TIE LINE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TIE LINE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TIE LINE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONVEYANCE PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
A PORTION OF THE PROPERTY OF  PORTION OF THE PROPERTY OF  CITY OF CONCORD PIN: 5620-57-5873 REAL ID:12-021-0013.00 CITY OF CONCORD, # 12 TOWNSHIP CABARRUS COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA MAP REF.: MAP BOOK 61, PAGE 53     SCALE 1" = 50'    DATE: MAY. 06, 2020  PREPARED BY: JES     CHECKED BY: DMM

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 INCH = 50 FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCALIZED COORDINATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
   REVISIONS:     NO.   DATE                  DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY AND ACCURACY STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA, CABARRUS COUNTY I, DAVID M. MEDLIN, CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN  UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY MADE UNDER  MY SUPERVISION BASED ON THE MAP BOOK AND DEED BOOK DESCRIPTIONS, AS NOTED HEREON; THAT THE BOUNDARIES NOT SURVEYED ARE SHOWN AS BROKEN LINES PLOTTED FROM INFORMATION FOUND IN THE DEEDS REFERENCED HEREON; THAT THE RATIO OF CLOSURE IS 1:10,000+; THAT THIS MAP WAS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERAL STATUTE 47-30, AS AMENDED. I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THIS SURVEY IS OF AN EXISTING PARCEL OR PARCELS OF LAND AND DOES NOT CREATE A NEW STREET OR CHANGE AN EXISTING STREET. WITNESS MY ORIGINAL SIGNATURE, REGISTRATION NUMBER AND  SEAL THIS THE Xth DAY OF XXXXXX, A.D., 2020.                                               . DAVID M. MEDLIN PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR NORTH CAROLINA REG. NO. L-4286

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF CONCORD ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT  635 ALFRED BROWN JR. COURT, SW  CONCORD, NC 28026-0308  704-920-5420   FAX 704-786-4521

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES : 1. PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION NUMBER - PIN 5620-57-5873. 2. REAL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER #12-021-0013.00. 3. REFERENCES - MAP BOOK 61, PAGE 53, DEED BOOK 13907, PAGE 248, DEED BOOK 904, PAGE 373, DEED BOOK 362, PAGE 191, DEED BOOK 7821, PAGE 302, DEED BOOK 408, PAGE 463, DEED BOOK 12694, PAGE 70, DEED BOOK 10475, PAGE 232 & DEED BOOK 5986, PAGE 235. 4. SUBJECT PROPERTY IS ZONED - CD-C-2. 5. ALL DISTANCES ARE HORIZONTAL GROUND DIMENSIONS IN US SURVEY FEET, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. 6. AREA(S) SHOWN WERE DETERMINED BY COORDINATE COMPUTATIONS. 7. SURVEY BASED ON EXISTING MARKERS FOUND AT SITE AND DEED DESCRIPTION. 8. THE SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN ZONE "X" AREA, AS PER F.E.M.A. F.I.R.M. COMMUNITY PANEL 3710562000K, EFFECTIVE DATE 11/16/2018. 9. THE PURPOSE OF THIS SURVEY IS TO CREATE A PLAT SUITABLE FOR RECORDATION IN THE CABARRUS COUNTY LAND RECORDS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE NORTH CAROLINA GENERAL STATUTE 47-30 MAPPING REQUIREMENTS. 10. THIS IS A BOUNDARY SURVEY OF AN EXISTING PARCEL OF LAND AND IS SUBJECT TO ANY AND ALL EASEMENTS OR RIGHTS OF WAY OF RECORD.  11. THIS SURVEY WAS PREPARED BASED ON LOCALIZED COORDINATES (NAD 83).    

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFICATE OF PLAT APPROVAL IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED THAT THIS MAP IS EXEMPT FROM  CITY OF CONCORD APPROVAL AS A SUBDIVISION PLAT AND  IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CITY OF CONCORD DEVELOPMENT  ORDINANCE REGULATIONS,           .                                         .                                          .                                . DATE                 DIRECTOR OF DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
G:\ENG\SURVEY PROJECTS\2011\SURVEY 2011-071 (CLEARWATER STUDIOS)\2011-071 CLEARWATER-STUDIO - COC PROPERTY TRANSFER TO ROENIX LLC.DWG

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT REVIEW OFFICER CERTIFICATE (AS REQUIRED BY NCGS 47-30.2) STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA COUNTY OF CABARRUS I,                                , REVIEW OFFICER CABARRUS COUNTY, N.C.,                                  , REVIEW OFFICER CABARRUS COUNTY, N.C.,   REVIEW OFFICER CABARRUS COUNTY, N.C.,  CERTIFY THAT THE MAP OR PLAT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATION IS AFFIXED MEETS  ALL STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS FOR RECORDING.  DATE:             ,         REVIEW OFFICER:                              .             ,         REVIEW OFFICER:                              .         REVIEW OFFICER:                              .                              .

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA OF CONVEYANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGEND%%U

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROKEN LINES NOT SURVEYED

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIE LINES

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPUTED POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE FOUND (AS SHOWN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON ROD FOUND (AS SHOWN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAIL FOUND (AS SHOWN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" IRON SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CROWELL DR., NW 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR DR., NW 

AutoCAD SHX Text
KERR ST., NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLEACHERY CT., NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUVAL ST., NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY AVE., NW 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKLIN AVE., NW 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR DR., NW 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACADEMY AVE., NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP - NO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHISELED "X" IN CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINES SURVEYED

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT OF WAY LINES

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY PLAT NOT FOR RECORDATION, CONVEYANCES, OR SALES



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONSIDERATION of NEGOTIATED OFFER, 
ADVERTISEMENT, AND UPSET BID 

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A-269 permits the City to sell real 
property by upset bid after the receipt of an Offer to Purchase Property; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Concord (“City”) acquired real property at 247 Crowell Drive, NW, 

PIN 5620-57-5873, Tax ID No. 12-012-0013.00 (“City Parcel”) by Deed recorded in Deed Book 
63, at Page 498 and as further described in Map Book 61, at Page 53 of the Cabarrus County 
Registry; and 

 
WHEREAS Roenix, LLC, a North Carolina limited liability corporation (“Roenix”) owns the 

neighboring parcel identified as 191 Crowell Drive NW, PIN 5620-58-7025, Tax ID No. 12-021-
0014.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, the subject area is currently being used as extended parking for the business 

and is maintained by Roenix; and  
 

WHEREAS, Roenix desires to purchase a small portion of the Parent Parcel owned by the 
City for the purpose of having fee simple ownership of the parking area servicing 191 Crowell 
Drive NW (“Property”) and is further described as follows:  

 
BEING a 2,949 Sq. Ft portion of the property identified as being PIN 5620-58-7025 (Tax 

ID No. 12-021-0013.00 as shown on map titled as “Exception Plat, Property of the City of Concord” 
dated May 6, 2020 and is attached as Exhibit A for further reference.; and 

 
WHEREAS, on October 14, 2020, the City received an Offer to Purchase the Property 

from Roenix for five hundred dollars and no cents ($500.00); and  
 
WHEREAS, the Buyer have deposited a 5% deposit of $ 50.00 with the City Clerk; and  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CONCORD, THAT: 

     1.  The City Council intends to accept the offer described above through the upset bid 
 procedure outlined in North Carolina General Statute § 160A-269. 

2.  The Offeror shall submit fifty dollars and zero cents ($50.00) as a deposit to be held by 
the City Clerk; and  

3.  The City Clerk shall cause to be published a notice of the proposed sale of the Property, 
that BEING  a 2,949 Sq. Ft portion of the property identified as being PIN 5620-58-7025 
(Tax ID No. 12-021-0014.00 as shown on map titled as “Exception Plat, Property of the 
City of Concord” dated May 6, 2020 and is attached as Exhibit A for further reference and 
the notice shall describe the property, the amount of the offer, the terms under which the 
sale is to be made, and the terms under which the offer may be upset. 

     4.  Any persons wishing to upset the offer shall submit a sealed bid along with their offer 
 and deposit to the office of the City Clerk within 10 days after the notice of the proposed 
 sale is published.  At the conclusion of the 10-day period, the City Clerk shall open the 
 bids, if any, and the highest bid will become the new offer.  If there is more than one bid 
 in the highest amount, the first such bid received will become the new offer. 

     5.  If a qualifying higher bid is received, the City Clerk shall cause a new notice of upset bid 
 to be published, and shall continue to do so until a 10-day period has passed without 
 any qualifying upset bid having been received.  At that time, the amount of the final high 
 bid shall be reported to the City Council. 

     6.  A qualifying higher bid is one that raises the existing offer by not less than ten percent 
 (10%) of the first $1,000.00 of that offer and five percent (5%) of the remainder of that 
 offer. 

     7.  All bids, including the qualifying higher bid must also be accompanied by a deposit in the 
 amount of five percent (5%) of the total bid; the deposit may be made in cash, cashier’s 
 check, or certified check to the City Clerk.  The City will return the deposit on any bid not 
 accepted and will return the deposit on an offer subject to upset if a qualifying higher bid 
 is received.   

176



     8.  The final sale shall include the following terms:  

a.  The City will convey 2,949 Square Feet off of 247 Crowell Drive NW to the Highest 
Bidder, stated in the Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Property. 

b. The City will convey the property to Roenix, LLC, reserving an easement to be held 
by the City of Concord for the right, privilege, and easement to enter and install, 
dig, build, erect, maintain, repair, rebuild, operate, and patrol approximately 217.69 
feet of an existing retaining wall located on the above described parcel. The 
retaining wall will remain clear of obstructions, shrubbery, and all other personal 
and landscaping fixtures. 

b. The City will convey the property subject to any and all existing public utility 
 easements, restrictions, rights-of-way, protective covenants, zoning laws, 
 conditions, and any ordinance of record. 

c.  The closing shall take place on or before December 30, 2019.  

     9.   The City reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time, before the 
 final high bid is accepted and reserves the right to reject, at any time, all bids. 

10. The City Attorney is directed to take all necessary steps to complete the sale in the    event 
no upset bids are received. The City Manager is authorized to execute the necessary 
instruments to effectuate the sale of 2,949 Square Feet off of 247 Crowell Drive NW in 
accordance with this resolution. 

    Adopted this ______________ day of November, 2020  

             
        CITY COUNCIL   
        CITY OF CONCORD   
        NORTH CAROLINA   
             
        _____________________________ 

        William “Bill” Dusch, Mayor 
 ATTEST: 
 
 _____________________________ 
 Kim J. Deason, City Clerk 
 
 

 

177



 

 
451 Discovery Drive, Livermore, CA 94551      |      www.gillig.com      |      510.264.5000 

 
 
 
October 26, 2020 
 
 
LJ Weslowski 
Transit Manager 
Concord Kannapolis Area Transit 
3600 South Ridge Ave 
Concord, NC 28025 
 
Dear LJ, 
 
Thank You for your interest in purchasing ONE (1) 35’ Gillig BRT Low Floor BAE Hybrid bus utilizing options 
off the Piedmont, NC contract with GILLIG.  I prepared the following price quote based on your previous 
specifications and our discussions. Please reference the price summary dated October 26, 2020 for complete details.  
 
 Gillig is pleased to quote the following: 
 
  

 35’ BRT LOW FLOOR BAE HYBRID    $ 725,670 .00 Each 
 
 
 
Pricing valid for Thirty (30) days and is FOB Concord, NC.  Prices exclude any taxes and license fees. Production 
schedule will be determined upon receipt of purchase order. 
 
We thank you very much for this opportunity and appreciate your continued support. Should you have any 
questions, please do not hesitate to contact us. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Butch Sibley 
Sales Manager 
Gillig LLC 
510-589-9430 
bsibley@gillig.com 
 
 

178



Bids Received October 22, 2020 at 2:00 PM in the BOC Conference Room C

1 2 3
CONTRACTOR:

ADDRESS:
Monroe, NC 28111

LICENSE #: 17793 71184 64580
Item 
No. Sect. No. Description Estimated 

Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total Cost Unit Cost Total Cost Unit Cost Total Cost

1 WSACC 01025 Mobilization 1 LS 20,000.00$        20,000.00$        25,000.00$     25,000.00$        24,021.05$      24,021.05$       
2 NCDOT 801 Construction Surveying 1 LS 8,000.00$          8,000.00$          8,500.00$       8,500.00$          8,625.00$        8,625.00$         
3 SP-01 Traffic Control 1 LS 14,000.00$        14,000.00$        12,500.00$     12,500.00$        52,223.66$      52,223.66$       
4 SP-02 10" HDPE DIPS DR11 Bored in Soil 1,400 LF 279.00$             390,600.00$      112.81$          157,934.00$      135.83$           190,162.00$     

5 SP-02 10" HDPE DIPS DR11 Bored in Rock 400 LF 370.00$             148,000.00$      387.81$          155,124.00$      262.07$           104,828.00$     
6 SP-03 MJ Adapter Assembly for HDPE Transitions 14 EA 1,100.00$          15,400.00$        713.26$          9,985.64$          557.25$           7,801.50$         
7 SP-04 HDPE Transition Wall Blocking 2 EA 2,700.00$          5,400.00$          2,482.72$       4,965.44$          3,713.40$        7,426.80$         
8 WSACC 01025 8" Restrained DI Pipe 90 LF 257.00$             23,130.00$        239.24$          21,531.60$        168.07$           15,126.30$       
9 WSACC 01025 6" Restrained DI Pipe 95 LF 248.00$             23,560.00$        232.90$          22,125.50$        158.27$           15,035.65$       

10 WSACC 01025 8"x8"x6" DI Tee 3 EA 510.00$             1,530.00$          1,404.35$       4,213.05$          1,339.49$        4,018.47$         
11 WSACC 01025 8"x8"x8" DI Tee 1 EA 600.00$             600.00$             1,443.34$       1,443.34$          1,375.34$        1,375.34$         
12 WSACC 01025 8" 90-degree DI Bend 1 EA 450.00$             450.00$             1,346.28$       1,346.28$          907.34$           907.34$            
13 WSACC 01025 8" 45-degree DI Bend 8 EA 360.00$             2,880.00$          1,177.74$       9,421.92$          890.03$           7,120.24$         
14 WSACC 01025 6" 45-degree DI Bend 6 EA 250.00$             1,500.00$          1,125.64$       6,753.84$          841.82$           5,050.92$         
15 WSACC 01025 6" 22 1/2-degree DI Bend 2 EA 250.00$             500.00$             1,120.46$       2,240.92$          836.87$           1,673.74$         
16 WSACC 01025 10"x8" DI Reducer 8 EA 540.00$             4,320.00$          1,148.08$       9,184.64$          1,057.16$        8,457.28$         
17 WSACC 01025 8" Restrained DI Plug/Cap 1 EA 300.00$             300.00$             622.07$          622.07$             558.25$           558.25$            
18 WSACC 01025 8" Gate Valve and Valve Box 5 EA 2,100.00$          10,500.00$        4,039.66$       20,198.30$        2,379.38$        11,896.90$       
19 WSACC 01025 6" Gate Valve and Valve Box 6 EA 1,350.00$          8,100.00$          3,711.88$       22,271.28$        2,070.57$        12,423.42$       
20 WSACC 01025 Fire Hydrant Assembly 3 EA 4,100.00$          12,300.00$        6,074.03$       18,222.09$        6,359.91$        19,079.73$       
21 SP-07 12.75" Diam x 0.188" Thick Steel Casing Pipe 20 LF 135.00$             2,700.00$          183.64$          3,672.80$          481.79$           9,635.80$         
22 SP-08 8" Connection to Existing Water Main - Tapping Sleeve and Valve 1 EA 6,600.00$          6,600.00$          9,480.15$       9,480.15$          8,196.98$        8,196.98$         
23 SP-08 8" Connection to Existing Water Main - MJ Transition Sleeve 1 EA 3,000.00$          3,000.00$          2,154.06$       2,154.06$          4,083.35$        4,083.35$         
24 SP-08 6" Connection to Existing Water Main - Tapping Sleeve and Valve 1 EA 4,200.00$          4,200.00$          8,804.09$       8,804.09$          5,968.94$        5,968.94$         
25 SP-08 6" Connection to Existing Water Main - MJ Transition Sleeve 3 EA 2,900.00$          8,700.00$          2,154.06$       6,462.18$          3,031.61$        9,094.83$         

26 WSACC 01025 Water Service Connection and Meter Assembly, excluding Meter (City to 
install Meter) - 3/4" Domestic - Long Side - Trenchless Installation 14 EA 3,600.00$          50,400.00$        3,254.42$       45,561.88$        3,385.79$        47,401.06$       

27 WSACC 01025 Water Service Connection and Meter Assembly, excluding Meter (City to 
install Meter) - 3/4" Domestic - Short Side 16 EA 2,000.00$          32,000.00$        1,955.76$       31,292.16$        3,138.08$        50,209.28$       

28 WSACC 01025 Water Service Connection and Meter Assembly, excluding Meter (City to 
install Meter) - 1" Irrigation - Short Side 1 EA 1,500.00$          1,500.00$          2,046.90$       2,046.90$          3,775.21$        3,775.21$         

29 SP-09 Connection to Existing Sampling Site 2 EA 1,100.00$          2,200.00$          1,431.97$       2,863.94$          2,754.84$        5,509.68$         
30 SP-10 Plumbing Permit and Requirements for Reconnecting Water Services 31 EA 2,200.00$          68,200.00$        154.30$          4,783.30$          345.00$           10,695.00$       
31 WSACC 01025 4” PVC Sewer Lateral 100 LF 84.00$               8,400.00$          170.04$          17,004.00$        136.22$           13,622.00$       
32 WSACC 01025 4” Sanitary Sewer Cleanout 5 EA 300.00$             1,500.00$          349.18$          1,745.90$          777.85$           3,889.25$         
33 SP-10 Plumbing Permit and Requirements for Reconnecting Sewer Services 5 EA 2,000.00$          10,000.00$        154.30$          771.50$             345.00$           1,725.00$         
34 NCDOT 545 Incidental Stone Base 100 TN 38.00$               3,800.00$          62.33$            6,233.00$          37.09$             3,709.00$         
35 NCDOT 250 Removal of Existing Concrete Pavement 350 SY 12.00$               4,200.00$          139.65$          48,877.50$        4.96$               1,736.00$         
36 NCDOT 250 Removal of Existing Asphalt Pavement 100 SY 6.00$                 600.00$             60.00$            6,000.00$          3.31$               331.00$            
37 NCDOT 1530 Remove Water Meter 31 EA 440.00$             13,640.00$        50.00$            1,550.00$          309.53$           9,595.43$         
38 NCDOT 1530 Remove Fire Hydrant 3 EA 950.00$             2,850.00$          664.57$          1,993.71$          526.34$           1,579.02$         
39 SP-11 2' 6" Concrete Curb and Gutter Removal and Replacement 500 LF 50.00$               25,000.00$        50.00$            25,000.00$        77.28$             38,640.00$       
40 SP-12 Rock Removal 60 CY 300.00$             18,000.00$        250.00$          15,000.00$        201.25$           12,075.00$       
41 NCDOT 520 Aggregate Base Course 320 TN 30.00$               9,600.00$          82.33$            26,345.60$        37.09$             11,868.80$       
42 NCDOT 654 Asphalt Plant Mix, Pavement Repair 160 TN 225.00$             36,000.00$        196.12$          31,379.68$        316.25$           50,600.00$       
43 NCDOT 1660 Seeding and Mulching 0.25 AC 3,000.00$          750.00$             10,000.00$     2,500.00$          3,404.34$        851.09$            
44 SP-13 Storm Drain Inlet Protection 5 EA 300.00$             1,500.00$          519.38$          2,596.90$          193.72$           968.60$            

Irregularities (see highlighted areas on form)

CERTIFICATION:  This is certified to be an accurate tabulation of bids received for the project.

Spring St SW Waterline Replacement, Bid # 2459
Bid Tabulation Sheet Summary

Herrin Industrial, Inc.n
P.O. 523

None. 

Contingency Allowance (10 % of  Base Bid Price)

Bid Security (5%)

$100,641.00
$1,107,051.00Total Bid Price(Base Bid +Contingency Allowance)

Yes

Mt Pleasant, NC 28124

Base Bid Price

4417 Old Charlotte Highway

$1,006,410.00

Fuller &Co. Construct. 
697 Saint Mark Church Rd.
Bessemer City, NC 28016

$803,571.91

State Utility Contractors, Inc.

$80,357.19
$883,929.10

Yes

Addition error on Base Bid Price, 
error has been corrected.

$817,703.16
$81,770.32
$899,473.48

Yes

Math error  on line 42, error has 
been corrected.

G:\Eng\Engineering Projects\Projects\2018\037 Spring SW WL\Bid Docs\Bid Tabulation Summary_Spring.xlsx 10/26/2020

10-22-2020

179



RESOLUTION GRANTING AN EASEMENT 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Concord is owner of fee simple title to a parcel of land 
having a parcel identification number of 4599-15-4758-0000; and  

 
WHEREAS, TSH Development Company, LLC  is proposing to construct 

Weddington Ridge Apartments and Townhomes on Weddington Road; and  
 
 WHEREAS, TSH Development Company, LLC needs to acquire a temporary 
construction easement in order to connect to existing sewer that will require grading on 
the City’s parcel;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 

Concord, North Carolina:  
 

1. That an easement as shown on Exhibit “A” is hereby ordered granted.  
 
2.  The easement shall be conveyed by the City Attorney and other necessary 
staff or the Mayor to TSH Development Company,  LLC. 

 
3. The City Attorney and other City staff are hereby directed to take all 

necessary steps to enforce this resolution. 
 
 

Adopted this 12th day of November 2020. 
 
 
 CITY COUNCIL 
 CITY OF CONCORD 
 NORTH CAROLINA 
ATTEST: 
 
 ________________________________ 
__________________________ William C. Dusch, Mayor 
Kim Deason, City Clerk 
 
 

 

180



8" SAN

0+00

1+00

2+
00

3+00 4+00
MH-2

45991547580000
ZONING C-2

CITY OF CONCORD
CONCORD, NC

EX-MH

MH-1

30
'

SA
NIT

AR
Y

EA
SE

MEN
T

PL

PL

PL

PL

R
/W

R
/W

R
/W

R
/W

90
°

13
5°

620

630

630

616

618

622

622624
624

626

626

62
8

628

63
2

632

63
4

63
6

63
8

8" SANITARY SEWER
(PUBLIC)

0+
00

16
6°

S
21

° 
10

' 0
5.

22
"W

89
.4

9'

S24° 39' 17.40"E145.71'

N69
° 5

9' 
02

.2
3"

E
56

.4
8'

N17° 13' 37.81"W

110.78'

N
27

° 
12

' 0
9.

15
"E

50
.9

5'

TEMPORARY
CONSTRUCTION
EASEMENT

6
0
5

6
0
5

6
1
0

6
1
0

6
1
5

615

6
2
0

6
2
0

62
5

6
2
5

62
5

6
2
5

6
3
0

6
3
0

6
0
4

6
0
4

6
0
6

606

6
0
7

607

6
0
8608

6
0
8

6
0
8

6
0
9

609

6
0
9

6
0
9

611

6
1
1

6
1
2

6
1
2

6
1
3

6
1
3

6
1
4

6
1
4 6

1
6

6
1
6

617

6
1
7

618

6
1
8

619

6
1
9

62
1

6
2
1

62
2

6
2
2

62
3

6
2
3

62
4

6
2
4

62
6

6
2
6

6
2
7

6
2
7

6
2
8

6
2
8

6
2
9

6
2
9

6
3
1

6
3
1

6
3
2

6
3
2

6
3
3

6
3
3

N57° 45' 24.28"W
85.14'

0

1 INCH = 40 FEET

8020 40

WEDDINGTON RIDGE APARTMENTS
TSH DEVELOPMENT

WEDDINGTON ROAD, CONCORD NC

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
FOR SANITARY SEWER CONNECTION

181

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S



 
 

RESOLUTION RELEASING EASEMENT 
 
 

WHEREAS, a permanent easement was granted in Deed Book 13649 Page 229 
in the Cabarrus County Registry to the City of Concord for public utilities; and 

 
WHEREAS, the developer of the Wallace Meadows subdivision acquired the said 

easement in order to construct sewer to serve the development ;and  
  

WHEREAS, as a result of design changes to the sewer alignment, the developer 
request that said easement be abandoned; and  

 
WHEREAS, no public utility has been constructed in said easement the release 

would not be contrary to the public interest;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 

Concord, North Carolina:  
 

1. That the permanent easement  descripted and  recorded in Deed Book 13649 
Page 229 and temporary construction easement descripted and recorded in 
Deed Book 13649 Page 235 and more particularly shown outlined on Exhibits “A”  
is hereby ordered abandoned, and all rights and interest of the City are released. 
 
2.  The City's property rights in the released portion easement shall be conveyed 
by the City Attorney and other necessary staff or the Mayor to the property 
owner's of record. 

 
3. The City Attorney and other City staff are hereby directed to take all 
necessary steps to enforce this resolution. 

 
 

Adopted this 12th day of November 2020. 
 
 
 CITY COUNCIL 
 CITY OF CONCORD 
 NORTH CAROLINA 
ATTEST: 
 
 ________________________________ 
__________________________ William C. Dusch, Mayor 
Kim Deason, City Clerk 
 
 

 

182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



 

 
 

1	

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by and return to: William H. Trotter, Jr, Attorney;  
                                           4430 Park Road, Charlotte, NC 28209 
 
NORTH CAROLINA 
CABARRUS COUNTY 
(Pin #467-099-0483) 
 

TERMINATION OF EASEMENTS 
 

THIS  TERMINATION  OF EASEMENTS,  executed this ___ day of __________, 2020 
(“Effective Date”), by  the THE CITY OF CONCORD, a North Carolina municipal corporation  
(“City”), in favor of MICHAEL D. BROWN and. CAROLINE J. BROWN, individuals of the 
State of North Carolina (“Grantee”)  

 
WHEREAS, Grantee is the owner of the property known as 107 Northchase Drive, 

Concord, North Carolina (D.R. 3306-235, which property is hereinafter referred to as the 
“Property”); and 

 
WHEREAS,  Grantee heretofore granted to City a Permanent Easement, thirty (30) feet in 

width for public utilities, including but not limited to sewer and water, by instrument recorded in 
Book 13649 at Page 229 of the Cabarrus Public Registry and (2) a Temporary Construction Access 
Easement over and upon the Property to facilitate the construction of public sewer lines related 
improvements within the Permanent Easement by instrument recorded in Book 13649 at Page 235 
of the Cabarrus Public Registry, which Permanent  Easement and Temporary Construction Access 
Easement are  referred to collectively hereinafter as “Easements”); and 

 
WHEREAS, no sewer lines, pipes or other utility equipment or facilities were installed in 

the Easements and the Easements are not needed by the County for any purpose; and  
 
WHEREAS, the County desires to terminate and forever release the Easements. 
 
 
 

195



 

 2 
303458023 v3 

 

196



 

 3 
303458023 v3 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing the City hereby terminates the 
Easements recorded in the Cabarrus County Registry in Book 13649 at Pages 229 and 235 by 
relinquishing, quitclaiming and forever releasing unto Grantee all of the City’s rights, title and 
interest therein.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this instrument to be executed pursuant to 
property authority, effective the day and year first above written.  

THE CITY OF CONCORD 
 
 
By:       
Name:       
Title: ________ City Manager 
 
 

ATTEST: ____________________________’ 
                    __________________, City Clerk 
       
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF _____________ 
 

I, _______________________________, a Notary Public of the County of 
_______________ and State of North Carolina do hereby certify that 
_____________________________ personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged to 
me that (s)he is the City Clerk of the City of Concord and that by authority duly given and as the 
act of the municipal corporation, the foregoing was signed in its name by its _______ City Manager 
and attested by herself/himself as its _____ City Clerk.  
 

WITNESS my hand and notarial stamp or seal this ___ day of   , 2020.  
 

 [Notary Seal] By:       
 
Print Name:      
 
My Commission Expires:    
 

197



 

 4 
303458023 v3 

   
 

198



City of Concord, North Carolina
Preliminary Application — Extension ofConcord Utilities outside Concord City Limits

(Please type orprint in black ink)

1. Name ofdevelopment: Residential Home at 2925 Twinfield Dr Concord

2. Name andaddress ofowner(s)/developer(s): Festus & Dorothy Braithwaite
15 GLORIA DR NEW HEMPSTEAD NY 10977

3. Owner(s)/developer(s) telephone: 646_294_621 1 Fax:

4. Name and address of surveyor/engineer: II E . I I C I . I

PO BOX 541 Midland, NC 28107

Surveyor/engineer’s telephone’ 704) 3 °1'4 33 1 Fax: 205 ' 3 5° ' 885

6. Name, telephone and fax number, and address of agent (if any): Julia A Walker
Ph-704-579-2937 F'ax—704-925-1184 jw4nchomes@caro1ina.rr.com

7. Name and address ofperson to whom comments should be sent: Jul ia A walker
'iw4nchomes@carolina . rr . com

8. Telephone number ofperson to whom comments should be sent: 1 Q 9 _ 5 1 2 _ 2 2 3 1

Fax‘ 704-925-1194
9_ Location ofpl-ope;-ty; 2925 Twinfield Dr Concord NC

10. Cabarrus County P.I.N.#- 564°'52'1651'°°°°

l 1. Current zoning classification: LDR

12. Total acres: 2 . 05 Total lots proposed:

13. BriefDescription ofdevelopment: Residential H0316 Site

14. Proposed Construction Schedule Start 0 1 - 1 5 - 2 1

15. Type of Service requested COD-neCti°n T0 C5-tY Water

10-15-2020
Date

Name (printed)

NOTE: By aflixing his or her signar c hereto, the owner/developer acknowledges understanding of and
agreement to comply with allprovisions ofthe Concord City Code section 62.

199



OLD AIRPORT RD

HESS RD

LA
KE

 LY
NN

 R
D

TWINFIELD DR

TH
OM

PS
ON

 D
R

ELKWOOD CT

RINGTAIL CT SE

LE
MM

IN
G 

DR
 SE

CO
LF

AX
 DR

HEGLAR RD

LYNNWOOD DR

CHELSEA DR

ST
AB

LE
 R

D

PRESSLEY DOWNS DR SE

OLD LAKE LYNN RD

ES
SE

X D
R

BANBURY LN

WI
MB

LE
DO

N S
T

OLD FARM RD SE

TUDOR CT

WHISPERING PINE DR

DANIELLE DOWNS CT SE

MARMOT PL SE

Preliminary Application²

1 in = 500 ft

Walker

200



City of Concord, North Carolina 
 Preliminary Application – Extension of Concord Utilities outside Concord City Limits 

(Please type or print in black ink)  

1. Name of development: 

2. Name and address of owner(s)/developer(s):  

3. Owner(s)/developer(s) telephone:                                               Fax: 

4. Name and address of surveyor/engineer:  

5. Surveyor/engineer’s telephone:                                             Fax: 

6. Name, telephone and fax number, and address of agent (if any):  

7. Name and address of person to whom comments should be sent:  

8. Telephone number of person to whom comments should be sent: 

Fax: 

9. Location of property: 

10. Cabarrus County P.I.N.#: 

11. Current zoning classification: 

12. Total acres:                                           Total lots proposed: 

13. Brief Description of development: __________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

14. Proposed Construction Schedule ___________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________  

15. Type of Service requested  ________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________  

Date                                                                    Signature of Owner/Agent        

    ___________________________________________       
     Name (printed)  

NOTE:  By affixing his or her signature hereto, the owner/developer acknowledges understanding of and 
agreement to comply with all provisions of the Concord City Code section 62.   

Staff Use Only: 

Received by: ____________________________     Date: __________________________   

Poplar Trails
N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Joel Corriher
PO Box 7 Landis, NC 28088

704-202-4430

10/5/2020

Joel K. Corriher

172 Scalybark Trail, Concord, NC 28027

2.28

4681600699

LDR - Low Denisty Residential

To Be Determined 

Future Single Family Home

Sewer Tap

1 (one)

201



N SCALYBARK TRL

OD
EL

L S
CH

OO
L R

D

CHATHAM OAKS DR

PO
PL

AR
 W

OO
DS

 DRBURRIS LN

BA
MP

TO
N D

R

BAYBERRY TRL

COTTONWOOD TRL

POPLAR TENT RD

CHINABERRY LN

POPLAR VIEW DR NW

PO
KE

BE
RR

Y T
RL

MR
N 

DR
 N

W

BL
AC

KB
ER

RY
 TR

L

QU
IE

T C
OV

E T
RL

HICKORY NUT TRL

TREETOP WAY NW

JOHNSTON FARM RD

CLIFTON ST

CONNECT ST

HUCKLEBERRY TRL

FOREST POINT RD NW

HOLMES CT

POPLAR TENT RD

Preliminary Application²

1 in = 500 ft

Corriher

202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



BN 39315585v3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by and Return to Concord City Attorney ROD Box                      PIN: 4671-90-1741 
    

NORTH CAROLINA  
CABARRUS COUNTY  
 

STORMWATER CONTROL MEASURE (SCM), ACCESS EASEMENT AND  
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT  

 
 THIS STORMWATER CONTROL MEASURE (SCM), ACCESS EASEMENT AND 
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), made this     day of          , 
2020, by Niblock Homes, LLC, a North Carolina limited liability company, whose principal address is 759 
Concord Parkway North, Suite 20, Concord, NC 28027 (hereinafter “Grantor”), with, to, and for the benefit 
of the City of Concord, a municipal corporation of the State of North Carolina, whose address is P.O. Box 
308, Concord North Carolina 28026-0308, (hereinafter “Grantee” or “City”).  
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 
 WHEREAS, THE CITY COUNCIL ACCEPTED THIS STORMWATER CONTROL 
MEASURE (SCM), ACCESS EASEMENT AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT ON  
  .   
 
 WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner in fee simple of certain real property situated in the City of 
Concord, County of Cabarrus, North Carolina and more particularly described as follows: 4001 
Weddington Road, Concord, NC, Cabarrus County Property Identification Number (PIN): 5610-03-
2595. It being the land conveyed to Grantor by deed recorded in Book and Page 14210/237 in the Office 
of the Register of Deeds for Cabarrus County (hereinafter referred to as the “Property”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, Grantor desires to develop or redevelop all or portions of the Property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Property is located within the planning jurisdiction of the City of Concord, and 
is subject to certain requirements set forth in the City of Concord Code of Ordinances Chapter 60, the 
Concord Development Ordinance, (hereafter “CCDO”), and the Concord Technical Standards Manual 
(hereafter “Concord Manual”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, conditions for development and/or redevelopment of the Property includes (i) the 
construction, operation and maintenance of an engineered stormwater control structure, namely a Wet 
Detention Basin, as provided in the CCDO and the Concord Manual (the “Stormwater Control Measure” 

225



 

 2

or “SCM”), (ii) Grantor’s dedication  of a non-exclusive access easement to the City, as described in 
this Agreement, for inspection and maintenance of the Stormwater Control Measure;  and (iii) the 
assumption by Grantor of certain specified maintenance and repair responsibilities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this Agreement and the easements created herein are established in accordance 
with the requirements of N.C.G.S. Sec 143-211 et. seq., Article 4 of the CCDO and Article I of the 
Concord Manual; and 
  
 WHEREAS, Grantor has full authority to execute this Agreement so as to bind the Property and 
all current and future owners and/or assigns. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, including the benefits Grantor may derive 
there from, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Grantor hereby dedicates, 
bargains, grants and conveys unto Grantee, and its successors and assigns, a perpetual, and irrevocable 
right and non-exclusive easement in gross (of the nature and character and to the extent hereinafter set 
forth) in, on, over, under, through and across those portions of the Property shown on the attached 
Exhibit “A” titled “SCM Pond Maintenance & Access Easements for Olde Homestead prepared 
for Niblock Homes, LLC” and labeled “Detail “A” SCM Pond Access & Maintenance Easement 
1.328 Acres 57,849 SF”, for the purpose of inspection and maintenance of the Stormwater Control 
Measure (hereinafter referred to as “SCM Easement”).  Within the SCM Easement Grantor shall conduct 
best management practices as more fully set forth herein and in the CCDO and Concord Manual.  Also 
within the SCM Easement, Grantor shall construct, maintain, repair and reconstruct the Stormwater 
Control Measure or SCM, which include (i) the SCM and any other stormwater quantity and/or quality 
control devices and/or structures, described on the plans approved by the City of Concord and filed at 
the A.M. Brown Operations Center, 850 Warren Coleman Blvd., Concord, NC 28025; and (ii) access to 
the aforesaid SCM across that portion of the Property shown on the attached Exhibit “A” and labeled 
“SCM Pond Access Easement 2.242 Acres 97,645 SF”,  for the purpose of permitting City access, 
inspection and, in accordance with the terms of paragraph 4 of this Agreement, maintenance and repair 
of the SCM, as more fully set forth herein and in the CCDO and Concord Manual.  Except as set forth 
herein, nothing  contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to be a gift or dedication of any portion of 
Grantor’s Property to the general public or for any public use or purpose whatsoever, and further except 
as  specifically provided herein for the benefit of the City, no rights, privileges or immunities of Grantor 
shall inure to the benefit of any third-party, nor shall any third-party be deemed to be a beneficiary of 
any of the provisions contained herein. 
 
 The additional terms, conditions, and restrictions of this Agreement are: 
  
 1.  The requirements pertaining to the SCM Easement is more fully set forth in the current 
adopted and published editions of the following four (4) documents: (i) Article 4 of the CCDO, (ii) 
Article I, Section 1 of the Concord Manual, (iii) the Wet Detention Basin Inspection and Maintenance 
Plan attached as Exhibit “B” and (iv) as provided in the N.C. Dept. of Environment and Natural 
Resources (DENR) Stormwater Best Management Practices (BMP) Manual (the “NCDENR Manual”), 
all of which are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in their entireties below. Grantor agree 
to abide by all applicable codes including, but not limited to, those set forth above. All provisions 
required by Code Section 4.4.6.B.1 are incorporated herein by reference, and Grantor agree to abide by 
said provisions. Grantor further agrees that Grantor shall perform the following, all at its sole cost and 
expense: 

226



 

 3

 
a. All components of the SCM and related improvements within the SCM Easement are 
to be kept in good working order. 
 
b. The components of the SCM and related improvements within the SCM Easement shall 
be maintained by Grantor as described in “Exhibit B”, the Wet Detention Basin Inspection 
and Maintenance Plan.   

2.  Upon completion of the construction of the SCM, Grantor’s N.C. registered professional 
engineer shall certify in writing to the Concord Director of Water Services that the SCM and all 
components are constructed and initially functioning as designed.  Annual inspection reports (hereinafter 
referred to as “Annual Report(s)”) are required each year and shall be made by Grantor on the written 
schedule provided to Grantor in advance by the City.  The Annual Report(s) shall describe the condition 
and functionality of the SCM, and shall describe any maintenance performed thereon during the 
preceding year.  The Annual Report(s) shall be submitted with the signature and seal of Grantor’s N.C. 
registered professional engineer conducting the inspection.  If necessary, the City will provide a letter 
describing the maintenance necessary to keep the SCM and all components and structures related to the 
SCM functioning as designed and with reasonable timeframes in which to complete the maintenance.  
If the Annual Report(s) recommends maintenance actions, the repairs shall be made within a reasonable 
time as defined by the City. 

Grantor and Grantee understand, acknowledge and agree that the attached Inspection and 
Maintenance Plan describes the specific actions needed to maintain the SCM. 
 
 3. Grantor represents and warrants that Grantor are financially responsible for construction, 
maintenance, repair and replacement of the SCM, its appurtenances and vegetation, including 
impoundment(s), if any.  Grantor agrees to perform or cause to be performed the maintenance as outlined 
in the attached Inspection and Maintenance Plan and as provided in the NCDENR Manual.  Grantor and 
any subsequent transferee of Grantor or succeeding owner of the Property shall give the City written 
notice of the transfer of a fee or possessory interest in the Property listing the transferee’s name, address 
of the Property, transferee’s mailing address and other contact information.  Grantor and any subsequent 
transferee of Grantor or succeeding owner of the Property shall not be responsible for errors or omissions 
in the information about the transferee provided to the City caused by acts or omissions of the transferee.  
The transferee shall give the City written notice of the acceptance and any future transfer of an interest 
in the Property listing the transferee’s name, address of the Property; transferee’s mailing address and 
other contact information.  Upon the conveyance of the Property by Grantor to any transferee acquiring 
the Property by means of a conveyance document containing the language set forth in paragraph 9 below, 
Grantor are released from any further covenants or other obligations set forth in this Agreement.  
  
 4.  If Grantor fails to comply with these requirements, or any other obligations imposed herein, 
in the City of Concord Code of Ordinances, CDO, the Concord Manual or approved Inspection and 
Maintenance Plan, the City of Concord may perform (but is not obligated to perform) such work as 
Grantor is responsible for and recover the costs thereof from Grantor. 
 
 5.  This Agreement gives Grantee the following affirmative rights: 
 

227



 

 4

 Grantee, its officers, employees, and agents may, but is not obligated, to enter the SCM Easement 
whenever reasonably necessary for the purpose of inspecting same to determine compliance herewith, 
to maintain same and make repairs or replacements to the SCM, its appurtenances and condition(s) as 
may be necessary or convenient thereto in the event Grantor defaults in its obligations and to recover 
from Grantor the cost thereof, and in addition to other rights and remedies available to it, to enforce by 
proceedings at law or in equity the rights, covenants, duties, and other obligations herein imposed in this 
Agreement. 
 
 6.  Grantor shall neither obstruct nor hinder the passage of vehicular traffic and pedestrians 
within the paved portion of the access easement granted herein by Grantor to Grantee.   
 
 7.  Grantor shall, in all other respects, remain the fee owners of the Property and areas subject to 
the SCM Easement, and may make all lawful uses of the Property not inconsistent with this Agreement 
and the Easements granted herein. 
 
 8.  Grantee neither waives nor forfeits the right to act to ensure compliance with the terms, 
conditions and purposes of the SCM Easement and this Agreement by a prior failure to act.   
 
 9.  Grantor agrees:  
 
 a.  That a reference to the deed book and page number of this document in a form substantially 

similar to the following statement in at least a 12 point bold face font on the first page of the 
document: “Notice: The Property is subject to a Stormwater Control Measure (SCM), 
Access Easement and Maintenance Agreement enforced by the City of Concord and State 
of North Carolina recorded in the Cabarrus County Registry at DB  PG    .” 
shall be inserted by Grantor in any subsequent deed or other legal instrument by which Grantor 
may be divested of either the fee simple title to or possessory interests in the subject Property. 
The designation Grantor and Grantee shall include the parties, their heirs, successors and assigns; 
and 

 
b. That the following statement shall be inserted in any deed or other document of conveyance:   
 
“Title to the property hereinabove described is subject to the following exceptions: 

 
That certain Stormwater Control Measure (SCM), Access Easement and Maintenance 
Agreement dated   , 2020 with and for the benefit of the City of 
Concord, recorded in Book   , Page _____ in the Cabarrus County Registry, 
North Carolina, creating obligations of payment and performance on the part of Grantor which 
Grantee hereby assumes and agrees to perform and pay as part of the consideration of this 
conveyance and except further that this conveyance is made subject to any and all enforceable 
restrictions and easements of record (if applicable).” 
 
In the event that such conveyance is other than by deed, the above terms of “grantor/grantee” 
may be substituted by equivalent terms such as “landlord/tenant.” 

 
 TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the aforesaid rights, privileges, and easements herein granted to 
Grantee, its successors and assigns forever and Grantor do covenant that Grantor is seized of said 

228



 

 5

premises in fee and has the right to convey the same, that except as set forth below the same are free 
from encumbrances and that Grantor will warrant and defend the said title to the same against claims of 
all persons whosoever. 
 
 Title to the Property hereinabove described is subject to all enforceable deeds of trust, liens, 
easements, covenants and restrictions of record. 
 
 The covenants agreed hereto and the conditions imposed herein shall be binding upon Grantor 
and its agents, personal representatives, heirs and assigns and all other successors in interest to Grantor 
and shall continue as a servitude running in perpetuity with the above-described land. 
 
 THE CONCORD CITY COUNCIL APPROVED THIS AGREEMENT AND SCM 
EASEMENTS AND ACCEPTED THE SCM EASEMENTS AT THEIR MEETING OF   
  , 2020 AS ATTESTED TO BELOW BY THE CITY CLERK.  CONCORD CITY 
COUNCIL APPROVAL OF THIS AGREEMENT AND EASEMENT IS A CONDITION 
PRECEDENT TO ACCEPTANCE BY THE CITY. 
 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW] 
 
  
  

229



 

 6

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this instrument to be duly executed day and 
year first above written. 

 
GRANTOR: 
 
Niblock Homes, LLC, a North Carolina  
 
 
 
By:        
Name:         
Title:          
 
 
GRANTEE: 
 
City of Concord, a municipal corporation 
 
By:____________________________________ 

Lloyd Wm. Payne, Jr., City Manager 
ATTEST: 
 
    
Kim J. Deason, City Clerk 
[SEAL] 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
________________________________ 
VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
  

230



 

 7

STATE OF     
COUNTY OF    
 
 I, __________________, a Notary Public of the aforesaid County and State, do hereby certify 
that David S. Miller personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged that he/she is the 
Manager/Member of Niblock Homes, LLC, a North Carolina limited liability company, and that he 
being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing on behalf of the company. 
  
 WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal this the _____ day of ____________, 2020 
  

 
____________________________________ 
Notary Public 
My commission expires:_________________ 

 
 
 
 
 

 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF CABARRUS 
 
 I, _________________________________, a Notary Public of the aforesaid County and State, 
do hereby certify that Kim J. Deason personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged that she 
is the City Clerk of the City of Concord and that by authority duly given and as the act of the municipal 
corporation, the foregoing STORMWATER CONTROL MEASURE (SCM), ACCESS EASEMENT 
AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT was approved by the Concord City Council at its meeting held 
on       and was signed in its name by its 
City Manager, sealed with its corporate seal and attested by her as its City Clerk. 
 
 WITNESS my hand and notarial seal, this the _____ day of _______________, 2020. 
 
  ____________________________________ 
  Notary Public       
  My commission expires:______________  
 
 
 

231



  
 

   

  

  

  

MEMORADUM  

  

DATE: Wednesday, October 28, 2020  

TO: Sue Hyde, Director of Engineering 

FROM: Gary Stansbury, Construction Manager  

SUBJECT: Infrastructure Acceptance 

PROJECT NAME: Poplar Point TownHomes PH 1 MP 1 

PROJECT NUMBER: 2018-039 

DEVELOPER: Poplar Pointe Townhomes, LLC 

FINAL CERTIFICATION - LOT NUMBERS: 1-30 

INFRASTRUCTURE TYPE: Water and Sewer 

COUNCIL ACCEPTANCE DATE: Thursday, November 12, 2020 

ONE-YEAR WARRANTY DATE: Friday, November 12, 2021 

  

  
 

Water Infrastructure Quantity 

8-inch in LF 97.00 

8-inch Valves 1 

4-inch in LF 25.00 

4-inch Valves 1 

 

 

Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure Quantity 

8-inch in LF 865.00 

Manholes as EA 5 

 

232



  
 

   

  

  

  

MEMORADUM  

  

DATE: Tuesday, October 27, 2020  

TO: Sue Hyde, Director of Engineering 

FROM: Gary Stansbury, Construction Manager  

SUBJECT: Infrastructure Acceptance 

PROJECT NAME: Crosfit Vitality 

PROJECT NUMBER: 2014-043 

DEVELOPER: Raylee, LLC 

FINAL CERTIFICATION - LOT NUMBERS: Site 

INFRASTRUCTURE TYPE: Water  

COUNCIL ACCEPTANCE DATE: Thursday, November 12, 2020 

ONE-YEAR WARRANTY DATE: Friday, November 12, 2021 

  

  
 

Water Infrastructure Quantity 

6-inch in LF 311.00 

6-inch Valves 3 

 

 

233



MEMORADUM 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

PROJECT NAME: 

PROJECT NUMBER: 

DEVELOPER: 

FINAL CERTIFICATION - LOT NUMBERS: 

INFRASTRUCTURE TYPE: 

COUNCIL ACCEPTANCE DATE: 

ONE-YEAR WARRANTY DATE: 

Friday, October 9, 2020  

Sue Hyde, Director of Engineering 

Gary Stansbury, Construction Manager 

Infrastructure Acceptance 

Meadows Corporation 

2018-059 

Fortis-Richardson, LLC 

Commercial Site 

Water  

Thursday, November 12, 2020 

Thursday, November 11, 2021 

Water Infrastructure Quantity 

12-inch in LF 30.00 

12-inch Valves 1 

234



  
 

   

  

  

  

MEMORADUM  

  

DATE: Tuesday, October 06, 2020  

TO: Sue Hyde, Director of Engineering 

FROM: Gary Stansbury, Construction Manager  

SUBJECT: Infrastructure Acceptance 

PROJECT NAME: 

Cabarrus Charter Academy @ Poplar Crossing Public 

Sewer 

PROJECT NUMBER: 2012-070 

DEVELOPER: Ryan Companies US, Inc. 

FINAL CERTIFICATION - LOT NUMBERS: Site 

INFRASTRUCTURE TYPE: Water and Sewer 

COUNCIL ACCEPTANCE DATE: Thursday, November 12, 2020 

ONE-YEAR WARRANTY DATE: Thursday, November 11, 2021 

  

  
 

 

Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure Quantity 

8-inch in LF 887.00 

Manholes as EA 4 

 

235



  
 

   

  

  

  

MEMORADUM  

  

DATE: Monday, September 28, 2020  

TO: Sue Hyde, Director of Engineering 

FROM: Gary Stansbury, Construction Manager  

SUBJECT: Infrastructure Acceptance 

PROJECT NAME: Park View Estates PH 3  PH 3 MP 2 

PROJECT NUMBER: 2018-014 

DEVELOPER: Park View Estates, LLC 

FINAL CERTIFICATION - LOT NUMBERS: 120-133 

INFRASTRUCTURE TYPE: Water  

COUNCIL ACCEPTANCE DATE: Thursday, November 12, 2020 

ONE-YEAR WARRANTY DATE: Thursday, November 11, 2021 

  

  
 

Water Infrastructure Quantity 

2-inch in LF 226.00 

2-inch Valves 1 

8-inch in LF 343.00 

Hydrants 1 

 

 

 

236



  
 

   

  

  

  

MEMORADUM  

  

DATE: Tuesday, September 29, 2020  

TO: Sue Hyde, Director of Engineering 

FROM: Gary Stansbury, Construction Manager  

SUBJECT: Infrastructure Acceptance 

PROJECT NAME: Bedford Farms Subdivision Phase 4 

PROJECT NUMBER: 2017-046 

DEVELOPER: Niblock-Richardson Development II, LLC. 

FINAL CERTIFICATION - LOT NUMBERS: 122-169 

INFRASTRUCTURE TYPE: Water and Sewer 

COUNCIL ACCEPTANCE DATE: Thursday, November 12, 2020 

ONE-YEAR WARRANTY DATE: Thursday, November 11, 2021 

  

  
 

Water Infrastructure Quantity 

8-inch in LF 2464.00 

8-inch Valves 6 

2-inch in LF 623.00 

2-inch Valves 2 

Hydrants 3 

 

 

Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure Quantity 

8-inch in LF 3200.00 

Manholes as EA 15 

 

237



  
 

   

  

  

  

MEMORADUM  

  

DATE: Monday, September 28, 2020  

TO: Sue Hyde, Director of Engineering 

FROM: Gary Stansbury, Construction Manager  

SUBJECT: Infrastructure Acceptance 

PROJECT NAME: Ascendum Machinery 

PROJECT NUMBER: 2019-029 

DEVELOPER: Ascendum Machinery, Inc. 

FINAL CERTIFICATION - LOT NUMBERS: Commercial Site 

INFRASTRUCTURE TYPE: Water 

COUNCIL ACCEPTANCE DATE: Thursday, November 12, 2020 

ONE-YEAR WARRANTY DATE: Thursday, November 11, 2021 

  

  
 

Water Infrastructure Quantity 

12-inch in LF 64.00 

12-inch Valves 1 

 

 

 

238



ORD.   

 

CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE  
Poplar Tent & Harris 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina 
that pursuant to Section 13.2 Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, 
the following project ordinance is hereby ordained: 
 

SECTION 1. The project authorized is the Poplar Tent & Harris Project. 
 
SECTION 2.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to proceed with the 

implementation and amendments of the projects within the terms of the plans and 
specifications for the projects. 

 
SECTION 3. The following revenues are anticipated to be available to the City 

of Concord for the project: 
 

Revenues 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

423-4333150 
423-4333150 

 
Payment in Lieu Streets 
 

$0 
 

$275,000 
 

$275,000 
 

    
$275,000 

 
SECTION 4.  The following amounts are appropriated for the project:   

         
Expenses/Expenditures 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

8600-5811284 
8600-5811284 
 
 

 
Poplar Tent/Harris 
 
 

 
$0 

 
 

 
$275,000 

 
 

 
$275,000 

 
$275,000 

  
  
SECTION 5. Accounting records are to be maintained by the Finance 

Department of the City of Concord in such manner as (1) to provide all information 
required by the grant agreement and other agreements executed or to be executed 
with the various parties involved with the project; and (2) to comply with the Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act of the State of North Carolina. 
 

SECTION 6. Within five (5) days after adopted, copies of this grant project 
amendment shall be filed with the City Manager, Finance Director, and City Clerk for 
direction in carrying out this project. 
 

     SECTION 7. The Finance Director is directed to report on the financial status of 
this project in accordance with the existing City policy.  She shall also report to the 
City Manager any unusual occurrences. 
 

Duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina this  
12th day of November, 2020. 

 
       CITY COUNCIL 
       CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA 
       
             
       ____________________________ 
       William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: ______________________  ______________________________ 
                Kim Deason, City Clerk   VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

239



240



 
ORD. #  

 
 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND FY 2020-2021 BUDGET ORDINANCE 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina did on the 11th 
day of June, 2020, adopt a City budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and 
ending on June 30, 2021, as amended; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is appropriate to amend the expense/expenditures and the revenue 
accounts in the funds listed for the reason stated; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord 
that in accordance with the authority contained in G.S. 159-15, the following accounts are 
hereby amended as follows: 

 
 

Revenues 
Account Title Current 

Budget 
Amended 

Budget 
(Decrease) 
Increase 

100-4354000 Other Income $12,000 $24,500 $12,500 
     
 Total   $12,500 

 
 

    
Expenses/Expenditures 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

4310-5186000 
 

PD-Workmen Comp 
 

$0 
 

$12,500 
 

$12,500 
 

 Total   $12,500 
   
Reason:  To recognize a $12,500 workmen’s compensation settlement for the police 
department. 
  

Adopted this 12th day of November, 2020. 
 

      CITY COUNCIL 
      CITY OF CONCORD 
      NORTH CAROLINA 
    
      _______________________ 
      William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 
  Kim Deason, City Clerk 
      __________________________ 
      VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

241



ORD. #  
 

 
 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND FY 2020-2021 BUDGET ORDINANCE 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina did on the 11th 
day of June, 2020, adopt a City budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and 
ending on June 30, 2021, as amended; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is appropriate to amend the expense/expenditures and the revenue 
accounts in the funds listed for the reason stated; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord 
that in accordance with the authority contained in G.S. 159-15, the following accounts are 
hereby amended as follows: 

 
     

Revenues 
  Current Amended (Decrease) 

Account Title Budget Budget Increase 
210-4357500 CARES Act Funding 88,742 82,742 (6,000) 
Total Revenue Increase (Decrease)   (6,000)  

 
 

     
Expenses/Expenditures 

  Current Amended (Decrease) 
Account Title Budget Budget Increase 

1500-5800100 CARES Act Expenditure 88,742 82,742 (6,000) 
Total Exp Increase 
(Decrease)    (6,000) 

 

 
Reason:  To adopt a budget amendment to correct the September 2020 budget approval 
for additional CARES funds awarded by HUD.   
 

Adopted this 12th day of November, 2020. 
 

      CITY COUNCIL 
      CITY OF CONCORD 
      NORTH CAROLINA 
 
    
      _______________________ 
      William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 
  Kim Deason, City Clerk 
 
 
 
      __________________________ 
      VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

242



 

 
 
 

 
 

 
Quarterly Council Report 

 

UTILITY EXTENSIONS/ADDITIONS PERMITTED 
 

July 1- September 30, 2020 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

243



 

 
SUMMARY 

 
During the past quarter, the City of Concord Engineering Department’s local permitting programs 

have authorized the expansion of the City of Concord’s water distribution system and wastewater 
collection system to areas that have been recently annexed, developed or to portions of the countywide 
service area, where infrastructure is lacking, deficient or overloaded.  

 
In summary, the water distribution and wastewater collection expansion projects, as permitted by 

the City of Concord’s delegated permitting program during the quarter of July 1- September 30, 2020, are 
as follows: 

 
WATER:  
The City of Concord initiated water distribution system extensions permitted by the City of Concord’s 
delegated permitting 4,467 linear feet of 24-inch water lines, 270 linear feet of 12-inch water lines, 333 
linear feet of 2-inch water lines, and other appurtenances to provide services to existing customers, with 
zero increase to the existing average domestic water demand, of treated water from the City of Concord’s 
existing potable water distribution system.  
 
The Developer initiated PUBLIC water distribution system extensions permitted by the City of Concord’s 
delegated permitting program consisted of approximately 2,313 linear feet of 12-inch water main, 10,938 
linear feet of 8-inch water main, 1,270 linear feet of 6-inch water main, 23 linear feet of 4-inch water main, 
2,851 linear feet of 2-inch water main, with valves, hydrants and other appurtenances to serve a 69 single 
family 4-bedroom homes with a 200-person capacity pool amenity, a 34,870 sq. ft. Adult living facility with 
64 beds, a 1 Convenience-Gas Station store and a future commercial lot with a 4,080 sq. ft. commercial 
building, a 98,424 sq. ft. industrial building, 12 townhome units, a 339 Multifamily units consisting of 162 
1-bedroom apartments, 162 2-bedroom apartments, 15 3-bedroom apartments, a 9,450 sq. ft. clubhouse, 
and 150-person pool, 64 single family 3-bedroom homes, 29 single family 4-bedroom residential lots, 22 3-
bedroom townhomes with an average domestic, commercial, and industrial water demand of 293,435 
GPD, of treated water from the City of Concord’s existing potable water distribution system.  

    
 
SEWER:  
The City of Concord does not report any wastewater collection system extensions for this quarter. 
 
The Developer initiated PUBLIC wastewater collection system extensions permitted by the City of 
Concord’s delegated permitting program consisted of approximately 15,579 linear feet of 8-inch sanitary 
sewer, with manholes and other appurtenances to serve 169 single family 4-bedroom homes with a 200-
person capacity pool amenity, a 34,870 sq. ft. Adult living facility with 64 beds, 1 Convenience-Gas Station 
store and a future commercial lot with a 4,080 sq. ft. commercial building, 98,424 sq. ft. industrial 
building, 339 Multifamily units consisting of 162 1-bedroom apartments, 162 2-bedroom apartments, 15 3-
bedroom apartments, a 9,450 sq. ft. clubhouse, and 150-person pool, 64 single family 3-bedroom homes, 
29 single family 4-bedroom residential lots with a total average wastewater discharge of 147,290 GPD. 
 
 
Please reference the following pages for more information concerning the authorized expansion and the 
associated particulars of each project permitted by the City from 1st of July to the 30th of September, 
2020:  
 

244



 

 
Water Distribution System Extensions: 
July 1- September 30, 2020 

  
Date Issued: July 7, 2020 
Project Title: Spring Meadow Subdivision 
Project # 2019-032 
Developer:   Pulte Home Company, LLC 

Jeremy Huntsman, Director of Land Development  
11121 Carmel Commons Blvd., Suite 450 
Charlotte, NC 28226 
P) 704-972-0752      
Email) Jeremy.huntsman@pultegroup.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 7,208 linear feet of 8-inch water lines with 23 in-line valves, 
1,240 linear feet of 6-inch water lines with 3 in-line valves, 1,020 linear feet of 2-inch water 
lines with 2 in-line valves, 11 hydrants, and other appurtenances to provide potable water to 169 
single family 4-bedroom homes with a 200-person capacity pool amenity located off of Roberta 
Road, with an average domestic water demand of 70,100 GPD. 

 

Date Issued: July 9, 2020 
Project Title: Howerton Avenue 2” Waterline Replacement 
Project # 2020-049 
Developer:   City of Concord- Water Resources  

Attn: Thomas A. Bach, Engineering Manager 
PO Box 308 
Concord, NC 28026 
P) 704-920-5344 
Email) bacht@concordnc.gov 

Description: Construction of approximately 333 linear feet of 2-inch water lines with 1 in-line valve and 
other appurtenances to replace the existing water main located on Howerton Avenue, from the 
intersection with Powder Street to the road end with zero increase to the existing average 
domestic water demand.   

 
Date Issued: July 29, 2020 
Project Title: Rocky Mill Manor 
Project # 2020-053 
Developer:   Cabarrus Propco, LLC 

Charles E. Trefzger, Manager 
P.O. Box 2568 
Hickory, NC 28603 
P) 828-322-5535      
Email) cet@affinitylivinggroup.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 80 linear feet of 8-inch water lines, 18 linear feet of 6-inch water 
lines with 1 in-line valve, 1 hydrant, and other appurtenances to provide potable water to an 
34,870 sq. ft. Adult living facility with 64 beds located off of Rocky River Road and Drake Mill 
Lane SW, with a commercial wastewater discharge of 7,680 GPD.  

 

 

 

245



 

 

 

 
Date Issued: July 29, 2020 
Project Title: 7-Eleven (C-Store) at Harris Rd & Ellenwood Rd 
Project # 2020-010 
Developer:   C4 CStore Holdings II, LLC  

Timothy Sittema, Manager  
121 West Trade Street, Suite 2550 
Charlotte, NC 28202 
P) 704-561-5200      
Email) misaac@csere.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 12 linear feet of 6-inch water lines with 1 in-line valve, 1 
hydrant, and other appurtenances to provide potable water to 1 Convenience-Gas Station store 
and a future commercial lot with a 4,080 sq. ft. commercial building located off of intersection 
of Ellenwood Rd. and Harris Rd., with a commercial water demand of 12,950 GPD. 

 

Date Issued: August 5, 2020 
Project Title: The Grounds at Concord- Roadway Infrastructure 
Project # 2020-044 
Developer:   Bootsmead Lease Co., LLC 

Wellford Tabor  
2820 Selwyn Avenue, Suite 550 
Charlotte, NC 28209 
P) 704-973-9933      
Email) tkorona@keenlandcapital.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 1,708 linear feet of 12-inch water lines with 4 in-line valves, 775 
linear feet of 8-inch water lines with 2 in-line valves, 23 linear feet of 4-inch water lines with 1 
in-line valve, 4 hydrants, and other appurtenances to provide potable water to a 98,424 sq. ft. 
industrial building located off of George W. Liles Pkwy, with an industrial wastewater 
discharge of 10,080 GPD. 

 

Date Issued: August 5, 2020 
Project Title: Wilkinson Court Townhomes 
Project # 2020-016 
Developer:   Sherwood Development Group, LLC 

Justin Mueller, Managing Member 
1151 Biscayne Drive  
Concord, NC 28027 
P) 704-578-5688 
E) justin@sdgcarolinas.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 379 linear feet of 2-inch water lines with 2 in-line valves, and 
other appurtenances to provide potable water to 12 townhome units located off of Wilkinson 
Court SE., with an average domestic water demand of 4,800 GPD. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

246



 

 

 
 
 
 
Date Issued: August 10, 2020 
Project Title: The Addison Apartments 
Project # 2020-006 
Developer:   Contravest Development Partners, LLC 

Mark Ogier, President  
237 South Westmonte Drive, Suite 140 
Alamonte Springs, FL 32714 
P) 407-936-7159 
Email) mogier@contravesst.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 605 linear feet of 12-inch water lines with 3 in-line valves, 54 
linear feet of 8-inch water lines with 1 in-line valve,  1 hydrant, and other appurtenances to 
provide potable water to a 339 Multifamily units consisting of 162 1-bedroom apartments, 162 
2-bedroom apartments, 15 3-bedroom apartments, a 9,450 sq. ft. clubhouse, and 150-person 
pool located at the intersection of Weddington Road and Old Holland Road, with an average 
domestic water demand of 141,825 GPD. 

 

Date Issued: August 27, 2020 
Project Title: Tucker’s Walk Townhome Phase 2 
Project # 2019-053 
Developer:   Streetscape Land Properties, LLC 

Attn: Mr. David Miller, Raley Miller Properties Partner 
10815 Sikes Place, Suite # 300 
Charlotte, NC 28277 
P) 704-321-1000 
Email) david@raleymiller.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 1,426 linear feet of 8-inch water lines with 11 in-line valves, 528 
linear feet of 2-inch water lines with 3 in-line valves, 3 hydrants, and other appurtenances to 
provide potable water to serve 64 single family 3-bedroom homes located off Harris Road with 
a domestic water demand of 25,600 GPD. 

 
Date Issued: September 10, 2020 
Project Title: Hannah’s Meadow 
Project # 2019-046 
Developer:   Hannah Meadow, LLC 

Randall Nassar, Managing Partner 
2208 Duxbak Lane 
Waxhaw, NC 28173 
P) 704-361-1356      
Email) rnassar@brookwoodhomebuidling.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 1,395 linear feet of 8-inch water lines with 6 in-line valves, 319 
linear feet of 2-inch water lines with 1 in-line valve, 3 hydrants, and other appurtenances to 
provide potable water to 29 single family 4-bedroom residential lots located off of Pitts School 
Road with an average domestic water demand of 11,600 GPD.  

 
 
 
 
 

247



 

 

Date Issued: September 14, 2020 
Project Title: Poplar Tent Road 24-inch Water Main Extension 
Project # 2018-026 
Developer:   City of Concord Water Resources 

Mr. Thomas A. Bach, PE 
Engineering Manager 
PO Box 308 
Concord, NC  28026-0308 
P) 704-920-5344 
bacht@concordnc.gov 

Description: Construction of approximately 4,467 linear feet of 24-inch water lines with 4 in-line valves, 270 
linear feet of 12-inch water lines with 1 in-line valve, 3 hydrants, and other appurtenances to 
complete a hydraulic loop within the water distribution system located on Poplar Tent Road and 
Rock Hill Church Road with zero increase to the average water demand on the water system. 

 

Date Issued: September 25, 2020 
Project Title: Woodsdale Place Townhomes (Greenway) 
Project # 2020-063 
Developer:   Sherwood Development Group, LLC  

Justin Mueller, Member Manager 
1151 Biscayne Drive 
Concord, NC 28027 
P) 704-578-5688 
Email) justin@sdgcarolinas.com 
 

Description: Construction of approximately 605 linear feet of 2-inch water lines with 2 in-line valves, and 
other appurtenances to provide potable water to 22 3-bedroom townhomes located off of 
Woodsdale Place SE and McEachern Greenway with an average domestic water demand of 
8,800 GPD. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

248



 

 
Wastewater Distribution System Extensions: 
July 1- September 30, 2020 
 
 
 
Date Issued: July 7, 2020 
Project Title: Spring Meadow Subdivision 
Project # 2019-032 
Developer:   Pulte Home Company, LLC 

Jeremy Huntsman, Director of Land Development  
11121 Carmel Commons Blvd., Suite 450 
Charlotte, NC 28226 
P) 704-972-0752      
Email) Jeremy.huntsman@pultegroup.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 7,567 linear feet of 8-inch sanitary sewer with 41 manholes and 
other appurtenances to serve 169 single family 4-bedroom homes with a 200-person capacity 
pool amenity located off of Roberta Road, with a domestic wastewater discharge of 83,120 
GPD.   

 
Date Issued: July 29, 2020 
Project Title: Rocky Mill Manor 
Project # 2020-053 
Developer:   Cabarrus Propco, LLC 

Charles E. Trefzger, Manager 
P.O. Box 2568 
Hickory, NC 28603 
P) 828-322-5535      
Email) cet@affinitylivinggroup.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 388 linear feet of 8-inch sanitary sewer with 2 manholes and 
other appurtenances to serve 34,870 sq. ft. Adult living facility with 64 beds located off of 
Rocky River Road and Drake Mill Lane SW, with a commercial wastewater discharge of 7,680 
GPD.    

 

Date Issued: July 29, 2020 
Project Title: 7-Eleven (C-Store) at Harris Rd & Ellenwood Rd 
Project # 2020-010 
Developer:   C4 CStore Holdings II, LLC  

Timothy Sittema, Manager  
121 West Trade Street, Suite 2550 
Charlotte, NC 28202 
P) 704-561-5200      
Email) misaac@csere.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 406 linear feet of 8-inch sanitary sewer with 2 manholes and 
other appurtenances to serve 1 Convenience-Gas Station store and a future commercial lot with 
a 4,080 sq. ft. commercial building located off of intersection of Ellenwood Rd. and Harris Rd., 
with a commercial wastewater discharge of 9,450 GPD. 

 
 
 
 
 

249



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Date Issued: August 5, 2020 
Project Title: The Grounds at Concord- Roadway Infrastructure 
Project # 2020-044 
Developer:   Bootsmead Lease Co., LLC 

Wellford Tabor  
2820 Selwyn Avenue, Suite 550 
Charlotte, NC 28209 
P) 704-973-9933      
Email) tkorona@keenlandcapital.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 972 linear feet of 8-inch sanitary sewer with 6 manholes and 
other appurtenances to serve a 98,424 sq. ft. industrial building located off of George W. Liles 
Pkwy, with an industrial wastewater discharge of 10,080 GPD.   

 

Date Issued: August 10, 2020 
Project Title: The Addison Apartments 
Project # 2020-006 
Developer:   Contravest Development Partners, LLC 

Mark Ogier, President  
237 South Westmonte Drive, Suite 140 
Alamonte Springs, FL 32714 
P) 407-936-7159 
Email) mogier@contravesst.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 1,572 linear feet of 8-inch sanitary sewer with 7 manholes and 
other appurtenances to serve 339 Multifamily units consisting of 162 1-bedroom apartments, 
162 2-bedroom apartments, 15 3-bedroom apartments, a 9,450 sq. ft. clubhouse, and 150-person 
pool located at the intersection of Weddington Road and Old Holland Road, with no increase in 
the domestic wastewater flow.  The domestic wastewater of 89,385 GPD will be allocated in the 
NCDEQ private sewer permit. 

 
Date Issued: August 27, 2020 
Project Title: Tucker’s Walk Townhome Phase 2- Modification 2 
Project # 2019-053 
Developer:   Streetscape Land Properties, LLC 

Attn: Mr. David Miller, Raley Miller Properties Partner 
10815 Sikes Place, Suite # 300 
Charlotte, NC 28277 
P) 704-321-1000 
Email) david@raleymiller.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 2,313 linear feet of 8-inch sanitary sewer with 13 manholes and 
other appurtenances to serve 64 single family 3-bedroom homes located off Harris Road with a 
domestic wastewater discharge of 23,040 GPD. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

250



 

 
 
Date Issued: September 10, 2020 
Project Title: Hannah’s Meadow 
Project # 2019-046 
Developer:   Hannah Meadow, LLC 

Randall Nassar, Managing Partner 
2208 Duxbak Lane 
Waxhaw, NC 28173 
P) 704-361-1356      
Email) rnassar@brookwoodhomebuidling.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 2,361 linear feet of 8-inch sanitary sewer with 12 manholes and 
other appurtenances to serve 29 single family 4-bedroom residential lots located off of Pitts 
School Road, with a domestic wastewater discharge of 13,920 GPD.     

 

251



IDENTITY THEFT PREVENTION PROGRAM INCIDENT REPORT 

CITY OF CONCORD 

It is the policy of the City of concord to provide an Identity Theft Prevention Program for customers and 
coworkers.  The purpose of this report is to provide continued evaluation for the effectiveness of 
current policies and procedures in compliance with the FACTact.  This document will be used to drive 
recommendations for changes to the program due to evolving risk and methods of theft.   

This document will also be used to report incidents that have taken place since the last reporting period. 

 

Recommendations:  None  

Incidents:  November 2019– October 2020. 

Date Coworker Incident City Response Mitigation 
Sept. 2020 
180 Buffalo Ave 
NW 
 
Sept. 2020 
286 Bay Ave NW 
 
Sept.  2020 
388 Groff St NW 
 
October 2020 
130 Lore St SW 
 
 
 

Nicole Drake & 
Tammy Linn 
 
 

Provided 
fraudulent 
application 
information in 
order to have 
service put into a 
company name 
where he 
previously worked 
at 4 separate 
addresses 

Followed up with 
company who 
confirmed they 
did not own these 
homes nor should 
utilities have ever 
been put in their 
name. 
Transferred 
balance to 
customer’s home 
account and 
contact him 
regarding 
procedure. Closed 
out these utility 
accounts in the 
business name. 

Continue to 
require proper 
documentation.  If 
leased – must 
require a lease 
agreement even 
when it is a 
business.   

     
     
   .  
     

 

 

252



Tax Report for Fiscal Year 2020-2021
FINAL REPORT September

Property Tax Receipts- Munis  
2020 BUDGET YEAR 3,242,115.66      
2019 17,017.04           
2018 2,019.14             
2017 545.35                
2016 930.03                
2015 106.08                
2014 506.86                
2013 197.04                
2012 382.28                
2011 127.68                
Prior Years 204.96                
Interest 2,735.43             
Refunds

3,266,887.55      

Vehicle Tax Receipts- County
2020 BUDGET YEAR 440,981.17         
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
Prior Years
Penalty & Interest 2,359.52             
Refunds

443,340.69         

Fire District Tax - County
2019 BUDGET YEAR 20,773.98           

   Less: Collection Fee from County
Net Ad Valorem Collections 3,731,002.22      

423:Vehicle Tag Fee-Transportion Impr Fund 36,907.20           
100:Vehicle Tag Fee 149,865.60         
292:Vehicle Tag Fee-Transportion Fund 36,907.20           
   Less Collection Fee - Transit 
Net Vehicle Tag Collection 223,680.00         

Privilege License 115.00                
Prepaid Privilege Licenses
Privilege License interest
Total Privilege License 115.00                

 

Oakwood Cemetery current 1,050.00              
Oakwood Cemetery endowment -                      
Rutherford Cemetery current 3,883.35              
Rutherford Cemetery endowment 1,266.65             
West Concord Cemetery current 525.00                
West Concord Cemetery endowment -                      
Total Cemetery Collections 6,725.00             

Total Collections 3,961,522.22$    

253



 
Current Year
Original Scroll
    Levy
    Penalty
    Adjustments
Public Service 
    Levy
    Penalty
Discoveries/Annex 99,015.22           
Discovery Penalty 27,381.35           
Total Amount Invoiced - Monthly 126,396.57         
Total Amount Invoiced - YTD 62,820,484.00    

Current Year
Less Abatements (Releases)
    Real 245,616.97         
    Personal
    Discovery
    Penalty - all
Total Abatements 245,616.97         

Adjusted Amount Invoiced - monthly (119,220.40)        
Adjusted Amount Invoiced - YTD 62,552,427.19    

 
Current Levy Collected 3,242,115.66      
Levy Collected from previous years 22,036.46           
Penalties & Interest Collected 2,735.43             
Current Month Write Off - Debit/Credit -                      
Total Monthly Collected 3,266,887.55      
Total Collected - YTD 9,232,854.37      

Total Collected - net current levy -YTD 9,104,892.38      

Percentage of Collected -current levy      14.56%

Amount Uncollected - current year levy 53,447,534.81    

Percentage of Uncollected - current levy 85.44%

100.00%

 

254



CITY OF CONCORD

RELEASES 
CITY OF CONCORD 245,616.97$         
CONCORD DOWNTOWN -$                     

REFUNDS 
CITY OF CONCORD -$                     
CONCORD DOWNTOWN -$                     

DISCOVERIES
CITY OF CONCORD

TaxYear Real Personal Total Rate Calculated Penalties
2015 0 1,958,567 1,958,567 0.0048 9,401.12 4,847.14
2016 0 2,798,588 2,798,588 0.0048 13,433.22 5,550.86
2017 0 3,251,600 3,251,600 0.0048 15,607.68 5,186.58
2018 0 4,679,489 4,679,489 0.0048 22,461.55 6,508.98
2019 208,380 4,560,402 4,768,782 0.0048 22,890.15 4,126.01
2020 389,380 2,781,764 3,171,144 0.0048 15,221.49 1,161.78

Total 597,760 20,030,410 20,628,170 99,015.22$        27,381.35$   

DOWNTOWN 
TaxYear Real Personal Total Rate Calculated Penalties

2017 0 0 0 0.0023 0.00 0.00
2018 0 0 0 0.0023 0.00 0.00
2019 0 0 0 0.0023 0.00 0.00
2020 0 0 0 0.0023 0.00 0.00

Total 0 0 0 -$                   -$              

Summary of Releases, Refunds and Discoveries for the Month of September 2020

255



Description CUSIP/Ticker Face Amount/Shares Cost Value Maturity Date YTM @ Cost % of Portfolio Settlement Date Cost Price Days To Maturity

CP BANCO SANTANDER SA 0 3/4/2021 05970RQ40 5,000,000.00 4,986,388.89 03/04/2021 0.401 1.42 N/A 99.727778 155

CP BARCLAYS BANK 0 2/19/2021 06742VHX2 5,000,000.00 4,976,319.44 02/19/2021 0.623 1.41 N/A 99.526389 142

CP CHESHAM 0 10/22/2020 16536HKN0 5,000,000.00 4,939,206.94 10/22/2020 1.711 1.40 N/A 98.784139 22

CP CREDIT SUISSE 0 1/29/2021 2254EANV1 5,000,000.00 4,982,570.83 01/29/2021 0.472 1.41 N/A 99.651417 121

CP CREDIT SUISSE 0 5/17/2021 2254EASH7 5,000,000.00 4,991,406.94 05/17/2021 0.230 1.42 N/A 99.828139 229

CP LLOYDS BANK CORP 0 12/10/2020 53948AMA6 5,000,000.00 4,991,027.78 12/10/2020 0.381 1.42 N/A 99.820556 71

CP LLOYDS BANK CORP 0 6/22/2021 53948ATN1 5,000,000.00 4,991,841.67 06/22/2021 0.220 1.42 N/A 99.836833 265

CP NATIXIS 0 12/18/2020 63873JMJ6 5,000,000.00 4,960,488.89 12/18/2020 1.129 1.41 N/A 99.209778 79

CP NATIXIS NY 0 3/19/2021 63873JQK9 5,000,000.00 4,990,705.55 03/19/2021 0.281 1.42 N/A 99.814111 170

CP PRUDENTIAL PLC 0 10/26/2020 7443M2KS4 5,000,000.00 4,952,272.22 10/26/2020 1.434 1.41 N/A 99.045444 26

CP SALVATION ARMY 0 2/11/2021 79584RPB8 5,000,000.00 4,994,408.33 02/11/2021 0.220 1.42 N/A 99.888167 134

CP TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT 0 11/19/2020 89233GLK0 5,000,000.00 4,961,422.22 11/19/2020 1.129 1.41 N/A 99.228444 50

Sub Total / Average Commercial Paper 60,000,000.00 59,718,059.70 0.684 16.95 99.531368 122

FFCB 0.2 8/19/2022-21 3133EL4H4 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 08/19/2022 0.200 1.42 N/A 100 688

FFCB 0.22 7/21/2022-21 3133ELW67 5,000,000.00 4,997,500.00 07/21/2022 0.245 1.42 N/A 99.95 659

FFCB 0.32 8/10/2023-21 3133EL3E2 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 08/10/2023 0.320 1.42 N/A 100 1,044

FFCB 0.43 9/10/2024-20 3133EL6V1 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 09/10/2024 0.430 1.42 N/A 100 1,441

FFCB 0.53 9/29/2025-21 3133EMBH4 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 09/29/2025 0.530 1.42 N/A 100 1,825

FFCB 0.8 4/22/2024-21 3133ELXC3 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 04/22/2024 0.800 1.42 N/A 100 1,300

FFCB 1.24 3/10/2023-21 3133ELRZ9 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 03/10/2023 1.240 1.42 N/A 100 891

FFCB 1.48 3/10/2026-21 3133ELSC9 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 03/10/2026 1.480 1.42 N/A 100 1,987

FFCB 1.55 3/30/2027-23 3133ELUN2 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 03/30/2027 1.550 1.42 N/A 100 2,372

FFCB 1.69 2/12/2024-21 3133ELMJ0 5,000,000.00 4,999,500.00 02/12/2024 1.693 1.42 N/A 99.99 1,230

FFCB 1.7 9/27/2022-21 3133EKS31 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 09/27/2022 1.700 1.42 N/A 100 727

FFCB 1.71 11/25/2022-20 3133ELAU8 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 11/25/2022 1.710 1.42 N/A 100 786

FFCB 1.89 3/2/2027-21 3133ELQH0 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 03/02/2027 1.890 1.42 N/A 100 2,344

City of  Concord
Portfolio  Holdings
Monthly  Investments to  Council
Report  Format:  By  C U S I P /  Ticker
Group  By:  Security  Type
Average  By:  Cost  Value
Portfolio /  Report  Group:  All  Portfolios
As of 9/30/2020

Commercial Paper

FFCB Bond

256



FFCB 1.89 9/27/2024-21 3133EKU20 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 09/27/2024 1.890 1.42 N/A 100 1,458

FFCB 1.93 10/30/2023-20 3133EK4A1 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 10/30/2023 1.930 1.42 N/A 100 1,125

Sub Total / Average FFCB Bond 75,000,000.00 74,997,000.00 1.174 21.28 99.996002 1,325

FHLB 0.3 9/29/2023-21 3130AK3S3 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 09/29/2023 0.300 1.42 N/A 100 1,094

FHLB 0.44 6/29/2023-20 3130AJPW3 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 06/29/2023 0.440 1.42 N/A 100 1,002

FHLB 0.45 8/27/2024-20 3130AJZH5 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 08/27/2024 0.450 1.42 N/A 100 1,427

FHLB 0.825 8/17/2027-21 3130AJXH7 5,000,000.00 4,986,250.00 08/17/2027 0.866 1.41 N/A 99.725 2,512

FHLB 1.55 3/25/2024-21 3130AJAX7 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 03/25/2024 1.550 1.42 N/A 100 1,272

FHLB 1.77 7/22/2024-21 3130AHWG4 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 07/22/2024 1.770 1.42 N/A 100 1,391

FHLB 1.875 10/28/2024-21 3130AHUU5 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 10/28/2024 1.875 1.42 N/A 100 1,489

FHLB 1.875 11/29/2021 3130AABG2 875,000.00 853,965.00 11/29/2021 2.721 0.24 N/A 97.596 425

FHLB 1.9 11/27/2020-18 3130ACTU8 5,000,000.00 4,995,000.00 11/27/2020 1.935 1.42 N/A 99.9 58

FHLB 2.32 11/1/2029-22 3130AHEU3 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 11/01/2029 2.320 1.42 N/A 100 3,319

FHLB 3 10/12/2021 3130AF5B9 880,000.00 905,660.34 10/12/2021 1.634 0.26 N/A 102.915948 377

Sub Total / Average FHLB Bond 46,755,000.00 46,740,875.34 1.312 13.26 99.972555 1,465

FHLMC 0.25 6/26/2023 3137EAES4 3,220,000.00 3,219,567.60 06/26/2023 0.254 0.91 N/A 99.986726 999

FHLMC 0.25 7/28/2022-21 3134GWAP1 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 07/28/2022 0.250 1.42 N/A 100 666

FHLMC 0.27 5/19/2022-21 3134GVWZ7 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 05/19/2022 0.270 1.42 N/A 100 596

FHLMC 0.3 6/30/2022-21 3134GV2M9 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 06/30/2022 0.300 1.42 N/A 100 638

FHLMC 0.3 8/26/2022-21 3134GVYZ5 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 08/26/2022 0.300 1.42 N/A 100 695

FHLMC 0.35 11/18/2022-21 3134GVVY1 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 11/18/2022 0.350 1.42 N/A 100 779

FHLMC 0.35 9/22/2022-20 3134GVV54 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 09/22/2022 0.350 1.42 N/A 100 722

FHLMC 0.375 11/4/2022-20 3134GVQU5 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 11/04/2022 0.375 1.42 N/A 100 765

FHLMC 0.375 2/21/2023-21 3134GVXB9 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 02/21/2023 0.375 1.42 N/A 100 874

FHLMC 0.375 4/14/2023-21 3134GV4N5 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 04/14/2023 0.375 1.42 N/A 100 926

FHLMC 0.375 4/20/2023 3137EAEQ8 1,290,000.00 1,291,301.24 04/20/2023 0.341 0.37 N/A 100.100871 932

FHLMC 0.45 3/17/2023-20 3134GVP69 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 03/17/2023 0.450 1.42 N/A 100 898

FHLMC 0.8 7/14/2026-21 3134GV5T1 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 07/14/2026 0.800 1.42 N/A 100 2,113

FHLMC 1 4/21/2025-21 3134GVLE6 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 04/21/2025 1.000 1.42 N/A 100 1,664

FHLMC 1.25 3/26/2025-21 3134GVHG6 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 03/26/2025 1.250 1.42 N/A 100 1,638

FHLMC 1.875 3/28/2024-21 3134GUEN6 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 03/28/2024 1.875 1.42 N/A 100 1,275

FHLMC 2.25 11/24/2020-18 3134GBX56 5,000,000.00 5,014,000.00 11/24/2020 2.151 1.42 N/A 100.28 55

FHLMC 2.375 1/13/2022 3137EADB2 2,175,000.00 2,166,191.35 01/13/2022 2.520 0.61 N/A 99.595007 470

FHLMC 2.75 6/19/2023 3137EAEN5 1,225,000.00 1,317,965.25 06/19/2023 0.244 0.37 N/A 107.589 992

Sub Total / Average FHLMC Bond 82,910,000.00 83,009,025.44 0.716 23.56 100.127892 943

FHLB Bond

FHLMC Bond

FNMA Bond

257



FNMA 0.31 8/17/2023-22 3136G4K51 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 08/17/2023 0.310 1.42 N/A 100 1,051

FNMA 0.4 7/20/2023-21 3136G4ZS5 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 07/20/2023 0.400 1.42 N/A 100 1,023

FNMA 0.42 7/7/2023-21 3136G4YJ6 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 07/07/2023 0.420 1.42 N/A 100 1,010

FNMA 0.43 6/30/2023-21 3136G4XS7 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 06/30/2023 0.430 1.42 N/A 100 1,003

FNMA 0.455 8/27/2024-21 3136G4Y72 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 08/27/2024 0.455 1.42 N/A 100 1,427

FNMA 0.55 8/19/2025-22 3136G4H63 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 08/19/2025 0.550 1.42 N/A 100 1,784

FNMA 0.58 8/25/2025-22 3136G4J20 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 08/25/2025 0.580 1.42 N/A 100 1,790

FNMA 0.6 4/20/2023-21 3136G4UZ4 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 04/20/2023 0.600 1.42 N/A 100 932

FNMA 0.7 7/14/2025-21 3136G4YH0 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 07/14/2025 0.700 1.42 N/A 100 1,748

FNMA 1.25 8/17/2021 3135G0N82 770,000.00 738,091.20 08/17/2021 2.724 0.21 N/A 95.856 321

FNMA 1.375 10/7/2021 3135G0Q89 2,675,000.00 2,556,023.37 10/07/2021 2.961 0.73 N/A 95.552298 372

FNMA 1.375 9/6/2022 3135G0W33 300,000.00 298,497.00 09/06/2022 1.568 0.08 N/A 99.499 706

FNMA 1.8 10/28/2022-20 3135G0W74 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 10/28/2022 1.800 1.42 N/A 100 758

FNMA 1.875 4/5/2022 3135G0T45 2,005,000.00 1,989,331.01 04/05/2022 2.147 0.56 N/A 99.223064 552

FNMA 2 10/5/2022 3135G0T78 3,805,000.00 3,857,482.35 10/05/2022 1.511 1.09 N/A 101.379763 735

FNMA 2.25 4/12/2022 3135G0V59 960,000.00 969,734.40 04/12/2022 1.871 0.28 N/A 101.014 559

FNMA 2.375 1/19/2023 3135G0T94 1,820,000.00 1,884,180.01 01/19/2023 1.134 0.53 N/A 103.531596 841

FNMA 2.875 9/12/2023 3135G0U43 1,170,000.00 1,263,483.00 09/12/2023 0.221 0.36 N/A 107.99 1,077

Sub Total / Average FNMA Bond 63,505,000.00 63,556,822.34 0.875 18.04 100.109082 1,124

NCCMT LGIP NCCMT599 72,251.69 72,251.69 N/A 0.010 0.02 N/A 100 1

NCCMT LGIP NCCMT135 10,652,835.00 10,652,835.00 N/A 0.030 3.02 N/A 100 1

NCCMT LGIP NCCMT481 8,329,754.28 8,329,754.28 N/A 0.010 2.36 N/A 100 1

NCCMT LGIP NCCMT271 75,913.88 75,913.88 N/A 0.010 0.02 N/A 100 1

Sub Total / Average Local Government Investment Pool 19,130,754.85 19,130,754.85 0.021 5.43 100 1

PINNACLE BANK MM PINNACLE 5,234,923.86 5,234,923.86 N/A 0.500 1.49 N/A 100 1

Sub Total / Average Money Market 5,234,923.86 5,234,923.86 0.500 1.49 100 1

Total / Average 352,535,678.71 352,387,461.53 0.875 100 99.965892 922

Local Government Investment Pool

Money Market

258


	Agenda
	I. Call to Order
	II. Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silent Prayer:
	III. Approval of Minutes:
	IV. Presentations
	IV. 1. Present a Proclamation recognizing Wednesday, November 11th, as Veteran's Day.
	IV. 2. Presentation of the 2020 Jo Atwater Continuous Core Values Award.
	V. Unfinished Business
	VI. New Business
	A. Informational Items
	B. Departmental Reports
	C. Recognition of persons requesting to be heard
	D. Public Hearings
	VI. D. 1. Conduct a public hearing and consider adopting a resolution authorizing the negotiation of an installment financing contract and a deed of trust for the construction of a fire station at 3300 Roberta Road.
	Prelim Resolution Fire Station

	VI. D. 2. Conduct a public hearing to consider adopting an ordinance amending Section 7.7.4.E of the Concord Development Ordinance (CDO) to prohibit front-load townhomes on higher classification streets, and Section 7.8.18.A to correct a typographical error.
	Townhome Collector Language
	TA-03-20 Ordinance

	VI. D. 3. Conduct a public hearing to consider adopting an ordinance amending the Historic Handbook Chapter 5, Section 6, Porches.
	TA-04-20 Staff Report
	TA-04-Ordinance for Council
	For Council Item - TA-04-20 Full Ordinance and Amendment

	VI. D. 4. Conduct a public hearing and consider adopting an ordinance for annexation of four (4) parcels located on the northeast side of the Rocky River Road and Lower Rocky River Road intersection.
	Lower Rocky River Staff Report
	ANX-11-20 Subject Property Map
	ANX-11-20 Application
	November 2020 - Lower Rocky River Rd Annexation Ordinance
	Updated Rezoning Plan

	VI. D. 5. Conduct a public hearing and consider adopting an ordinance annexing +/- 0.214 acres located at 10515 Poplar Tent Rd, and owned by Larry and Myra Stinson.
	Stinson - Staff Report
	Stinson - Annexation Petition
	ANX-12-20 Subject Property Map
	Stinson - Annexation Ordinance

	VI. D. 6. Conduct a public hearing and consider adopting an ordinance annexing +/- 28.6 acres located at 1252 and 1260 Cox Mill Rd, and an unaddressed parcel, owned by the City of Concord.
	Cox Mill - Staff Report
	ANX-07-20 - Annexation Application
	ANX-07-20 - Subject Property Map
	NW Park Facts Sheet
	Cox Mill - Annexation Ordinance

	VI. D. 7. Conduct a public hearing pursuant to NC General Statutes Sec. 158-7.1 and consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract for a ten year / Gradually Declining Percentage tax based Downtown MSD Economic Development Incentive Grant based on paid MSD, City, and County taxes to Concord Master Venture, LLC (Lansing Melbourne Group) for the development of three mixed use structures located at 30 Market St. SW., 26 Union St. S., and 25 Barbrick Ave. SW.
	Tier Grant Detail
	EDI Agreement

	VI. D. 8. Conduct a public hearing and consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute an agreement with Cabarrus County for the City to receive an annual payment from Cabarrus County for the purpose of granting a ten-year/Gradually Declining Percentage tax-based downtown MSD economic development grant to Concord Master Venture, LLC to locate development projects at 30 Market St. SW., 26 Union St. S., and 25 Barbrick Ave. SW. in Concord pursuant to NC General Statutes Sec. 158-7.1
	Interlocal Incentive Concord Cabarrus

	VI. D. 9. Conduct a public hearing and consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a parking garage lease agreement with Cabarrus County and Concord Master Venture, LLC to provide Concord Master Venture, LLC evening and optional paid daytime parking spaces in the Cabarrus County Parking deck.
	Parking Slide
	Parking Garage Lease Agreement

	E. Presentations of Petitions and Requests
	VI. E. 1. Consider approving appropriation of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) funding in the amount of $255,000 to purchase and rehabilitate 570 Vance Drive, NE from Habitat for Humanity Cabarrus; repair The Salvation Army food pantry facility in the amount of $25,000; and fund select public service agencies responding to immediate community needs related to COVID-19 in the amount of $349,865.
	Offer to Purchase Vance
	CARES - Staff Report

	VI. E. 2. Consider a motion to approve the purchase of 487 & 489 Cook Street NW, from Blue Ram Properties, LLC for $125,000 using City Affordable Housing funds.
	Offer to Purchase Cook
	Cook Street Photo

	VI. E. 3. Consider adopting a resolution to sale 2,949 square feet of 247 Crowell Drive NW to Roenix, LLC for $500.00 for continued use as a driveway.
	REV OTP Clearwater Site
	Conveyance Plat
	Roenix Resolution

	VI. E. 4. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract withTalbert Bright and Ellington (TBE) to provide professional engineering, designand bidding service for the hangar's taxilanes rehabilitation project.
	VI. E. 5. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract withthe Houston Galveston Area Cooperative Purchasing Program for the purchaseof 2 Pierce manufactured engine/pumper trucks.
	VI. E. 6. Consider authorizing the City Manager to sign a contract with Gillig LLC utilizing the Piedmont Authority for Regional Transportation (PART) consortium contract for the purchase of one (1) new 35' heavy duty hybrid electric diesel bus for the Rider system.
	Gillig Bus Quote

	VI. E. 7. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract with Fuller & CO. Construction, LLC, for the installation of the Spring St., SW Water Line replacement.
	Bid Tabulation

	VI. E. 8. Consider adopting a resolution to convey a temporary construction easement to TSH Development Company, LLC.
	Resolution
	Exh A

	VI. E. 9. Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the Abandonment of Easement across property at 107 Northchase Drive  (PIN 4670-99-0483).
	Resolution
	Exh A
	Exh A 1
	Exh A 2

	VI. E. 10. Consider approving a modification to the Interlocal Agreement with Cabarrus County administering the Central Area Plan.
	Prelim App Twinfield
	Twinfield map

	VI. E. 11. Consider a Preliminary Application from Joel Corriher
	Prelim App Corriher
	Corriher Map

	VII.Consent Agenda
	VII. A. Consider authorizing one (1) day (eight-hour period) of paid administrative leavefor a raffle or prize for co-workers participating in the City United Way campaign.
	VII. B. Consider authorizing the Housing Department to apply for the EmergencySafety Funding Grant.
	VII. C. Consider authorizing the City Manager to accept an award in the amount of$28,597.50 under the FY 2020 Patrick Leahy Bulletproof Vest Partnership (BVP)solicitation from the U.S. Department of Justice to purchase 93 bulletproof vestsover the next two years.
	VII. D. Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract with the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) and execute all agreements and contracts with the NCDOT, Public Transportation Division (PTD).
	Grant Award Letter

	VII. E. Consider accepting an Offer of Dedication of an access easement and approval of the maintenance agreement.
	HSREI
	Niblock

	VII. F. Consider accepting an Offer of Infrastructure at Poplar Point Townhomes Phase 1 Map 1, Crosfit Vitality, Meadows Corporation, Cabarrus Charter Academy, Park View Estates Ph 3 Mp 2, Bedford Farms Ph 4, and Ascendum Machinery.
	Poplar Point TH
	Crosfit Vitality
	Meadows Corp
	Cabarrus Charter
	Park View PH3 Mp2
	Bedford Farms Ph4
	Ascendum

	VII. G. Consider adopting an amendment to the Transportation project fund to recognize developer contributions for the Poplar Tent/Harris project.
	Poplar Tent and Harris

	VII. H. Consider approving a budget amendment as a result of additional Capital Funds Awarded by HUD for the Housing Department.
	Amend Budget Ordinance

	VII. I. Consider adopting a general fund budget ordinance amendment to recognize a workmen's compensation reimbursement.
	WC Reimbursement

	VII. J. Consider adopting a budget amendment to correct the additional CARES funding for the Housing Choice Voucher program to reflect actual receipts.
	Budget Amendment

	VII. K. Consider approving a change to the classification/compensation system toinclude the following classification: Grant Specialist.
	VII. L. Receive quarterly report on water and wastewater extension permits issued by the Engineering Department in the third quarter of 2020.
	3rd Quarter report

	VII. M. Consider accepting the required annual information on the Identity Theft Program.
	2020 Red Flag Report

	VII. N. Consider acceptance of the Tax Office reports for the month of September 2020.
	TAX COLLECTIONS SEP20

	VII. O. Consider approval of Tax Releases/Refunds from the Tax Collection Office for the month of September 2020.
	RELEASE REFUND DISCOVERY SEP20

	VII. P. Receive monthly report on status of investments as of September 30, 2020.
	Sept Investments

	VIII. Matters not on the agenda
	IX. General comments by Council of non-business nature
	X. Closed Session (if needed)
	XI. Adjournment



